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Chairman’s Statement
THEREE

I have pleasure to present the 2005/2006 annual report of Hanny Holdings
Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group").

BUSINESS AND OPERATIONS REVIEW

The financial year of 2005/2006 was an eventful year for the Group, the
highlight of which was the disposal of the Memorex® business in April
2008. Pursuant to the agreement, the transaction included the disposal
of the Memorex® intellectual property portfolio and trade names, the
entire equity interest in all companies of the Memorex® business involved
with the marketing and sale of hardware, media and accessories used
for the storage of electronic data, and the licensing business of Memorex®
trademarks and trade names of Memorex® in connection with the
marketing and sale of other products.

Given the intense competition and the uncertain economic environment
encountered by the Memorex® business, the Company considered it an
opportune time to exit the business on favorable terms. The disposal of
the Memorex® business completed in April 2006 was a very significant
disposal to the Group and should give rise to a fruitful gain and substantial
cash inflow to the Group in the first half of financlal year 2006/2007. If
achieved, further earnout payments contemplated in the agreement will
enable the Group to enjoy the benefits of the future performance of the
Memorex® business up 1o year 2008,

Trading Operations
North America

In North America, Memorex® recorded record revenues in fiscal year
2006. Growth in USB Flash revenues was the primary driver of the
record revenues achieved during the year. USB Flash unit sales and
revenues increase nearly 150% year over year. Memorex® was able to
substantially increase its USB Flash Drive market share through increased
penetration of key retailers. North American USB Flash Drive market
share increased from 14% to 19% and Memorex® became the number
two player. The DVD media business experienced an over 40% unit
growth and a continued number one position with a 28% market share
in the North American market according to industry trade publications.
However, DVD revenue growth was stalled as a result of declining Average
Selling Prices (“ASP”) as a result of an over supply of DVDs in the global
market. DVD revenues declined approximately 2% year over year.

Operating margins in North America declined year over year primarily as
a result of depressed DVD media margins due to the global over supply
and marketing investment required to expand the USB Flash Drive
business.
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Europe

The European market remained challenging during the fiscal year.
European revenues declined nearly 20% year over year largely as a result
of sharp declines in the DVD and CDR media business categories.
Fierce price competition among competitors within the European market
resulted'in unit, ASP and revenue declines in both media categories.
Overall revenue declines were buoyed by strong increases in USB Flagh
Drive unit and revenues.

Although the Memorex® brand captured a strong presence within top
European retailers the market became much more fragmented than the
North American market causing fluctuating demand for its products. The
Group was able to substantially decrease inventories during the year to
reduce inventory exposure and improve gress margins in a dynamic
market environment.

Investment

During the year, the Group subscrived for the convertible notes issued
by Macau Prime Properties Holdings Limited (formerly known as Cheung
Tai Hong Holdings Limited) (‘“MPP"), See Carporation Limited ("SCL”)
and Wo Kee Hong (Holdings) Limited (“WKH”) respectively. The
subscription of notes enables the Group to diversify our investment
portfolio into the entertainment and pay TV industries, and property
developments in Macau and electronic products respectively, should we
assess the performance of the note issuers is outstanding. The convertible
notes provide the Group with a stable return on investment. The
conversion rights attached to the convertible notes give the Group flexibility
to acquire marketable equity shares and an opportunity 1o enjoy any
potential capital gain in the value of the marketable equity shares.
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Chairman'’s Statement

FERES
OUTLOOK RE
Following the closing of the disposal of the Memorex® business in April BEER ZZENEN R T H EMemorex®H

20086, the Group has, on the one hand, been concentrating on the
businesses carried out by the remaining businesses, which comprise the
trading of securities, property investment and trading and other strategic
investments including investments in associated companies listed on the
various stock exchanges and long-term convertible notes issued by listed
companies, while continuing to actively explore other investment
opportunities on the other hand.

In June 20086, the Company acquired a 98.92% stake in Group Dragon
Investments Limited (“GDI") which serves as an investment vehicle for
the Company in projects in Asia and mainiand China. The diverse business
coverage of the Group and its associates includes property development
and trading, manufacturing and marketing of tires and package material,
sand mining, business of providing tour, travel, hotel business, health
care business, entertainment and pay TV, trading and distribution of
household consumer products, and investment holding.

During the year under review, the Group subscribed for three convertible
notes issued by MPP, SCL and WKH respectively. There are also
upcoming subscriptions of convertible notes issued by Mei Ah
Entertainment Group Limited and Golden Harvest Entertainment (Holdings)
Limited. Going forward, the Group will lock for further strategic investments
that will both strengthen and bring diversity to the present portfolio.

FINAL DIVIDEND

The Board has recommended the payment of a final dividend of HK6
cents per share in cash with scrip option (2005: HK8 cents, with scrip
option) for the year ended 31 March 2006 subject to the approval of the
shareholders of the Company at the forthcoming annual general meeting
(“AGM”). An interim dividend of HK4 cents per share in cash with scrip
option (2004: Nil) was paid by the Company during the year.

Subject to the shareholders’ approval at the AGM, the dividend warrants
will be paid on or around Friday, 29 September 2006 in cash with
shareholders being given an option to receive shares of HK$0.01 each
("New Shares”} in the Company in lieu of cash in respect of part or all of
such dividend (“Scrip Dividend Scheme”). The number of New Shares
will be calculated on the basis of the average of the closing prices per
share of the Company on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
{the “Stock Exchange”) for the five consecutive trading days ending 31
August 2006. A circular giving full details of the Scrip Dividend Scheme
and a form of election will be sent to the shareholders after the AGM.
The Scrip Dividend Scheme is conditional upon the Stock Exchange
granting the listing of and permission to deal in the New Shares to be
allotted and issued.
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APPRECIATION
I would like 1o take this opportunity to express my gratitude to my fellow
board members, the management and employees for their hard work

and contribution to the Group in the past year.

On behalf of the Board

Dr. Chan Kwok Keung, Charles
Chairman

Hong Kang, 28 July 2006
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EREN BRI

RESULTS AND FINANCIAL REVIEW
Results

For the year ended 31 March 2008, the Group's audited consolidated loss
before minority interests was HK$96.0 million (2005: loss of HK$100.2
million, as restated), which comprised of loss after operating income and
expenses from continuing operations of HK$2.5 million (2005: profit of
HK$50.8 million), impairment loss on trademark licenses of HK$164.6
million (2005 Nil), favorable change in fair value of conversion option
embedded in convertible notes of HK$114.0 milion (2005: Nil), finance
costs from continuing operations of HK$63.5 milion (2005: HK$15.2 milion),
share of net losses of associates of HK$21.5 milion (2005 net losses of
HK$65.0 million, as restated), net gain on disposal of subsidiaries and
associates of HK$1.0 million (2005: loss of HK$15.7 million), income tax
expense from continuing operations of HK$4.3 million (2005: HK$4.3 million),
and profit from discontinued operations of HK$52.4 milion (2005: HK$152.6
million). In addition, there were realization of negative goodwill arising on
acquisition of an additional interest in an associate, impairment loss on
goodwill arising on acquisition of an associate and amortization of goodwill
arising on acguisition of associates of HK$2.1 milion, HK$177.4 milion
and HK$28.1 million, respectively, for the year ended 31 March 2005,
there were no such items for the year ended 31 March 2006 as a result
of the change in accounting policy as set out in Note 1.

Segment resufts

For trading of computer related products, segment turnover amounted
to HK$4,262.0 million, increasing by HK$284.3 million (7.1%) from fiscal
year 2005 and segment result recorded HK$62.7 million, decreasing by
HK$193.9 million (75.6%).

For trading of consumer electronic products, segment turmnover amounted
to HK$1,174.6 milion, decreasing by HK$390.1 milion (25.0%) from
fiscal year 2005 and segment result recorded HK$22.0 million, decreasing
by HK$2.8 million (11.3%).

For trading of securities, segment turnover amounted to HK$146.4 million,
increasing by HK$52.5 million (55.9%) from fiscal year 2005 and segment
result recorded HK$175.7 million, increasing by HK$98.4 milion (127.3%).

For property development and trading, segment turnover amounted to
HK$118.8 million, increasing by HK$79.2 milion (200%) and segment
result recorded HK$11.9 million, increased by HK$9.8 million (466.7%).
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This year, although the Group experienced steady growth, gross profit
margin declined . This sales growth was due to our persistent efforts to
control cost on inventory pricing, our strong and extensive business
network worldwide and promotional efforts made. Nevertheless,
allowances for slow-moving and obsolete inventories and bad and doubtful
debts of HK$75.7 million and HK$14,3 million resulted in a lowered
gross margin for the vear.

The results of the Group was critically increased from a loss of HK$100.2
million (as restated) for the year ended 31 March 2005 to a loss of HK$96.0
million for the year by reduction of amortization of goodwill and realization
of negative goodwill arising on acquisition of associates during the year
totaled HK$26.0 milion as compared to the year ended 31 March 2005
as a result of the change in accounting policy as set out in Note 1.
Furthermore, the Group suffered less net losses under “Share of results of
associates” during the year of HK$21.5 million, representing a decrease of
HK$43.4 million (66.9%) from the previous fiscal year. In addition, the
Group has a favorable change in fair value of conversion option embedded
in convertible notes of HK$114.0 million (2005: Nil). The Group also disposed
of its subsidiaries and associates during the year with a net gain of HK$1.0
million while a net loss of HK$15,7 million was resulted from disposals
during the year ended 31 March 2005. Impairment loss on intangible
assets decreased by HK$12.8 million to HK$164.6 million as compared
to the year ended 31 March 2005 of HK$177.4 million. However, finance
costs incurred increased by HK$48.3 million during the year owing to the
increase in other borrowings as compared to the year ended 31 March
2005, Operating income from continuing operations and profit from
discontinued operations dropped significantly from HK$50.8 million and
HK$152.5 million for the year ended 31 March 31, 2005, respectively, to
an operating loss of HK$9.5 million and profit of HK$52.4 million for the
year, respectively.

lnvestment?in Convertible Notes

During the year, the Group acquired three unlisted convertible notes
issued by companies listed on the Stock Exchange for an aggregate
consideration of HK$650.0 million. The aggregate fair value increase of
HK$114.0 million in respect of the conversion option element and decrease
of HK$18.2 million in respect of the debt element were recognized in
profit and Idss and reserves, respectively.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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Liquidity

Bank and cash balances at 31 March 20068 decreased significantly to
HK$26.5 million (2005: HK$379.6 million), accounting for 1.4% (2005:
27%) of the net tangible asset value of the Group. Such dramatic decrease
was mainly attributable to the reclassification of bank and cash balances
of HK$26.0 million to “assets classified as held for sale” pursuant to the
very substantial disposal as set out in the Company's circular dated 10
April 2006 (the “Memorex Disposal”). The cash was mainly used for daily
operations and investments in financial instruments during the year. The
current ratio of the Group at 31 March 2006 was 1.43 (2005: 1.91).

Financial Review

The current assets of the Group at 31 March 2008 increased by HK$301.5
million (12.7%) to HK$2,669.0 milion (2005: HK$2,367.5 million, as
restated).

Such increase was mainly attributable to the decrease in trade and other
receivables, inventories, bank balances and cash, other asset, short-
term loan receivables, short-term loan receivables from related companies,
tax recoverable and margin loan receivables by HK$702.2 million,
HK$578.5 million, HK$353.1 million, HK$108.0 million, HK$91.7 million,
HK$64.7 milion, HK$18.9 million, and HK$11.9 million, respectively, at
year end as compared 10 the last year, and offset by the increase in
investments and amounts due from associates by HK$582.8 milion and
HK$2.7 million, respectively. In addition, there was an increase in “assets
classified as held for sale” of HK$1,645.2 million at year end pursuant to
the Memorex Disposal.

Other asset valued at HK$108.C million as at 31 March 2005 was fully
disposed of at a consideration of HK$118.8 million during the year, with
a profit of HK$10.8 million.

inventories decreased from HK$587.1 million as at 31 March 2005 to HK$8.6
million as at 31 March 2006. Such decrease was mainly attributable to the
reclassification of HK$616.1 milion to “assets classified as held for sale”
pursuant to the Memorex Disposal. The increase of HK$37.6 milion before
the reclassification was attributable t¢ the increase in inventory levels of the
subsidiaries in the United States and United Kingdom at year end due to the
increase in sales and the increase in supply on hand primarily in DVD
inventory,
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Trade and other receivables decreased from HK$761.9 million (as restated)
as at 31 March 2005 to HK$59.7 million as at 31 March 2006. Such
decrease was mainly attributable to the reclassification of HK$645.9 million
to “assets classified as held for sale” pursuant to the Memorex Disposal.
The number of days for debtors turnover before the reclassification increased
slightly from 38 days last year to 39 days in the current year.

Trade and: other payables decreased from HK$1,011.8 million as at 31
March 2005 to HK$358.8 million as at 31 March 2006. Such decrease
was mainly attributable to the reclassification of HK$669.8 million to
“liapilities directly associated with assets classified as held for sale”
pursuant to the Memorex Disposal. The number of day for creditors
turnover decreased from 54 days last year to 44 days in current year.
Such decrease was mainly attributable to the early settlement of trade
payables in lieu of cash discount on goods purchased during the year.

At 31 March 2008, total borrowings of the Group amounted to HK$720.5
million (2005: HK$293.3 million), of which HK$95.7 milion (2005: HK$160.0
million) were not repayable within one year. The borrowings included bank
borrowings of HK$125.3 million (2005: HK$82.0 milion), other loans of
HK$562.0 milion (2005: HK$161.3 milion), and overdrafts of HK$33.2 milion
(2005: HK$47.0 million). In addition, there were obligations under finance
leases and? an amount due to a minority shareholder of HK$0.5 million and
HK$2.5 million, respectively, as at 31 March 2005, The increase in borrowings
was main\y due to new borrowings totaling of HK$1,762.5 milion obtained
during the year for the purposes of investment and daily operation, but with
the total repayment of only HK$1,240.8 milion. In addition, bank borrowing of
HK$33.0 milion was recorded as a liability of the Group through the acquisition
of a subsidiary in March 2008.

Interest in associates

The decrease in balance from HK$632.2 million as at 31 March 2005 to
HK$616.9-million as at 31 March 2006 was mainly due to the acquisition
of an additional equity interest in an associate of HK$24.1 milion, disposal
of interests in certain asscciates of HK$4.4 million, currency translation
loss of HK$3.4 million, and share of associates’ increase in other reserves
and losses, of HK$35.1 million and HK$21.5 million, respactively, during
the year. Furthermore, goodwill arising on acquisition of an associate
was disposed of with a loss of HK$14.4 million during the year. An
equity interest of 15.3% in China Strategic Holdings Limited of HK$30.8
million was reclassified to “assets classified as held for sale” pursuant to
the Circular dated 26 May, 2006 issued by the Company.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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Pledge of assets

At 31 March 2008, certain assets of the Group amounting to HK$1,430.0
million (2005: HK$240.2 million) were pledged to banks and financial
institutions for loan facilities granted to the Group.

Gearing ratio

The gearing ratio (borrowings/shareholders’ funds) at 31 March 2006
significantly increased to 38.6% (2005: 16.2%) owing to the additions of
bank and other borrowings during the year to finance the Group’s
investments.

Exchange rate and interest rate risks exposure

Most of the Group's business transactions, assets and liabilities are
denominated in Hong Kong Dollars and United States Dollars. However,
the Group will consider entering into hedging contracts to eliminate any
exposures to downside risks, whenever the Group and the concerned
foreign subsidiaries think fit.

Contingent liabilities

As at 31 March 2006, the Group had no contingent liabilities in relation
to guarantees given to banks and other financial institutions for facilities
granted to an outsider (2005: Nil). However, the Group had a share of
contingent liabilities from its associates in relation to guarantees given to
banks and third parties of HK$11.5 million (2005: HK$13.7 million).

Employees and remuneration policies

As at 31 March 2006, there were approximately 500 staff (2005: 500) employed
by the Group. The remuneration policies are formulated on the basis of
performance of individual employees and the prevalling salaries’ trends in the
various regions. They are subject to be reviewed every year. The Group also
provided employee training programs, mandatory provident fund scheme,
medical insurance and discretionary bonus. Share options are awarded to
employees on merit basis. However, no share options were granted during
the year.
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Major Acquisitions and Disposals

Dis,oosa/ of 15.3% interests in China Strategic Holdings Limited
("CSHL") and acquisition of interests in Group Dragon Investments
Limited ("GD/”)

On 10 March 2005, the Company and PY| Corparation Limited (formerty
known as Paul Y.-ITC Construction Holdings Limited) entered into a
share sale agreement (the “Share Sale Agreement”) with Nation Field
Limited for the disposal of an approximately 15.3% interests in CSHL at
a consideration of approximately HK$26 million. The Share Sale Agreement
was completed on 24 May 2006. On 26 May 2006, Somerley Limited,
on behalf of Well Orient Limited (“Well Orient”) made a voluntary offer to
the shareholders of GDI, other than those owned or agreed to be acquired
by Well Orient, its associates and parties acting in concert with it (*GDI
Offer”). The GDI Offer closed at 4:00 p.m. on 16 June 2006. Well Orient
received a total of 306,622,223 GDI shares representing approximately
69.56% of the issued share capital of GDI. Together with the 129,409,897
GDI shares (representing approximately 29.36% of the existing issued
share capital of GDI) already held by Well Orient, Well Crient was interested
in approximately 98.92% of the issued share capital of GDI.

Subscription of convertible note of Macau Prime Properties Holdings
Limited (formerly known as Cheung Tai Hong Holdings Limited) ("MPP")

On 20 April 2005, Loyal Concept Limited (“Loyal Concept”), an indirect
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, and MPP entered into a
subscription agreement (the “Subscription Agreement”) regarding the
supscription by Loyal Concept of a zero coupon convertible note due
2010 of MPP with a principal amount of HK$450 million at an initial
conversion price of HK$0.44 per conversion share, subject to adjustment
from time to time. The subscription and the transactions contemplated
under the Subscription Agreement were approved by the shareholders in
a special general meeting of the Company held on 24 June 2005 and
the Subscription Agreement was completed on 11 August 2005. Details
of the transaction are set out in the circular of the Company dated 7
June 2005.

TEWBRLEER

HEFRERARME ([ FR]) 153%M
RWHAESLF ARG ([#E]) HA

R-IZETREZA+H AQFRRESEHSE
BAs (B REEEZEEEFRAG) H
Natlon Field Limiteds] 32 & /% #%55 ( Tgﬁﬁ’fﬁ:
3] AR B 426,000,000 JT i & 4915.3%
PEBRE-ERBEAR-_EEAFEA-+
MEEXK - ZEEERBE_+<8B FaF
ERAFIREHGBGAERLR ([HE!) @5E
EREXNEHKERE WEEG EBEA
R—HAgALHKRBESXRZWHEHERER
HREREES)) HEREREN_ZT
NEANATABTFEIEE E-FES EZUWE
306,622,223 R EFEEMR (D (EEEBEC BITIR AL
69.56% ° E [ Bl im 2 58 89 129,409,897 I &%
BERR{n (IEEFERBITRAL2036%) Eid
BAEBED HTAAN08.92% ©

DHEMALERAEEBIAMRAS (FTHMEL
FEBRBARAE) ([BHHEARE]) TH
2

RIZBEFFEWNAZ+H AQGzHE2E
B D E Loyal Concept Limited ( [ Loyal
Concept] ) BRI ZEMEITLRERZ
(TREBHE]) ROFHLBRESKRILBRG
04487 (AT FLAGHE) BEBMAESRD
ERNZZE-TF u&a&x%gé/‘%%ooooooo
BRAZERRALBEEE -RER: %IE T g
TZREERRIVR-_EZRF A THEHR
THALCTRRFRIRNE L ERFIE B
BHEEPHR - EEAFENAT—BRK X BZH
BEREARBHA-STERENALEZH




Management Discussion and Analysis
BEEB® AT

The underwriting agreement and subscription of convertible note of See
Corporation Limited (formerly known as Ruili Holdings Limited) ("SCL”)

On 21 April 2005, the Company, SCL and Tal Fook Securities Company
Limited entered into an underwriting agreement, pursuant to which, the
maximum number of rights shares to be taken up by the Company was
320 million rights shares at a subscription price of HK$0.10 per rights
share. On the same date, the Company and SCL entered into a
subscription agreement (the “SCL Subscription Agreement”) to subscribe
for a zero coupon convertible note due 2010 of SCL in a principal
amount of HK$170 million at an initial conversion price of HK$0.12 per
conversion share, subject to the adjustment from time to time. On 22
July 2005, the Company subscribed for 320 million rights shares of SCL
at HK$0.10 per rights share. The SCL Subscription Agreement was
completed on 10 August 2005. Details of the transaction are set out in
the circular of the Company dated 24 May 2005.

Subscription of convertible note of Wo Kee Hong (Holdings) Limited
("WKH")

On 18 August 2005, the Company and WKH entered into a subscription
agreement (the “WKH Subscription Agreement”) to subscribe for the
7.25% convertible note due 2008 of WKH with a principal amount of
HK$30 million at an initial conversion price of HK$0.10 per conversion
share, subject to adjustment from time to time. The WKH Subscription
Agreement was completed on 7 September 2005. Details of the
transaction are set out in the circular of the Company dated 9 September
2005.

Disposal of the assets of Memorex International Inc. ("MII’)

On 19 January 2006, Mll and Imation Corp. entered into a sale and
purchase agreement (the “S&P Agreerment”) for the sale and purchase of
all of the assets of Ml relating to the business of the design, development,
marketing, distribution and sale of hardware, media and accessories
used for the storage of electronic data as conducted by Mil, Hanny
Magnetics Europe Limited, Memorex Canada Ltd., Memorex Products
Europe Limited, Memorex Products S.A.S., Memorex Products GmbH,
Memorex Products (Taiwan) inc. and Memorex Products, Inc. for an
aggregate consideration of US$330 million plus adjustments amount
and earnout amount calculated in accordance with the S&P Agreement.
The S&P Agreement was completed on 28 April 2006. Details of the
transaction are set out in the circular of the Company dated 10 April
20086,
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Acquisition of the entire issued share capital of Rapid Growth Profits
Limited (“Rapid Growth")

On 9 March 2006, an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of Company
entered into a sale and purchase agreement (the “RG Agreement”) for
the sale and purchase of the entire issued share capital of Rapid Growth
and the shareholder’s loan for a consideration of HK$39,054,194.00.
The assets held by Rapid Growth (through its wholly-owned subsidiary)
was the property situated at 31st Floor, Bank of America Tower, 12
Harcourt Road, Hong Kong and four car park spaces on the 4th Floor at
that building. The RG Agreement was completed on 28 March 2006.
Details of the transaction are set out in the circular of the Company
dated 27 March 2006.
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Directors and Senior Management Profile
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DIRECTOR'S PROFILE

Dr. CHAN Kwok Keung, Charles, aged 51, was appointed as Managing
Director of the Company in November 1995. He was appointed as
Chairman of the Company in November 2000 and is responsible for the
overall management of the Company. He retired by rotation at the annual
general meeting held in 2004 and re-appointed as Chairman and Executive
Director of the Company on 3 September 2004. He holds an Honorary
degree of Doctor of Laws and a Bachelor’s degree in Civil Engineering
and has over 26 years’ international corporate management experience
in construction and property sectors as well as strategic investments. Dr.
Chan is the chairman of {TC Corporation Limited and a non-executive
director of PYI Corporation Limited (formerly known as Paul Y. - [TC
Construction Holdings Limited).

Dr. YAP, Allan, aged 50, joined the Company in 1995 and was appointed
as Deputy Managing Director in December 1997. In November 2000, he
was appointed as Managing Director of the Company. He obtained the
Honorary degree of Doctor of Laws and has over 24 years’ experience in
finance, investment and banking. Dr. Yap is an executive director of
Wing On Travel (Holdings) Limited, a company whose shares are listed
on the main board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. He is
the chairman and chief executive officer of China Enterprises Limited, a
company whose shares are traded on the OTC Bulletin Board in the
United States of America as well as Burcon NutraScience Corporation, a
company whose shares are listed on the TSX Venture Exchange in
Canada and the Frankfurt Stock Exchange in Germany. Dr. Yap is an
executive chairman of PSC Corporation Ltd, Intraco Limited and Tat
Seng Packaging Group Ltd., all of which are public listed companies in
Singapore. He is also the chairman of MRI Holdings Limited, a company
whose shares are listed on the Australian Stock Exchange.

Mr. LUI Siu Tsuen, Richard, aged 50, joined the Company in November
1995 and was appointed as Deputy Managing Director in May 2002. He
is a qualified accountant and has over 26 years of experience in
accounting, financial and corporate management. He held senior positions
in an international accounting firm and various private and public listed
companies. Mr. Lui is an executive director of Wing On Travel (Holdings)
Limited, a company whose shares are listed on the main board of The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited and PSC Corporation Ltd, a
public listed company in Singapore.

Mr. YUEN Tin Fan, Francis, aged 53, joined the Company as
Independent Non-Executive Director in January 1998. He received a
Bachelor of Arts degree in Economics from The University of Chicago
and is currently a member of its Board of Trustees. He is the chairman of
Pacific Century Insurance Holdings Limited, a company whose shares
are listed on the main board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited. As a previous chief executive of The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited from 1988 to 1991, Mr. Yuen has extensive experience in
investment banking and business in Hong Kong as well as the Far East
region. He is the chairman of the Board of Trustees of the Hong Kong
Centre for Economic Research, a member of the Shanghai People’s
Palitical Consultative Committee and a member of the Board of Trustees
of Shanghai’s Fudan University. Mr. Yuen is alsc a non-executive director
of a number of listed companies in Hong Kong.

EExGE

REREL 51 R-ANDAFET—AEZR
ERADAEEREE-BR_FTFERF+—
REZEAALAERE YREADEZER
EEFH-RR_FTMEHTIRRBFK
TLRELT TR -_ZENFAA=ZRER
BEZEIREAPFIERINTES - BHELRE
KEETBURIAIREBETEN ERE
¥ WEEARERRESTEERE - TAFERE
CEEELER-MBELIARTLESREERS
RlzERRREEEAR QA (AR REE
EEEEEERLOE]) 2ERTEE-

Yap, Allan L 505 R— A NLEENAR
NATR—ANLE+_ABZTRIES
BIEE-FR _FTEEF+-REBEZEFAER
REFLEEE - BEHEEREERLEN U
RER BERFTEB I RRE-TNEL
BovapB Bk RIEE (BR) ER O FI 2
TEE ERMDHNEEEESRIMERQAE
Y 7 e 1% & China Enterprises Limited (E %
TRERBSNHNZTHHEREE) RBurcon
NutraScience Corporation (ERHm R MNE X
TSX Venture Exchange R {EBEH R B EH X
B LE™M) 2 EBRITRER YaplE T AN
FEERAAREHREBERAT FTMEEEE
SHERDARENBDEEEERABIZHITE
F% < #% 7R AMRI Holdings Limitedz T /& £ /%
MRBMBEFR ST Le

BRKEE SOR R—AAREF+—ANA
KRR YR _ZET_FHREZERERRR
BEERER - RAAEABREGE UERE
G MBROREEIEEA_TRFEER-
WER—REREFMNT ZEALABEREL
MAREESE3TERKTERE (ER) A
RO (EROREEMARSAAERRDRE
LT REBREEBRIB (—RAFTME
EHLE) Z2BRTES-

RANEE 535 N—AAANE-ANAR
DR HEBMFRITER - REZMTAE
ERREBLBU RAZREZINEER
E-RRABMRBREBERARAEIRE EBRKG
REBHERIMERLCFTERMET-N—A
MNEE-NA—FEB RELSEELR
ERGABERRATATHER EEERERL
BEvRERTLABREBLEER -WATE
BEMRPLZEZEIR LETHBRER
EZERLEEBEEXBREEGRE-RALEN
AEBZRLTRBAZIENTES:




Mr. KWOK Ka Lap, Alva, aged 58, has been an Independent Non-
Executive Director of the Company since July 2003. He was a marketing
manager in an international company engaging in the design of business
administration system. Mr. Kwok has been in the insurance and
investments business for over 24 years, principally in the senior managerial
position leading a sizable sales team. Mr. Kwok is an executive director
of China Strategic Holdings Limited, and an independent non-executive
director of Macau Prime Properties Holdings Limited (formerly known as
Cheung Tai Hong Holdings Limited) and Wing On Travel (Heldings) Limited,
all of which are companies whose shares are listed on the main board of
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.

Mr. Wong King Lam, Joseph, aged 54, has been an Independent Non-
Executive Director of the Company since September 2004. He is currently
the chief executive officer of a renowned automaobile services company
in Hong Kong. He is a fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants and the Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants. He has more than 25 years' extensive experience in auditing,
corporate and financial management with a number of companies in
different business sectors which include an international accounting firm
and a local listed company. Mr. Wong is alsc an independent non-
executive director of China Strategic Holdings Limited, Honesty Treasure
International Holdings Limited, Tungtex (Holdings) Company Limited and
Wing On Travel (Holdings) Limited, all of which are companies whose
shares are listed on the main board of The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited.

Mr. Sin Chi Fai, aged 46, was appointed as Independent Non-Executive
Director of the Company in December 2005. He obtained a diploma in
Banking from The Hong Kong Polytechnic (now known as The Hong
Kong Polytechnic University). He has over 11 years’ experiences in banking
field and has 11 years’ sales and marketing experiences in information
technology industries. He is a director and a shareholder of a Singapore
company engaging in distribution of data storage media and computer
related products in Asian countries. Mr. Sin is currently an independent
non-executive director of China Strategic Holdings Limited and Wing On
Travel (Holdings) Limited, both of which are companies whose shares are
listed on the main board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT'S PROFILE

Ms. LAW, Dorothy, aged 36, was appointed as the Corporate Counsel
of the Company in November 1987, She is alsc a director of China
Enterprises Limited, a company whose shares are traded on the OTC
Bulletin Board in the United States of America as well as Burcon
NutraScience Corporation, a company whose shares are listed on the
TSX Venture Exchange in Canada and the Frankfurt Stock Exchange in
Germany. Ms. Law received her Bachelor of Commerce and Bachelor of
Law degrees from the University of British Columbia and is a Barrister
and Solicitor licensed to practice law in British Columbia, Canada. She
has also been admitted as a solicitor of the High Court of Hong Kong.
Prior to joining the Company and the Burcon group of companies, Ms.
Law worked for a Canadian national law firm practicing in the areas of
corporate and securities law.

Ms. KEE Shui Wah, aged 41, joined the Company in April 1994 and
was appointed as Chief Financial Officer of the Company in May 2002.
Ms. Kee is a member of both the Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants and the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
She has over 16 years’ experience in international accounting and finance
in multinational corporations.
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Corporate Governance Report
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The Board of Directors of the Company (the “Board”) is committed to
good standards of corporate governance in order to protect and enhance
the interests of our shareholders.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company has applied the principles and complied with all the code
provisions on the Code on Corporate Governance Practices (the “CG
Code”) (with the exception of code provision C.2 on internal control
which is effective for accounting periods commencing on or after 1 July
2005) as set out in Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing
Ruiles”) throughout the year ended 31 March 2006, except for the following
deviations:-

Code Provision A.2.1 of the CG Code

Under the code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code, the roles of chairman
and chief executive officer should be separate and should not be
performed by the same individual. The Company does not at present
have any officer with the title of “chief executive officer” (“CEO") but
instead the duties of a CEO are performed by Dr. Yap, Allan, the Managing
Director of the Company, in the same capacity as the CEO of the
Company.

Code Provision A.4.1 of the CG Code

Under the code provision A.4.1 of the CG Code, non-executive directors
should be appointed for a specific term, subject to re-election. The
current independent non-executive directors are not appointed for a
specific term. However, all directors (including executive and non-
executive) are subject to retirement by rotation at annual general meeting
of the Company in accordance with bye-law 87(2) of the Bye-Laws of
the Company.

As such, the Company considers that sufficient measures have been
taken to ensure that the Company’s corporate governance practices are
no less exacting than those in the CG Code.
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THE BOARD
Composition of the Board

The Board represents shareholders of the Company in managing the
Company’s affairs. The Board currently consists of seven members,
including three executive directors, namely Dr. Chan Kwok Keung, Charles
(Chairman), Dr. Yap, Allan (Managing Director) and Mr. Lui Siu Tsuen,
Richard (Deputy Managing Director), and four independent non-executive
directors, namely Messrs. Yuen Tin Fan, Francis, Kwok Ka Lap, Alva,
Wong King Lam, Joseph and Sin Chi Fai. Biographical details of all
directors and the relevant relationships among them are set out in
“Directors’ and Senior Management's Profile” on pages 19 to 20 of the
annual report.

The Board includes a balanced composition of executive directors and
independent non-executive directors and possess a wide spectrum of
relevant skills and experience. Among all independent non-executive
directors, ene of them has the professional accounting qualification as
required by the Listing Rules. The Company has received an annual
confirmation from each of the independent non-executive directors
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company considers all of
independent non-executive directors 1o be independent.

The Board meets regularly throughout the year as and when required.
Sufficient notices are given to all directors before the regular board
meetings and all directors are consulted to include any matters in the
agenda. Agenda and accompanying board papers are given to all directors
in a timely manner before the appointed date of the meetings. All Board
members are kept informed of material changes about the Group's
businesses and have full access to the Company Secretary with a view
to ensuring: the Board procedures and all applicable rules and regulations
are followed.
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During the year ended 31 March 2006, four meetings were held by the
Board. Individual attendance of each Board member at these meetings

is shown below:

REE_EERF=ZA=+-HLFEAN E
EERETUAEHE-ZSEEENEAZEN L
FZEEBEZBERENNNT:

Number of

Board Meetings
attended/held
CHE B8T2

Name of Director BEEnA EEEEERAH

Executive Directors HATEF

Dr. Chan Kwok Keung, Charles (Chairmarn) PRERE LT (2A) 4/4

Dr. Yap, Allan (Managing Director) Yap, Alant8 4= (¥ F 44 58) 4/4

Mr. Lui Siu Tsuen, Richard (Deputy Managing Director) BRI E (8| EF e ) 4/4

Mr. Chan Kwok Hung (Note ) PREME S & (M2 1) 0/1

Non-Executive Directors HRIFTEE

Mr. Fok Kin-ning, Canning (Note 2) EEBERE (W2 0/1

Mr. Ip Tak Chuen, Edmond (Note 2) EEEEE (HiE2) 0/1

Mr. Cheung Hon Kit (Note 2) ROBGEEE (Max2) 0/1

Ms. Shih, Edith (Note 3) MERREL L (W3 0/1

(Alternate to Mr. Fok Kin-ning, Canning) (ERFRAZHEETF)

Independent Non-executive Directors BT EF

Mr. Yuen Tin Fan, Francis BERASEE 3/4

Mr. Kwok Ka Lap, Alva EITRE 4/4

Mr. Wong King LLam, Joseph FEEHASE 4/4

Mr. Sin Chi Fai (Note 4) HEEIREE (Hizd) 3/3

Notes: Ri 4 :

1. Mr. Chan Kwok Hung retired as executive director at the annual general 1. REBEEEEARR TERFNA—
meeting of the Company (the “AGM”) held on 1 September 2005. BRITZERBEFAE ‘ﬁ" ( fﬁﬁ ﬁ BEXE])

FREHTEESE-

2. Messrs. Fok Kin-ning, Canning (“Mr. Fok”), Ip Tak Chuen, Edmond and 2. EREAs ([BEALE]) EEREERER
Cheung Hon Kit retired as non-executive directors at the AGM held on 1 BEEER_TETAFAE—BETZRE
September 2005. BFEAE LRFERNITES:

3. Ms. Shih, Edith ceased to be an alternate director to Mr. Fok following 3. BEEENR-_FEEIFAA—BETZRE
Mr. Fok's retirement as non-executive director at the AGM held on 1 BEASFREIFNTESHRER HRE
September 2005. T FREHEEEEZ2ETES

4, Mr. Sin Chi Fai was appointed as independent non-executive director 4, AEBAEE _FERET-RAT+-BRE

with effect from 12 December 2005.

EERBUFRTES.




The principal functions of the Board are to formulate corporate strategy
and direction with the objective of enhancing shareholder value, to consider
the Group"s major corporate matters, 1o monitor and contral the operating
and financial performance of the Group. Day-to-day management of the
Group's business is delegated to the management of the Company
under the supervision of the Managing Director. The delegation of
responsibilities and authority is reviewed regularty to ensure that the
appropriate reporting systems are in place. The Board has established
three committees with specific responsibilities to manage and oversee
particular aspects of the Company’s affairs. Each committee is appointed
with written terms of reference and is accountable to the full Board. The
Board has reserved for its decision and consideration matters covering
corporate’ strategy, dividend policy, majer acquisitions, disposals and
capital transactions, annual and interim results, changes of members of
the Board and its committees, and other significant operational and
financial matters. A written procedure has been agreed for directors to
seek independent professicnal advice at the Company’s expense upon
their request.

The Company has arranged for Directors’ and Officers’ Liability Insurance
to indemnify its Directors and management staff against potential liabilities
incurred by them in discharging their duties. The insurance coverage for
the Directors and management staff is reviewed on an annual basis.

Chairman éand Managing Director

The Com;‘?any fully recognizes that the respective role of Chairman and
Managing: Director should be distinct and separated. The position of the
Chairmaniand Managing Director are held by Dr. Chan Kwok Keung,
Charles and Dr. Yap, Allan respectively. The Chairman is responsible for
leadership of the Board while the Managing Director is responsible for
the day-to-day management of the Group. A clear division of
responsibilities at the board level is maintained in order to entail a balance
of power and authority.

Appoeintment, Re-election and Removal of Directors

The Company has not established a nomination committee. The Board
as a wholé is responsible for considering and approving the appointment
of its members and nominating them for election and re-election by the
shareholders of the Company in order to ensure the Board to have
adequate skills and experience for further shareholder interest.

The non-executive directors are not appointed for specific term. Under
the Bye-Laws of the Company, all directors (including executive directors
and indegendent non-executive directors) are subject to retirement by
rotation at least once every three years.

Induction program is arranged for the newly appointed director on the
latest information of the Group. The comprehensive orientation package
is also provided detailing the responsibilities and duties of being a director
and the requirements under the applicable rules and regulations of the
Company:
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BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established committees to assist in carrying out its
responsibilities. Three committees have been appointed, including an
Executive Committee, a Remuneration Committee and an Audit
Committee. The committees report regularly to the Board and where
appropriate, make recommendations on matters for consideration.

Executive Committee

The Executive Committee was established in December 2005 which
comprises all executive directors, namely Dr. Chan Kwok Keung, Charles,
Dr. Yap, Allan and Mr. Lui Siu Tsuen, Richard. The Executive Committee
meets as and when required 1o oversee the day-to-day management
and operation of the Group’s business and has all the general powers of
the Board except those matters specifically reserved for the Board which
are reviewed by the Board from time to time.

Remuneration Committee

The remuneration committee was established by the Company in
December 2005 with a majority of members being independent non-
executive directors. The Remuneration Committee consists of two
independent non-executive directors, namely Messrs. Kwok Ka Lap,
Alva and Wong King Lam, Joseph and one executive director, namely
Mr. Lui Siu Tsuen, Richard. Mr. Kwok Ka Lap, Alva acts as the Chairman
of Remuneration Committee. The Remuneration Committee is responsible
for making recommendations to the Board on issues including review
management succession planning for senior management of the
Company; formulate and review remuneration policy and packages of all
directors and senior management; and review and approve compensation
packages, roles and responsibilities and performance assessment of
employees of the Group.

The Remuneration Committee met once during the year ended 31 March
2006 to review the remuneration package of a senior management.
Individual attendance of each Remuneration Committee member at the
meeting is shown below:

Name of Remuneration
Committee Member

FHESERE2HS

ESZEEE
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22,
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HITEEE
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MITBEFAK ARBERE L Yap AlanE =
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Number of

Remuneration Committee Meeting
attended/held

2 Iﬁf/ Eéﬁﬁ Z

%ﬁ@ﬁé E SEEAE

Mr. Kwok Ka Lap, Alva (Chairman)
Mr. Wong King Lam, Joseph
Mr. Lui Siu Tsuen, Richard

ERREE

BEIEE(ZF)

11
11
1/1




Audit Committee

The Audit Committee has been set up by the Company since 1989,
Major roles and functions of the Audit Committee are as follows:

(a) To consider the appointment, re-appointment and removal of the
auditors, and to approve the remuneration and the terms of
engagement of the auditors, and any questions of resignation or
dismissal of the auditors of the Group;

b) To assess the independence of auditors and discuss with the
auditors the nature and scope of the audit;

(©) To review interim and annual accounts before submission to the
Board;

(o) To review the financial controls, internal controls and risk
management system of the Group and make recommendations
10 the Board; and

(e To review the auditors’ management letter and material queries
raised by the auditors to management in respect of accounting
records, financial accounts or systems of control and
management’s response.

The Audit Committee is composed of three independent non-executive
directors, namely Messrs. Wong King Lam, Joseph {who acts as Chairman
of the Committee), Kwok Ka Lap, Alva and Sin Chi Fai. All Audit Committee
members have appropriate qualifications and experience to properly
discharge its roles and responsibilities.
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Curing the year ended 31 March 2006, the Audit Committee held two
meetings to review with the management and the auditors the audited
financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2005 and the unaudited
interim financial statements for the six months ended 30 September
2005, with the recommendations to the Board for approval; and has
reviewed with the management the accounting principles and policies
adopted by the Group and the financial statements for the year ended
31 March 2008. Individual attendance of each Audit Committee member
at these meetings is shown below:

4 TE SA=T-BLEE B
ZEGEBTRAER BERERGES —
AEMEZE-_TFAFZA=T—BLEFEZ
REZIEBEREZE_ZFTAFNAZ=TH
EARBAZREERTHMBRE LRHE
BERTEFREEM UCHRERE-FEZ
AEEBERMAZEFRIEBEAREZF
ERFEACSTOUFEZFBRR-Z2F
HEEEXEZEAMLEREZZTERZBRMN
T~

Number of

Audit Committee Meetings

attended/held

Name of Audit EHEBETZ

Committee Member EREEEHRENRS BENEESEHRIE

Mr. Wong King Lam, Joseph {Chairman) BERERTE(LR) 2/2

Mr. Kwok Ka Lap, Alva EILLEE 2/2

Mr. Sin Chi Fai (appeinted on 12 December 2005) AERRE (R_BEEREFT_/A+HEZM 1/1
Mr. Cheung Hon Kit REGRKE

{retired at the AGM on 1 September 2005) (R-ZETRENA—BETZREAF NS LBE) 0/1

AUDITORS' REMUNERATION

For the year ended 31 March 2008, the amount paid to Messrs. Deloitte
Touche Tohmatsu, the auditors of the Company in respect of the audit
and non-audit services provided are as follows:

RS

RBZEZZTRE=ZRA=+—HLFE HME
HeWMERTIFEMT (A DEEEE) DA
ZERRFBERBMINTEZEENAT:

Type of services Amount
(HK$:000)
RS E o]
(F#7)
Audit B 13,826
Non-audit services IEBEARTS
Taxation 15 52
Other services E b RS 8,167
Total: &5t 22,045

COMPLIANCE WITH THE MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted the Model Code set out in Appendix 10 of
the Listing Rules as its own code of conduct regarding directors’ securities
transactions (the “Model Code”). Having made specific enquiry by the
Company, all directors have confirmed the compliance with the reguired
standard set out in the Model Code during the year ended 31 March
2006.
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DIRECTORS' AND AUDITORS' RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the financial statements
for each financial period which give a true and fair view of the state of
affairs of the Group and of the results and cash flows for that period. In
preparing the audited financial statements for the year ended 31 March
20086, the directors have selected suitable accounting policies and applied
them consistently, made judgements and estimates that are prudent, fair
and reasonable and prepared the audited financial statements on a
going concern basis. The directors are also responsible for keeping
proper accounting records which disclose with reasonable accuracy at
any time the financial position of the Group, for safeguarding the assets
of the Group and for taking reasonable steps for the prevention and
detection of'fraud and other irregularities.

The responsibilities of the auditors to the shareholders are to form an
independent opinion, based on the audit, on those financial statements
and their opinion on the consolidated financial statements of the Group
for the year ended 31 March 2006 is set out in “Report of the Auditors”
on pages 41 and 42 of the annual report.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Company is committed to ensure that the Company maintains on-
going dialogue with shareholders to provide them with information
necessary tb evaluate the performance of the Company. The primary
communication channal between the Company and its shareholders
includes the publication of interim and annual reports, press releases on
newspapers, annual general meeting and other general meetings, and
the Compahy's website.

Separate resolutions are proposed at general meetings on each
substantially separate issue, including the election or re-election of
individual directors. Details of procedure for demanding a poll is included
in all circulars of the Company despatched to the sharehoiders of the
Company.
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Report of the Directors

EZE2RS

The directors present to the shareholders the annual report on the affairs
of the Company and of the Group together with the audited financial
statements for the year ended 31 March 20086.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company and the Group is
principally engaged in trading of securities, property investment and trading,
holding of vessel for sand mining and cther strategic investrments including
investments in associated companies whose shares are listed on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) and the
Singapore Exchange Limited and investments in long term convertible
notes issued by companies listed on the Stock Exchange.

During the year, the Group, through its non-wholly owned subsidiary,
Memorex International Inc. (the “Vendor”), entered into agreements with
Imation Corp., a company organized under the laws of the State of
Delaware, the United States of America with its shares listed on the New
York Stock Exchange, in connection with the very substantial disposal
transaction, whereby the Vendor disposed of (i) its entire interests in
Hanny Magnetics Europe Limited, Memorex Canada Ltd., Memorex
Products Europe Limited, Memorex Products S.A.S., Memorex Products
GmbH, Memorex Products (Taiwan) Inc. and Memorex Products, Inc. {the
“Disposed Companies”) and (i) Vendors trademark license and other
assets relating to the trading of computer related product business under
the trade name “Memorex®’, which include the business of design,
development, marksting, distribution and sale of hardware, media and
accessories used for the storage of electronic data conducted by the
Vendor and the Disposed Companies (the "Disposed Business”).

Following the completion of disposal of the Disposed Business on 28
April 2006, the Group discontinued the Disposed Business and will be
concentrating on trading of securities, property investment and trading
and other strategic investments. The Group also continues to explore
potential investments to enhance the revenue base of the Group.

RESULTS

Details of the results of the Group for the year are set out in the consolidated
income statement on page 43 to 44.
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DIVIDENDS

The directors recommend the payment of a final dividend at the rate of
HK6 cents per share in cash with a scrip option payable on or around
Friday, 29 September 2008 to all persons registered as holders of shares
on Friday, 1 September 2006. The Register of Members will be closed
from Tuesday, 29 August 20086 to Friday, 1 September 2008, both days
inclusive.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

During the year, the Group spent approximately HK$15 million on the
acquisition of property, plant and equipment for the purpose of expanding
the Group’s business. Details of this and other movements in the property,
plant and equipment of the Group during the year are set out in note 21
to the financial statements.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Details of revaluation of the investment properties of the Group during
the year are set out in note 22 to the financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in the share capital of the Company during the
year are st out in note 41 1o the financial statements.
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Report of the Directors

EEERE

DIRECTORS

The directors of the Company during the year and up to the date of this
report are:

Executive Directors:

Dr. Chan Kwok Keung, Charles (Chairman)

Dr. Yap, Allan (Managing Director)

Mr. Lui Siu Tsuen, Richard (Deputy Managing Director)
Mr. Chan Kwok Hung (retired on 1 September 2005)

Non-executive Directors:

Mr. Fok Kin-ning, Canning (retired on 1 September 2005)

Mr. lp Tak Chuen, Edmond (rstired on 1 September 2005)

Mr. Cheung Hon Kit (retired on 1 September 2005)

Ms. Shih, Edith {(Afternate to Mr. Fok Kin-ning, Canning)
(ceased fo be an alternate to Mr. Fok Kin-ning, Canning
on 1 September 2005)

Independent Non-executive Directors:

Mr. Yuen Tin Fan, Francis

Mr. Kwok Ka Lap, Alva

Mr. Weng King Lam, Joseph

Mr. Sin Chi Fai (appointed on 12 December 2005}

In accordance with bye-laws 87(2) and 87(3) of the Company’s Bye-
laws, Dr. Yap, Allan and Mr. Yuen Tin Fan, Francis will retire from office
by rotation at the forthcoming annuat general meeting (“AGM”). Dr. Yap,
being eligible, will offer himself for re-election and Mr. Yuen will not offer
himself for re-election at the AGM.,

In accordance with bye-law 86(2) of the Company's Bye-laws, Mr. Sin
Chi Fai whe was appointed during the period from the iast AGM to the
date of this report, will retire and, being eligible, offer himself for re-election
at the AGM.

The non-executive directors are subject to retirement by rotation in
accordance with the above clauses of the Company's Bye-laws.

None of the directors proposed for re-election at the AGM has a service
contract with the Group which is not determinable by the Group within
one year without payment of compensation, other than statutory
compensation.
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DIRECTORS' INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES,
UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES

As at 31 March 2006, the interests and short positions of the directors of
the Company in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of the
Company and its associated corporation {within the meaning of Part XV
of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO")) which (a) were
required to be notified to the Company and the Stack Exchange pursuant
to Divisions. 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests and short
positions which they are taken or deemed to have under such provisions
of the SFO) or pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”), or {b) were required to
be entered in the register kept by the Company pursuant to Section 352
of the SFO, 'were as follows:

(a) Interests in the shares of the Company

ESNR0 EERORESZEZRHAR

RIZTEREZR=+-0 AREAEENE
RAILEREZE (EEREBSRAEEKRI
(TBHRBEBO]) EXVER) 2 kD BER
HREFTHER@BEESFRBEKAEXY
BETRSH I (AEREBEESF RPREAZE
BRXRERBEEREFREIRERAR)
HEBE LA LR ERETESR G Z2RETE
([BETE]) ARNELLARBIMIER
FORE 2 (0)iR 15 E 5 R B E R £ 3521% 18
EEREERALRFEZBLMzBE RAEDN
™

Approximate %
of the issued

Number of share
‘ Long position/ Nature shares held in capital of
Nam? of Director Short position Capacity of interest the Company the Company
| HERLE ARRBBA
5528 #E/ KR 5% ERHE RIEE REEHEIL
Dr. Chan Kwok Keung, Long position Beneficial owner Personal interest 1,600,000 0.67%
Charles (‘Or. Chan) & EEHEEA BAEZE
(Notes 1 & 2) Long position Interest of controlled Corporate interest 57,614,948 24.28%
RElEE LT corporation
(IEE+]) iHE TRREZER DEER
(B3El&2)
Dr. Yap, Allan Long position Beneficial owner Personal interest 1,600,000 0.67%
(“Dr. Yap") (Note 3)
Yap, Allantg £ WA BERERA BA#R
(fYapE+))
(Ff223)
Mr. Lui Siu Tsuen, Long position Beneficial owner Personal interest 3,350,000 1.41%
Richard ("Mr. Lui")
BARAE HE ExEAA EA#R
(Tax4l)
Notes: EoaeE A
1. This interest does not include interasts in underlying shares of 1, BEBATREARFR ZERATAT

equity derivatives of the Company. This interest needs to be
aggregated with those set out in sub-paragraph (b) below to
give the total interest of Dr. Chan in the Company.

Rz ABEBRMNER ZERARTX
)P B BB R A B U ERIEL
MERF 2 RBERE-
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2. Dr. Chan is deemed to have a corporate interest in 57,614,948 2.
shares of the Company by virtue of his interest in Chinaview
International Limited (“Chinaview”). This interest was detailed and
duplicated with the interests as shown in the paragraph “Interests
and Short Positions of Shareholders discloseable under the SFO”

below.

3. This interest does not include interests in underlying shares of 3.
equity derivatives of the Company. This interest needs to be
aggregated with those set out in sub-paragraph (b) below to

give the total interest of Dr. Yap in the Company.

(b) Interests in equity derivatives (as defined in the SFO) of the

% 1 + & 7 Chinaview International
Limited ( [ Chinaview] ) SIEE %M
W8 BERRQFS7,614,04888 1%
D2RABER ZERXBETXIR
ERESROERNETHEZRE

HERAR| —BEL WRZEAFR
MmeEEEE-

FERTEEARIAZREGTET
A7 BMROES -ZEERETX
)P ERFRE RS S Ut B yap®

ITRERBZERBE-

o) MAERFARATETIA(EBERE

Company REEEG) 2#Es
Approximate %
of the
issued share
Name of Long position/ Number of  Exercise price capital of
Director Short position  Capacity Nature of interest ~ Exercisable period  share options pershare  the Company
HK$
FRECET
EZEHE BE/ %R g4 BEitE TEHR BRESHS BRITEE REBOHEIMN
Dr. Chan Long position  Beneficial owner  Personal interest 31 August 2001 to 4,000,000 2.9888 1.69%
BREt 2 ERERA BAER 30 August 2006
—TE-F
NR=Z+-REZE
ZTTRENAZTA
Dr. Yap Long position Beneficial owner ~ Personal interest 31 August 2001 to 3,260,000 2.9888 1.37%
YaptE+ E5e) BEXBEA BAEZR 30 August 2006
—ET-F
NE=t+—-RHZE

kel

“EEAENAZTR




(c) Interests in associated corporation (as defined in the SFO) of the
Company

Interests in share options of PSC Corporation Ltd ("PSC”)

(C) HRARTHEBZE (TERESLY
BRG] 2 ER

AEBEBAERNE ([ERER])

Z A R
Approximate %
Number of of the
Name of Long position/ share options  Exercise price issued share
Director Short position ~ Capacity Nature of interest ~ Exercisable period held in PSC pershare  capital of PSC
S$
‘ BEEREE EREEERT
EEER BR/ %R & BEtE TEEE BREHE FROTEE BFENEIN
kA
Dr. Yap Long position Beneficial owner  Personal interest 20 August 2004 to 5,000,000 0.086 027%
Yapl§ = e EEERA EAER 19 August 2013
ZTEQNE
NAZTBEZE
“F-ZE/\ A1
Mr. Lui Long posttion Beneficial owner  Personal interest 20 August 2004 to 2,000,000 0.088 011%
REE fFe ExERA EARR 19 August 2013
“TEQmE
NAZ+BE
“E-ZENATAE

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2008, none of the directors of
the Company had (a) under Divisicns 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO, nor
were they taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO,
any interests or short positions in the shares, underlying shares or
debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporations (within
the meaning of Part XV of the SFO); (b) any interests which are required
to be entered into the register kept by the Company pursuant to Section
352 of the SFO; or {c) any interests which are required to be notified to
the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.

SHARE OPTION SCHEMES

Details of the share option schemes of the Company are set out in note
47 to the financial statements.

ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE SHARES OR DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed above, at no time during the year was the Company
or any of its subsidiaries a party t¢ any arrangements to enable the
directors of the Company to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition
of shares in; or debentures, of the Company or any other body corporate.

REXFIBEBREEN RZBEEREF=ZA=1T—
A ARFEEHNEQREBESRHEBGANSE
XVEETR8D BABREBERLSLHAERIIZH
BIRXARE R EEN A QR SR E T ERD
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BrEEMzEMER (OB BEETAE
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING BUSINESS EENBEERCERS

ALBEEREANEBFEBZRER MR
AIE810FEERENT

Interests of directors of the Company in competing businesses during
the year required to be disclosed pursuant to Rule 8.10 of the Listing
Rules were as follows:

Name of Director

Name of entity

businesses of which are considered
to compete or likely to compete
with the businesses of the Group

Description of
businesses of the entity
which are considered

to compete or likely

to compete with the
businesses of the Group

Nature of interest of
the director in the entity

HEHEIR Mo Al LS IR EE AT REE
FEBEER FEEERE EZNZER
BEEH HMBRE2EEESE BB BRI 2SS
Dr. Chan China Strategic Holdings Property investment and Chairman and chief
PRiIE L Limited (“CSHL") (Note) development in the PRC executive officer
(Resigned on 186 June 2006)
FHREEFRAT([FE]) ETFEREWERERME IRBITHER
(% 32) (RZBERE
NATARBEE)
PY| Corporation Limited (formerly Property investment and Substantial shareholder and
known as Paul Y.-ITC Construction development in the PRC non-executive director
Holdings Limited) ("PY1")
(Note)
REE@ABR LA ETPEREYERERAE FERRFRIENTES
(A RERTEEER
BBRAR]) ([RE]) (M)
PY1 (Note) Property investment in Substantial shareholder and
Hong Kong non-executive director
RE EEBUENERE TERRERIFENTES
Dr. Yap CSHL (Note) Property investment and Vice chairman
Yapig + PR (Miz) development in the PRC (Resigned on 16 June 2006)

Wing On Travel (Holdings)
Limited (“Wing On”) (Note)

kiR (ERR) AR AR
(k%)) (W:z)

EFEEEMERERAE

Property investment in
Hong Kong and the PRC
EEERTERSMERE

BlERE (RZEEX
ANB A aEE)

Executive director

HITEF




Description of
businesses of the entity
Name of entity which are considered
businesses of which are considered  to compete or likely
to compete or likely to compete to compete with the
with the businesses of the Group businesses of the Group

Nature of interest of

Name of Director the director in the entity

HEFER M RS IREEE AT RE
‘ AEEER AEEEKE EEnaEE
EExEB BRF2EREH BB ERHL ZEEME
Mr. Lui CSHL (Notg) Property investment and Alternate director to
development in the PRC Dr. Yap, vice chairman

(Ceased to be an alternate
to Dr. Yap on 16 June 2006)

B E R () EFREEEERRERAE BlEEYaol§Lt 2 BIES
(RZEERERATARE
TEHEAYapELTZEE
2%)

Wing On (Note) Property investment in Executive director

Hong Kong and the PRC

KE (M 3E) EEARTRASWERE WITEE
Note: Such businesses may be made through its subsidiaries, associated Wi ZSEBNEANBAR BERIHUE

companies or by way of other forms of investments. I E B NESTe
BWERREE_TTRF-RA=FT—BLF
BZARARIERABBEEENBEFERER Y
BEEELT:

The changes in details of the directors’ interests in competing business
previously disclosed in the annual report of the Company for the year
ended 31, March 2005 were set out as follows:

1.

Mr. Chan Kwok Hung ceased to have an interest in competing
business after his retirement as an Executive Director of the
Company at the annual general meeting of the Company held on
1 September 2005 ("AGM™);

Messrs. Fok Kin-ning, Canning (“Mr. Fok”), Cheung Hon Kit and

REBREER_ETAFNAA—HETT
ZERRBERREFRE ([BREAFK
g RETRFNTES —BRE BN
BEXBTBERAEED

2, ERELE([BEAE]) REGEER
lp Tak Chuen, Edmond ceased to have interests in competing EEprER —_EFRFNA —HET
business after their retirement as Non-exacutive Directors of the ZHRFBEERAGRARAFGFHMITES
Company at AGM held on 1 September 2005; —BE BERGREXTREESRE

3. Ms. Shih, Edith ceased to be an alternate director to Mr. Fok MERETITEELAER ST RENA
following Mr. Fok's retirement as an Non-executive Director of —ARAEERAFNTES—BE T
the Company on 1 September 2005. She ceased to have an BHERBEALEZBEIEEZ-BER_F
interest in competing business on 1 September 2005; EFFNA-ENBREEBILEERES

Mo

4. During the year, the Company commenced its business in property ER ARERBETENEREES:
investrment in Hong Kong; and 54

5. During the year, the Company ceased its business in property FRNALFREERRADERERE

development and investrment in the PRC.

Save as disclosed above, none of the directors is interested in any
business apart from the Group’s businesses, which competes or is likely
to compete, either directly or indirectly, with the Group's businesses.

BRENFIERBEEN BEEERAEAEEAR
BEABERREEFFRA L BBEIZEM
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

No contracts of significance to which the Company or any of its
subsidiaries was a party and in which a director of the Company had a
material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the
year or at any time during the year.

INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS OF SHAREHOLDERS
DISCLOSEABLE UNDER THE SFO

So far as is known to the directors of the Company, as at 31 March
2006, the following persons had interests or short positions in the shares
or underlying shares of the Company which would fall to be disclosed to
the Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the
SFQO, or which were recorded in the register required to be kept by the
Company under Section 336 of the SFO:

ESZ2EXENHER

REFRFAFREAEHE FZQRHEEME
MBAAYRITVEIMNERELN REQEE
ENEERAMBRRERSEASNZIEAR

2L
il

REXFERPERINATHEZRRERZR

Sl
)

MADBEERM REEREZA=+—
B THALRALSBRNKBEROPES
REESFRPERNEXVEE2RID AR EX
MARKRBARBEZ G AR IBEBES
R GRAERGRATAEREARFTFEL
BERMzEERAE:

Number of Approximate
underlying shares % of the
{unlisted equity issued share
Long position/ Number of  derivatives of the capital of
Name of Shareholder Short position Capacity shares held Company} held the Company
EERERSG
BE (x27F ALFE
ELmRE ROTBRE
REEH HE/ KR 513 RERGEE fTEIR) BHoEI L
Ms. Ng Yuen Lan, Macy {Note) Long posttion Interest of spouse 57,614,948 - 24.28%
AmELL (i) e EEER
Ms. Ng Yuen Lan, Macy (Note) Long position Interest of spouse 1,600,000 4,000,000 2.36%
EBERT (k) HE kEEs
Dr. Chan (Note) Long position Interest of controlied 57,614,948 - 24.28%
corporation
BREL (M) e RERRZER
Dr. Chan (Note) Long position Beneficial owner 1,600,000 4,000,000 2.36%
BRiEL (F) e BERERA
Chinaview (Note) Long position Interest of controlled 57,614,948 - 24.28%
corporation
Chinaview (# 32) 39y REDTCER
Galaxyway Investments Limited Long position Interest of controlled 57,614,948 - 24.28%
(“Galaxyway”) (Note) carporation
Galaxyway Investments Limited HE REBLRZER
([ Galaxyway) ) (#z)
[TC Carporation Limited Long position Interest of controfled 57,614,948 - 24.28%
(“ITC") (Note) corporation
EECEEEERAS HE RERS2ER

({ERLE]) (M)




Number of Approximate

underlying shares % of the
(unlisted equity issued share
Long position/ Number of  derivatives of the capital of
Name of Shareholder Short position Capacity shares held Company} held the Company
‘ BERERY
#E (XAF X272
ELETRAE BIRE
BREE #R/ KR 51 BFERMNEE TTETIR) BREsl
[TC Investment Holdings Limited Long position Interest of controlled 57,614,948 - 24.28%
("ITC Investment”) (Note) corporation
ITC Investment Holdings Limited HE REDRZESR
(T1TC Investment] ) (¥ 32)
Mankar Assets Limited Long position Interest of controlled 57,614,948 - 24.28%
("Mankar”} (Note) corporation
Mankar Assets Limited iR RAREAEE
{Mankar]) (7 )
Famex lnvestrﬁent Limited Long position Beneficial owner 57,614,848 - 24.28%
{"Famex”) {Note}
HRREBRLA (THEL) HE EHERA
(W 42)
Deutsche Bank Aktiengesellschaft Long position Security interest 20,642,434 - 8.70%
Deutsche Bank Aktiengeselischaft e EHER
Deutscne Bank Aktiengesellschatt Long position Beneficial owner 2,774,585 - 1.17%
Deutsche Bank Aktiengeselischaft B2E ESBEEA
Christian Emil Toggenburger Long position Beneficial owner 16,944,541 - 7.14%
Chiistian Enmil Toggenturger LS8 BEREFA
Christian Emil Toggenburger Long posttion Interests held jointly 4,400,464 - 1.85%
‘ with another persons
Christian Emil Toggenburger S HEMATERBE 2R
Aeneas Capital Management LP Long position Investment manager 11,896,000 - 5.01%
Aeneas Capital Management LP iE © BEgE
Note: M 3E e

Famex is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Mankar. Mankar is a wholly-owned
subsidiary of ITC Investment, which in turn is a wholly-owned subsidiary of TC.
Galaxyway, a wholly-owned subsidiary of Chinaview, owns more than one-third
of the issued!ordinary share capital of ITC. Dr. Chan owns the entire issued share
capital of Chinaview. Ms. Ng Yuen Lan, Macy is the spouse of Dr. Chan. Mankar,
ITC Investment, ITC, Galaxyway, Chinaview, Dr. Chan and Ms. Ng Yuen Lan,
Macy are deemed to be interested in 57,614,848 shares of the Company which
are held by Famex. Ms. Ng Yuen Lan, Macy is deemed to be interested in
1,600,000 shares and 4,000,000 underlying shares (in respect of unlisted equity
derivatives) of the Company held by Dr. Chan.

H B & Mankarz 2 E W B 2 & ° Mankar& ITC
Investmentz = & M B 2 7 MITC Investmentf] &
EREOECZZEWEB AT Chinaviewz ZEH B LR
AlGalaxywaylE B B L EEBRITEBREZSZ
— DA F BRI A Chinaview2 S 0 TR AR (AT
At ARIE+ 2B B Mankar » [TC Investment - &
¥ Galaxyway » Chinaview * BT REGE L L
WEANERFE 257,614,948 AR FIRD R E
EEFZ - FHBPELTREANBEELEEERQF
1,600,0008% i% 3 % 4,000,00008 18 MR 5 (BB IEL
TRATETE) PEEEL-
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Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2008, there was no other
person (other than the directors) who had interests or short positions in
the shares or underlying shares of the Company which would fall to be
disclosed to the Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of
Part XV of the SFO, or which were recorded in the register required to be
kept by the Company under Section 336 of the SFO.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS
For the year ended 31 March 2006:

{ The Group's largest customer and five largest customers
accounted for approximately 20.6% and 57.2% respectively of
the Group's total turnover.

(i) The Group's largest supplier and five largest suppliers accounted
for approximately 26.8% and 75.0% respectively of the Group’s
total purchases (not including purchases of items which are of
capital nature).

So far as the directors are aware, none of the directors, their associates
or any shareholders who owned more than 5% of the Company’s share
capital had any interests in the five largest customers or suppliers of the
Group.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE COMPANY'S LISTED
SHARES

During the year ended 31 March 2008, there were no purchases, sales
or redemptions by the Company, or any of its subsidiaries, of the
Company’s listed shares.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS
There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s

Bye-laws or the laws of Bermuda which would oblige the Company to
offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to the existing shareholders.

BEXFBEEEN R-BEENEFZA=1—
B #EEfh AL (BEHRIIN RAD BN X
ERROTEEREES RBERIFEXVE
E2R3NBIEXMARA R B HKENRIEE
S REBEEIFECHEREERALTFEZ
TaMcgamixg-

TEEFRHESD
HE-_ZEERF=ZR=T+T—RLEE:
(i) FEBZEREPRARES 2 BAE

NEBEBELEBE2206%K%57.2% °

(ih) AEEZEAEEERTIARERE SR
MEAEEREER(TREBELRE
F 2 ERIFE) 226.8%K75.0% -

BEEHMN SEE REZBEALTHEM
BEERRBRASUNULEZER BHERARE
ZEREFPUAAEFHTHEAEMERS

BE HERBEEXR2F2LHRE

HEZZZERF=ZA=Z+T—BLEFE K27
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Information on Corporate Governance Practices adopted by the Company
is set out inithe Corporate Governance Report on pages 21 to 28 of the
Annual Report.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the directors, as at the date of this report, the
Company has maintained sufficient public float as required under the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange.

POST BALANCE SHEET EVENTS

| :
Details of the significant post balance sheet events are set out in note 51
to the financial statements.

AUDITORS

A.resolution‘ will be proposed at the AGM to re-appoint Messrs. Deloitte
Touche Tohmatsu as auditors of the Company.

On behalf of the Board

Dr. Chan Kwok Keung, Charles
Chafrman

Hong Kong, 28 July 2006
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Report of the Auditors
ZEE RS

= BE » BER S BT Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
DEIOItte EBEEsH 35/F One Pacific Place
o ANEES—E358 88 Queensway
/E Hong Kong
=2
TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF HANNY HOLDINGS LIMITED HEREEERLTIRRE

(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the financial statements of Hanny Holdings Limited (the
“Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) on pages 43 to 157 which
have been prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally
accepted in Hong Kong.

RESPECTIVE RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND AUDITORS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of consolidated financial
statements which give a true and fair view. In preparing consolidated
financial statements which give a true and fair view it is fundamental that
appropriate accounting policies are selected and applied consistently.

It is our responsibllity to form an independent opinion, based on our
audit, on those financial statements and to report our opinion solely to
you, as a body, in accordance with Section 90 of the Bermuda Companies
Act, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards
or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

BASIS OF OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on

Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.

An audit includes examination, on a test basis, of evidence relevant to
the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements. It
also includes an assessment of the significant estimates and judgments
made by the directors in the preparation of the consolidated financial
statements, and of whether the accounting policies are appropriate to
the circumstances of the Company and the Group, consistently applied
and adequately disclosed.

We planned and performed our audit so as to obtain all the information
and explanations which we considered necessary in order to provide us
with sufficient evidence to give reasonable assurance as to whether the
consolidated financial statements are free from material misstatement. In
forming our opinion, we also evaluated the overall adeguacy of the
presentation of information in the consclidated financial statements, We
believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

(AFHEEAR LA MAE)
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OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair
view of the state of affairs of the Group at 31 March 2006 and of the loss
and cash flows of the Group for the year then ended and have been
properly prepared in accordance with the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Crdinance.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

28 July 2006
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Consolidated Income Statement

Falkak

For the year ended 31 March 2006 #, £ — E R~ # 2 =+ —8 LEE

2006 2005
HK$’000 HK$'000
NOTES (Restated)
—EER “EERREF
&AL FHEA
Mgz (BESD
Continuing Operations BHEER
Revenue A 8 316,638 257,656
Cost of sales S E KA {278,353) (145,080)
CGross profit e 38,285 112,506
Other income HAHA 10 116,585 102,646
Distribution and selling expenses DHEEEERZ (2,339) (12,432)
Administrative expenses TEHEE (111,342) (122,317)
Other expenses EmpE 11 (50,623) {29,712)
Impairment loss on trademark licenses EIZH R B2 REEE 23 {(164,667) -
Realization of negative goodwill arising BRWRE-—FAMEDQT
on acquisition of additional interest BEIMESEEZREE
in an associate - 2,057
Change in fair value of conversion options Al X EEh y7E 2 7] 5
embedded in convertible notes BN EEES 114,048 -
Finance costs BM%E R 12 (63,466) (15,155)
Share of results of associates A DRIEE (21,494) (64,809)
Impairment loss on goodwill arising WE—BHMELBES
on acquisition of an associate ZBEREEIE 13, 25 - (177,446)
Amortization of goodwill arising BREWERE DT
on acquisition of associates EErESE 25 - (28,089)
Net gain (loss) on disposal of subsidiaries HEMB L E REE QT
and associates ZWaE (B]R)F8 14 921 (15,747)
Loss before income tax BRETISFLAIE B (144,092) (248,508)
Income tax expense ERER T L 15 {4,331) (4,282)
Loss for the year REXBZAFEER
from continuing operations (148,423) (252,790)
Discontinued Operations KEFEER
Profit for the year ERBERZEEEHRF
from discontinued operations 16 52,419 152,552
Loss for the year TEFEEIR 17 (96,004) (100,238)
Attributable to: JE15
Equity helders of the Company KOFZBAERA 8,915 (161,862)
Minority interests CHEREER (104,919) 61,624
(96,004) (100,238)
Distributions R 19 22,463 11,193




2006 2005
HK$’000 HK$'000
NOTES (Restated)
—ETAE —EEIE
FREA FH
W (EE7)
Earnings (Ioés) per share MEEF (F8) 20
From continuing and REBELER
discontinued operations SERBEEK
— Basic — &K HK$0.04 HK$(0.82)
- Diluted —#E HK$0.04 N/AT 8 BB
From continuing operations REFFEERE
- Basic —~ B HK$(0.08) HK$(1.16)
- Diluted -85 HK$(0.08) N/AT i B




Consolidated Balance Sheet

HREeEERER
At31 March2006 # ~ 22 x#%=A=+—8
2006 2005
HK$'000 HK$'000
NOTES (Restated)
—EERE —EBRRE
FHAL F & A
W 2k (BEF))
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment P HERE 21 38,567 70,557
Invastment properties BREME 22 133,000 -
Intangible assets BEEE 23 - 233,475
Goodwil mE 24 6,621 167,908
Interests in associates i /NEIR 25 616,871 632,201
Amount due from an associate JE Uy — Pl Bt 2 2 BB 25 - 2,197
Loan to an associate BP-EHBELEER 25 1,331 1,331
Investments in securities BHEAE 26 - 123,534
Avaliable-for-sale investments aHEERE 27 534,045 ~
Deposits for acquisition of long-term WERHIREZES
investments 29 190,175 35,000
Deferred tax assets REHRIEAE 40 - 18,418
Club debentures EHES 3,595 4,373
1,624,205 1,288,994
CURRENT ASSETS RBEE
Other asset HMEE 30 - 108,000
Inventories FE 317 8,553 587,078
Trade and other receivables B SR EMERFIE 32 59,730 761,904
Available-for-sale investments AHEERE 27 73,500 -
Investments held for trading RIEEEBIREA 33 421,097 -
Conversion options embedded URBEERNEZ
in convertible notes Al R 33 231,509 -
Investments in securities BHIRE 26 - 144,435
Short-term loan receivables BWEHEER 28 20,162 111,851
Short-term loan receivables R B EEALT
from related companies ZHEBER 50 159,559 224,233
Margin loan receivables FEURHFBRER 34 18,680 30,586
Amounts due from associates JE Ui B 2 1 B BRI 25 2,623 -
Tax recoverable mT 3R E A1 923 19,855
Pledged bank deposit BEERITER 35 19,966 20,014
Bank balances and cash BRITEFRES® 6,514 359,603
1,023,716 2,367,559
Agssets classified as held for sale DEANEEEEE 16 1,645,259 -
2,668,975 2,367,559




2006 2005
HK$’000 HK$'000
NOTES (Restated)
ZEERE —EERE
THA Tk
Wi (&E=7)
CURRENT LIABILITIES REBAR®
Trade and other payables ZEREMBEMIE 36 358,856 1,011,814
Margin loan payables BEAFRER 34 153 253
Bills payable ARES 34 422 3,644
Tax payable BT ITE 33,264 91,420
Borrowings —~ due within one year BR——FRNE 37 591,629 85,881
Obligations under finance leases B A A RE
- due within one year — — 4 (A 2| 81 38 - 462
Bank overdrafts RITEX 37 33,187 46,978
1,017,511 1,240,452
Liabilities directly associated with assets THEAETHHEEEE
classified as held for sale CEENEEAE 16 854,328 -
1,871,839 1,240,452
NET CURRENT ASSETS REBEESRE 797,136 1,127,107
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT EEHERTEEME
LIABILITIES 2,321,341 2,416,101
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES EMEBE
Borrowings - due after one year B — —FEEE 37 95,693 157,470
Amount due to a minority shareholder e — 1 LB R 5E 39 - 2,526
Deferred tax liabilities REMIERE 40 6,325 114
102,018 160,110
2,219,323 2,255,991
CAPITAL AND RESERVES BEARGFB
Share capital R A 41 2,372 2236
Reserves B HE 1,866,517 1,804,138
Equity attributable to equity holders TABREREA
of the Company FEAS AR AR 25 1,868,889 1,806,374
Minority interests LEREER 350,434 449617
2,219,323 2,255,991

The ﬁnahcial statements on pages 43 to 157 were approved and
authorized for issue by the Board of Directors on 28 July 2006 and are

signed on its behalf by:

EFECON _EEXRELA-TNBHARS
TR EREEFEISTEZHERR IHAT
BEREREF:

DR. CHAN KWOK KEUNG, CHARLES DR. YAP, ALLAN \

CHAIRMAN MANAGING DIRECTOR
& YAP, ALLAN{E &
EN 2 FEWEE




Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

HAEKRBEEDR

For the year ended 31 March 2006 # £

EEXEZA=ZT B EHE

Attributable 1o equity holders of the Company
ALAREREARS

Cumency  Capital Investment
Share Share  Capital Contriouted translation redemption  revaluation Other  Retained Minority Total
capital  premium  reserve  surplus  reserve  reserve  reserves  reserves profits Total  interests equity
HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKEO00  HKS000  HKSO00  HKS000  HKS000  HKS'000  HKB000  HKS'000
fofea)  fnotec) {ote b)
S &% RE L8
BE ROWEE EX@E E2RY NNME BOHRE B4R HegG RERY 8% RIER RBR4E
TEL +AL FERL TEL FEL T&L THR TEL S T FEA SR THA
{#iza) {rize) (W sh)
At Apr 2004 RZZFERE
mE-R 1,866 99,221 (21,581} 1,603,329 16,426 592 - 14,448 158,880 1,873,181 405,157 2278338
Currency realignment HERE - - - - 2475 - - - - 2475 @21y (1,798
Share of reserves of EERELARE
ass0ciates - - - - - - - {14249 - {14249 - (14249
Net income {expense) ERRBRERR
recognized drectly nequity R ZHA
(xH) 58 - - - - T - - (14249 S w2y (1804
Redlized on disposdl HENS
of subsidiaries LERER - - (5561 - 7842 - - 780 - {524) - (524)
Releass upan LE/BARLE
disposalideemed dispossd BB E
of interest in assotiates BARER - - - - - - - (187) - {187 - (187)
Reaized on fiquidation of ~ FE—REE
an associate LAKEE - - - - 27 - - - - o7 - 27
{Loss) proft for the year, ~ AEE ()
25 restated BH(EES) - - - - - - - - 181862 (161,862)  B1,624  (100,288)
Total recognized income and - AEE T BARA
expense for the year RETEE - - 556) o034 - - (224) (61862 (1743200 57351 (116.969)
Issus of shares BOR0 370 118978 - - - - - - - 119,346 - 119346
Share issue expenses BORGEM - (640) - - - - - - - 640) - 1840)
Dividend paid SuRE - - - - - - - -9 (1,509 - %)
Acquistion of further interest  RE—RIBIB L &
in & subsidiary EhBRREE - - - - - - - - - - (28 (2891
Transfer 2% - - - (8521 - - - - 1B - - -
AL31 March 2005, RZZREE
as restated = ﬁ Z+-§
(EEH) 223 27557 {22,137) 1,448,202 26,770 582 - (7.798) 140952 1806374 449617 2,255,991
Efiectof adoptionof new BRI EHE %
accounting palicies ol 2 & & (Rt - - R - - - - N 2100 56184 - 56184
At 1 Aprit 2005 H-ERHE
RE-8
- a3 restated -BEH 2236 217,557 - 1,448,202 26,770 592 - 4149 183052 1862558 449617 2312175
Curency redignment NERE - - - - [739) - - - - (739) 4897 4,158
Share of reserves of EEBENEEE
associates - - - - - - (642) 8,246 - 7,604 - 7,604
Fair value change in THEEREL
avallable-for-sale LTEESE
investments . - . § - - s - - R8s - 8




Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

For the year ended 31 March2006 # 2 — 2L X £ = A =2+ -8 L 5 K

Attributable to equity holders of the Company
ALERERE AL
Curency  Capital Investment

Share Share Capital Contributed  translation redemption revaluation Other  Retained Minority Total
capital  premium reserve  surplus  reserve  reserve  reserves  reserves profits Total  interests equity
HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKE000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000
fnotea  fnote¢) {note b}
e X RE 8
RE RORE SxkE ESRE AREE BEEE EGRG HUHE RBEA 8% RREE RASE
FEL FEA it FRL FEA FE1 FEAL TEL THL TEL TR i
{Figa) (% el [F7itbl
Net income (expense) EERRAERARED
recognized directlyinequity 2 A (X E) 58 - - - - (739) - (2498 826 - 499 4897 (200%4)
Avising on acquisition of LE-HKE
interest in a subsidiary N WE%‘&B%EE - - - - - - - - - - 559 559
Realized on disposal of
subsidiarles - - - - 569 - - - - 569 280 849
Redlized on disposal of
an assaciate - - - - - - - (2,483 - {2,463} - {2,463)
{Loss} profit for the year - - - - - - - - 8915 8915 (104919  (36,004)
Total recognized income and - AEFEEHRTA
expense for the year RB34E - - - - S48 578 8915 (7970 9908y (117153
Issue of shares - Bk 100 34050 - - - - - - - 4150 - 34150
lssue of sharss upon scip. B HE
dividend Kl 12,578 - - - - - - - 12,614 - 12,614
Dstbuirs A - - - - - - - - ) (24 - ey
At 31 March 2006
2372 264185 - 1,448,202 26,600 592 {32.499) 9932 149504 1868889 350,434 2219323

Notes: T 42

@ Capital reserve represents the goodwill arising on acquisitions of (a) EXAFEEER _ET-—FNA—BHETK
subsidiaries and associates prior to 1 April 2001, BHBARRBEARTIBESEZESE-

{b) Other reserves represent the goodwill reserve and other reserves of the (b) HihBEEAEER _ETRENA -8
Group’s associates shared by the Group prior to 1 April 2005. The BEAEEMEARZEEHEREMR
goodwill and other reserves of HK$11,947,000 as at 31 March 2005 HR_BETEREF=ZR=T—RZBERE
was transferred to retained profits as at 1 April 2005 in accordance with 11,047, 0008 TERBEEBV KRS
the transitional provision of HKFRS 3. FAIESRZBEE RN EBREER TR

FEA—BZREHEF-

© The contributed surplus of the Company at the respective balance shest (c) AREMRELERAZERRGE:
date represented:

{0 the credit arising from the transfer of the share premium account (i) AARR—AANEZ_A=-+EHR
of the Company as at 20 February 1998 and 19 February 2003 —EE= ? BE+hBlRGHEE
to the contributed surplus account of the Compariy; EERIARAZEHNBBERE

EZHE:

(i the credit arising from the reduction of the nominal value of the (i) R—AANFRZZEZ=ZFHEE
shares of the Company in 1999 and 2003; and LRARMEERELEZER &

(iii a balance as reduced by amounts transferred to the deficit (iii) BEEBECEARUEEASEES
account to eliminate the deficit of the Group as at 31 January AR —EEEF—R=+—R =%
2000, 31 January 2001, 20 March 2003 and 31 March 2005. E-f—-H=+—-H-ZFF%= ﬁ =

AZ+RAR-_ZEBRAF=R=+—
BZEMERZELR




Consolidated Cash Flow Statement
FERERER

For the yearenced 31 March 2006 # 2 — £ £ x# Z A =+ — B L £ &

2006 2005
HK$'000 HK$'000
(Restated)
ZEER —ETRF
F# A T B A
(E5)
OPERATING ACTIVITIES R R
Loss for the year FEEEIR (96,004) (100,238)
Adjustments for: FE:
Interest income FLB U A (44,398) {22,651)
Finance costs BB 75,894 18,198
Income tax expense FrigfiE = 53,669 117,397
Increase in fair value of conversion options ARBRERANTFTHRE
embedded in convertible notes ZREEEEN (114,048) -
Share of results of associates BISHEDREE 21,494 64,909
Impairment loss on goodwill arising on WE—EBERNAEELEZ
acquisition of an associate BEZRBEESE - 177,448
Impairment loss on trademark licenses BRI RZRERR 164,667 -
Impairment loss on available-for-sale AREEREZ
investments RIEEB 49,845 -
impairment loss on club debentures EMBEFZRERE 778 -
Amortization of goodwill arising from WigmaenmEE 2
acquisition of associates B - 28,089
Net {gain) loss on disposal of subsidiaries HEWNBARREE LT
and associates 2 (k) BIEEE 921) 15,747
Net unrealized holding gain on PR EMREZ
other investrments KBRS - (17,223)
Increase in fair value of investments BIEEEREZ
held for trading W EERE N (43,313) -
Allowance for (reversal of allowance for) RRHFEER
margin loan receivables RECEREDHR) 4,922 (2,387)
Realization of negative goodwil arising on BRWE-—EHELQA
acquisiticn of an associate ZEBE - 8)
Amortization of intangible assets B EEEIHE 806 51,066
Allowance for slow moving and BHEEBERE
obsolete inventories B 75,732 25,588
Allowance for bad and doubtful debts RIBERERB 16,672 22,269
Depreciation and amortization of property, MR ERBERER
plant and equipment 5 13,804 19,785
Allowance for loan receivables WS TCEE 11,542 8,338
Loss on disposal of property, plant HEME - BERE
and equipment Z &R 2,736 1,098
Net loss on disposal of investment HMERERAE BB TE
securities - 29,712
Realization of negative goodwill arising on SR E—fE
acquisition of additional interest in DEBEIMERFTESE
an associate ZEEE - (2,057)




2006 2005
HK$'000 HK$’000
(Restated)
—ETARE —ETHEF
T #EA THA
(sgE5))
Operating cash flows before movements BEESEBRZ
in working capital WEBSHE 193,877 435,078
Decrease in other asset Hah EER L 108,000 37,085
(Increase) decrease in inventories FE GEM B (113,068) 262,639
Increase in trade and other receivables g 5 K A A E BRI (70,193) (36,899)
(Increase) decreass in investments BEBEERE S
held for trading/other investments HMEE (Zm) md (214,890) 13,623
Decrease in margin loan receivables FEWMAFRE R 9,945 4,174
Increase (decrease) in trade and g5 kEMENKIE
other payables = Ofi ) 46,790 (260,297)
Decrease in margin loan payables BNFTREEZR D (100) (587)
Decrease in bills payable ERERRS (3,222) (1,295)
Cash (used in) generated from operations BERER (R EEZRSE (42,861) 453,521
Interest and. finance charges paid HENE R BER (59,891) (8,369)
Overseas tax paid Bz BoNRIE (132,172) (43,607)
Hong Kong'Profits Tax (paid) refunded (Zf1)RBEBREW (662) 386
NET CASH (USED IN) FROM ReEXxR (BH) EE
OPERATING ACTIVITIES ZIREFE (235,586) 401,931




Consolidated Cash Flow Statement
mERERER

For the year ended 31 March 2006 # 2 —~ 5 &£ x££z A =+ — 8 L £ &

2006 2005
HK$’000 HK$'000
NOTES (Restated)
—EERE —ETRE
T & T # A
(3 (873))
INVESTING ACTMITIES REXEK
Repayment of short-term loan receivables EERHERER 234,543 29,588
Decrease (increase) in pledged bank EEMEITER
deposits A (35 ) 48 (20,014)
Interest received Wi 2 40,573 18,123
Amounts (repaid to) advanced by associates ({518 ) BE & D T 845K
S B E R BB (4,168) 14,256
Disposal of subsidiaries LENERR 43 2,819 7,353
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEME BB
plant and equipment REBRERIE 365 1,274
Increase in short-term loan receivables FEUR RS BAE SR8 0 (31,802) (105,755)
Acquisition of interest in associates HEBE QRIS (24,123) {44,148)
Purchase of property, plant and equipment BEME- HBERR (15,470) (14,229)
Acquisition of available-for-sale investments/  WEERIEHEERE
investment securities EHERE (33,176) (123,348)
Proceeds from disposal of LEBHREMEIE
investment securities - 150,255
Repayment of short-term loan receivable — R A 7
from a related company FEUWEHERER 131,693 32,890
Dividend received from an associate Wzl R a R E 1,542 4,668
Increase in short-term loan receivable from EREE) N
a related company CHRE g A0 (92,324) (89,758)
Proceeds from disposal of an associate HERERAMERE 1,750 ) 10
Deposits paid for acquisition of TRHEEREREES
long-term investments (155,175) (35,000)
Acquisition of an interest in subsidiaries WERB A EER 42 (42,389) -
Acquisition of additional interest in subsidiaries U EEHI BN R EIMER - (37,320)
Redemption (acquisition) of FEE (W) L™
unlisted debt security BE5iE2 12,000 (12,000}
Purchase of convertible notes FBARHBER (650,000) -
NET CASH USED IN INVESTING ACTIVITES REXBEH
ZEEFE (623,292) (228,155)




2006 2005
HK$000 HK$'000
(Restated)
TEEXE —EETREF
FTHEA THA
(&%)
FINANCING ACTIVITIES MEXER
Bank loans raised IR ITER 976,527 886,161
Other loans raised L EMER 783,000 10,000
Net proceeds from issue of shares EITRRMPTIRFIE 34,150 118,500
Repaymients of bank loans EBBETER (855,136) {1,010,697)
Repayments of other loans BEEMER (384,241) -
Repayments of obligations EEREME&E
under finance leases (462) (1,070)
Repayment to a minority shareholder EE—ULEHBRERE - (10)
Dividends paid A PN (9,850) (10,987)
NET CASH FROM (USED IN) REXXKEE (BHH) 2
FINANCING ACTIVITIES ReFRE 543,988 (8,103)
NET (DECREASE) INCREASE INCASHAND HBE&RESZH
CASH EQUIVALENTS ORL) & E 5 (314,890) 170,673
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS E2RERREEH
AT BEGINNING OF THE YEAR 312,625 141,094
EFFECT OF FOREIGN EXCHANGE EExgHo s
RATE CHANGES 1,608 858
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS EREERESEE
AT END OF THE YEAR (657) 312,625
ANALYSIS OF THE BALANCES OF CASH BeRREESH
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS EEaN
Bank balances and cash WITHEEFRRE 6,514 359,603
Bank overdrafts RITIEX (33,187) (48,978)
Bank balances and cash classified STHRARAHEEEEL
as assets held for sale HITHEERRSE 26,016 -
(657) 312,625




Notes to the Financial Statements

B R M

For the yearended 31 March 2006 # £ — 2 £ x# Z A2+ —a &% &

1.

GENERAL

The Company was incorporated in Bermuda on 3 September
1991 as an exempted company with limited liability under the
Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as amended) and its shares
are listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”). The address of the registered office of the
Company is Clarendon House, 2 Church Street, Hamiton HM11,
Bermuda and the address of the principal place of business of
the Company is 8th Floor, Paul Y. Centre, 51 Hung To Road,
Kwun Tong, Kowloon, Hong Kong.

During the vear, the Group was principally engaged in trading of
computer related products, consumer electronic products,
securities trading and property development, investment and
trading.

As set out in Note 16, the business of trading of computer
related products was disposed of and the business of trading of
consumer electronic products was discontinued subsequent to
the balance sheet date.

The financial information are presented in Hong Kong Dollars,
which is the same as the functional currency of the Company.

CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES/APPLICATION OF
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

In the current year, the Group has applied, for the first time, a
number of new Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(*HKFRSs”), Hong Kong Accounting Standards (*HKASs”) and
Interpretations (hereinafter collectively referred to as “new HKFRSS”)
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(the “HKICPA") that are effective for accounting pericds beginning
on or after 1 January 2005. The application of the new HKFRSs
has resulted in a change in the presentation of the income
staternent, balance sheet and the statement of changes in equity.
In particular, the presentation of minority interests and share of
tax of associates and discontinued operations have been changed
under HKAS 1 “Presentation of Financial Statements”. The
changes in presentation have been applied retrospectively. The
adoption of the new HKFRSs has resulted in changes to the
Group's accounting policies in the following areas that have an
effect on how the results for the current and prior accounting
years are prepared and presented (see Note 3 for the financial
impact).

—REBR
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UEBeHRARFAEMR L EiRG
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[ DI TR /NI = I
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Hamilton HM 11, Bermuda * M & 2 ]
TELEMB MM EE B AEEES
BEES1SRRELCER LB

REAFE AGEEXEREETREME
ROEBETERES BEFEEURY
EBHR REREE-

MK e ES EEERE Tk
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CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES/APPLICATION OF
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(Continued)

Business Combinations

In the prior year, the Group has applied HKFRS 3 Business
Combinations which is effective for business combinations for
which the agreement date is on or after 1 January 2005. On
1 April 2005, the Group has applied the transitional provision of
HKFRS 3 in relation to goodwill and negative goodwill arising
from business combinations for which the agreement date is
before 1 January 2005 previously recognized and brought forward
as at 1 January 2005 and the principal effects are summarized
below:

Gooawill

In previous periods, goodwill arising on acguisitions prior 1o
1 April 2001 was held in reserves, and goodwill arising on
acquisitions after 1 April 2001 was capitalized and amortized
over its estimated useful life. The Group has applied the relevant
transitional provisions in HKFRS 3 (the “Transitional Provision”).
Goodwill previously recognized in reserves has been transferred
to the Group’s retained profits on 1 April 2005. With respect to
goodwill arising on acquisitions after 1 April 2001 which previously
capitalized on the balance sheet and included in intangible assets
or included in interests in associates, the Group has discontinued
amortizing such goodwill from 1 April 2005 onwards and goodwill
will be tested for impairment at least annually. Goodwill arising on
acquisitions after 1 January 2005 is measured at cost less
accumulated impairment losses after initial recognition. As a result
of this change in accounting policy, no amortization of goodwill
has been charged for the year ended 31 March 2006. In
accordance with the Transitional Provision, the Group has
transferred goodwill previously held in capital reserves and other
reserves of approximately HK$22,566,000 and HK$11,947,000
respectively to retained profits as at 1 April 2005 (see Note 3 for
the financial impact).

SN BRED EASEMBBEE

Al ()
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ErER ALSBERREEVERS
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X ERREERBREHA_STRE
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X)) AR EETERZBEER
ZENFHA-HEBEREBEN-F
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Notes to the Financial Statements

R M

For the year ended 31 March2006 # £ = £ E - # Z A =2+ — g L £ 8

2.

CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES/APPLICATION OF
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(Continued)

Business Combinations (Continued)

Excess of the Group's interest in the net fair value of acquiree’s
identifiable assets, liabiiities and contingent liabiiities over cost
(oreviously known as “negative goodwill”)

In accordance with HKFRS 3, any excess of the Group’s interest
in the net fair value of acquiree’s identifiable assets, liabilities and
contingent liabilities over the cost of acquisition is recognized
immediately in profit or loss in the period in which the acquisition
takes place. In previous periods, negative goodwill arising on
acquisitions prior to 1 April 2001 of approximately HK$423,000
was held in capital reserve and negative goodwill arising on
acquisitions after 1 April 2001 of approximately HK$225,000 was
presented as a deduction from interest in associates and released
to income based on an analysis of the circumstances from which
the balance resulted. In accordance with the Transitional Provision,
the Group has derecognized all discount on acquisition as at
1 April 2005 of which negative goodwill of approximately
HK$423,000 previously recorded in capital reserve, and
approximately HK$225,000 previously presented as a deduction
from interests in associates (see Note 3 for the financial impact).

Intangible assets

In previous pericds, intangible assets were amortized over their
estimated useful lives. For the period beginning on 1 April 2005,
the Group applies, for the first time, HKAS 38 “Intangible Assets”
which requires intangible assets to be assessed at the individual
asset level as having either finite or indefinite life. A finite-life
intangible asset is amortized over its estimated useful life whereas
an intangible asset with an indefinite useful life is carried at cost
less accumulated impairment losses (if any). Intangible assets
with indefinite lives are not subject 1o amortization but are tested
for impairment annually or more frequently when there are
indications of impairment. In accordance with the transitional
provisions in HKAS 38, the Group reassessed the useful lives of
its intangible assets on 1 April 2005 and concluded that certain
trademark licenses with a total carrying amount of
HK$226,687,000 recognized under the predecessor accounting
standard have indefinite useful lives. The Group has applied the
revised useful lives prospectively and discontinued amortizing
intangible assets with indefinite useful lives from 1 April 2005. No
amortization has been charged in relation to intangible assets
with indefinite useful lives for the year ended 31 March 2006, As
a result of this change in accounting estimate, amortization charge
for the year ended 31 March 2006 has decreased by
approximately HK$4,566,000. Comparative figures have not been
restated.
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CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES/APPLICATION OF
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(Continued)

Owner-occupied Leasehold interest in Land

In previous periods, owner-occupied leasehold land and buildings
were included in property, plant and equipment measured using
a combination of revaluation model. In the current year, the Group
has applied HKAS 17 “Leases”. Under HKAS 17, the land and
buildings elements of a lease of land and buildings are considered
separately for the purposes of lease classification, unless the
lease payments cannot be allocated reliably between the land
and buildings elements, in which case, the entire lease is generally
treated as a finance lease. To the extent that the allocation of the
lease payments between the land and buildings elements can be
made reliably, the leasehold interests in land are reclassified to
prepaid lease payments under operating leases, which are carried
at cost and amortized over the lease term on a straight-line
basis. As no reliable allocation between the land and buildings
elements can be made, the leasehold interests in land continue
to be accounted for as property, plant and eguipment and the
adoption of this accounting policy has had no impact on the
consolidated financial statements.

Financial Instruments

In the current year, the Group has applied HKAS 32 “Financial
Instruments: Disclosure and Presentation” and HKAS 39 “Financial
Instruments: Recognition and Measurement”. HKAS 32 requires
retrospective application. The adoption of HKAS 32 has had no
material effect on the presentation of financial instruments in the
financial statements of the Group. HKAS 39, which is effective for
accounting periods beginning on or after 1 April 2005, generally
does not permit to recognize, derecognize or measure financial
assets and liabilities on a retrospective basis. The principal effects
on the Group as a result of implementation of HKAS 39 are
summarized below:

Classification and measurement of financial assets and financial
fiabilities

The Group has applied the relevant transitional provisions in
HKAS 39 with respect to classification and measurement of
financial assets and financial fiabilities that are within the scope of
HKAS 39.
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2.

CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES/APPLICATION OF
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Debts are equity securities previously accounted for under the
benchmark treatment of SSAP 24

On or before 31 March 2005, the Group classified and measured
its investments in debt and equity securities in accordance with
the benchmark treatment of Statement of Standard Accounting
Policies No 24 “Accounting for Investment in Securities” (“SSAP
24"). Under SSAP 24, investments in debt or equity securities are
classified as “investment securities”, “other investments” or *held-
to-maturity investments” as appropriate. "Investment securities”
are carried at cost less any identified impairment losses while
“other investments” are measured at fair value, with unrealized
gains or losses included in the profit or loss. Held-to-maturity
investments are carried at amortized cost less any identified
impairment losses. From 1 April 2005 onwards, the Group
classifies and measures its investments in debt and equity
securities in accordance with HKAS 39. Under HKAS 39, financial
assets are classified as “financial assets at fair value through
profit and loss”, “available-for-sale financial assets”, "loans and
receivables”, or "held-to-maturity investments”. “Financial assets
at fair value through profit and loss” and "available-for-sale financial
assets” are carried at fair value, with changes in fair values
recognized in profit and loss and equity, respectively. “Loans and
receivables” and "held-to-maturity investments” are measured at
amortized cost using the effective interest method (see Note 3 for
the financial impact).

Cn 1 April 2005, the Group classified and measured its investments
in equity securities in accordance with the transitional provisions
of HKAS 39. As a result, “investments in securities” amounted to
HK$123,534,000 and HK$144,435,000 have been classified as
“available-for-sale investments” and “investments held for trading”,
respectively. On 1 April 2005, unquoted equity investments of
which their fair value cannot be determined reliably are carried at
cost less impairment (see Note 3 for the financial impact).
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CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES/APPLICATION OF
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(Continued)

Financial Instruments (Continued)

Financial assets and financial liabilities other than debt and equity
securities

From 1 April 2005 onwards, the Group has classified and
measured its financial assets and financial liabilities other than
debt and equity securities (which were previously outside the
scope of SSAP 24) in accordance with the reguirements of HKAS
39. As mentioned above, financial assets under HKAS 39 are
classified as “financial assets af fair value through profit or loss”,
“available-for-sale financial assets”, “loans and receivables™ or
*neld-to-maturity financial assets”. Financial liabilities are generally
classified as “financial fiabilities at fair value through profit or loss”
or “other financial liabilties”. Other financial liabilities are carried at
amortized cost using the effective interest method. The adoption
of HKAS 38 has had no material effect to the financial assets and
financial liabilities as at 1 April 2005 other than debt and equity
securities of the Group.

Derivatives

From 1 April 2005 onwards, all derivatives that are within the
scope of HKAS 39 are required to be carried at fair value at each
balance sheet date regardiess they are deemed as held for trading
or designated as effective hedging instruments. For derivatives
that are deemed as held for trading, changes in fair values are
recognized in profit or loss for the pericd in which they arise.

In the prior years, gain on disposal on 17.5% interest in a subsidiary
has been deferred as the Group has written a put option to the
purchaser which provides an option to the purchaser to put the
17.5% equity interest back to the Group at a fixed price. The put
option has an exercise period of three years from the date of
original disposal in December 2003. The put option constitutes a
financial derivative which was required toc be measured at fair
value upon application of HKAS 39.

in addition to the conversion options embedded in the debt
instrument in respect of convertible notes set out below, the
Group reassesses the fair value of the put option written by the
Group in respect of the 17.5% equity interest of a subsidiary and
restated the put option at fair value on 1 April 2005 with the
corresponding adjustment of HK$28,594,000 credited to retained
earnings (see Note 3 for the financial impact).
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2.

CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES/APPLICATION OF
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
{Continued)

Financial Instruments {Continued)
Investment in convertible notes

From 1 April 2005 onwards, the Group has applied HKAS 39 to
the convertible notes, which comprise of a conversion option
embedded in a debt instrument, it acquired during the year ended
31 March 2006. In accordance with HKAS 39, the conversion
option embedded in the debt instrument is accounted for
separately as a derivative deemed as held for trading. Changes in
fair value of the conversion options are recognized directly in
profit or loss. The debt component is designated as “available-
for-sale investments” with fair value changes recognized directly
in equity (see Note 3 for the financial impact).

Non-current assets held for sale and discontinued operations

In the current year, the Group has, for the first time, applied
HKFRS 5 “Non-Current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued
Operations” (“HKFRS 57). HKFRS 5 requires an entity to classify
a non-current asset {(or disposal group) as held for sale if its
carrying amount will be recovered principally through a sale
transaction rather than continuing use. The assets classified as
held for sale should be measured at the lower of carrying amount
and fair value, less costs to sell. The Group has applied the
relevant transitional provisions in HKFRS 5 and elected to apply
HKFRS 5 prospectively to non-current assets (or disposal groups)
that meet the criteria of held for sale and operations that mest
the criteria to be classified as discontinued on or after 1 April
2005. In the current year, assets with carrying amounts of
HK$1,645,259,000 and the associated liabilities with carrying
amounts of HK$854,328,000 have been classified as “assets
held for sale” and “fiabilities associated with assets classified as
held for sale”, respectively. Comparative consolidated income
statement is also represented for discontinued operations.
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CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES/APPLICATION OF
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(Continued)

Share-based payment

From 1 April 2005 onwards, the Group has applied HKFRS 2
“Share-based payment” which requires an expense to be
recognized where the Group buys goods cr obtains services in
exchange for shares or rights over shares (“equity-settled
transactions”), or in exchange for other assets equivalent in value
to a given number of shares of rights over shares (“cash-settled
transactions”). The principal impact of HKFRS 2 on the Group is
in relation to the expensing of the fair value of directors’ and
employees’ share options of the Company and its subsidiaries
determined at the date of grant of the share options over the
vesting period. Prior to the application of HKFRS 2, the Group
did not recognize the financial effect of these share options until
they were exercised. In relation to shares granted before 1 April
2005, the Group has not applied HKFRS 2 to shares granted on
or before 7 November 2002 and shares granted after 7 November
2002 and had vested before 1 April 2005 in accordance with the
relevant transitional provisions. The Group had no share granted
after 7 November 2002 and had not yet vested on 1 April 2005,
and accordingly, no retrospective restatement is required.
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2.

CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES/APPLICATION OF
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
{Continued)

Hotel properties

HK Interpretation 2 “The Appropriate Accounting Policies for Hotel
Properties” (“"HK-INT 2"} clarifies the accounting policy for owner-
operated hotel properties. In previous periods, the self-operated
hotel properties of the Group's associate were carried at cost
less impairment loss and were not subject to depreciation.
HK-INT 2 requires owner-operated properties to be classified as
property, plant and eqguipment in accordance with HKAS 16
“Property, Plant and Equipment” and therefore be accounted for
either using the cost model or the revaluation model. The Group’s
associate has resolved to account for these hotel properties using
the cost model. In the absence of any specific transitional
provisions in HK-INT 2, the new accounting policy has been
applied retrospectively. Comparative figures have been restated.
Share of loss of the associate for the year ended 31 March 2005
has been increased by HK$937,000 (see Note 3 for financial
impact).

SUMMARY OF THE EFFECTS OF THE CHANGES IN
ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The effects of the changes in the accounting policies described
in Note 2 on the results for the current and prior years are as
follows:

{0 On results

For the year ended 31 March 2005
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Increase in share of FEASEE & ]
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Decrease in profit for ERHEMR D
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3. SUMMARY OF THE EFFECTS OF THE CHANGES IN 3. ENBEREDEERE (&)
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

0 On results (Continued) (i) HEAE (R
For the year ended 31 March 2006 BE-_ZERX#=ZRA=+R1LHF
)4
HKAS 1 HKAS 38 HKAS 39 HKFRS 3 Total effects
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
{Note 2) {Note 2) {Note 2} (Note 2)
BB EB & EBRUEER
gt &g G ER EHEE] LR mge
F1% 2384 £39% B34
FHEL FARA Tk FEL FEL
(W42 (f322) (¥ 3£2) (B322)
Decrease in realization of B rE—f
negative goodwil arising on B R EIEH
acquisition of additionat BREEZ
interast in an associate EHERYD - - - {23) {23)
Decrease in amortization of BERBRATGERELY
goodwill arising on BEEERES
acquisition of interests in
subsidiaries - - - 29,780 29,780
Decrease in amortization of BEER)
trademark licenses - 4,566 - - 4,566
Decrease In amertization of WEREA W%&Z
goodwill arising on accisition BEEHAD
of agsociates - - - 8,321 8,321
Increase in share of losses of EHBELASEZEN
associates (2,615) - - - (2,615)
Decrease in income tax expense  FTEH = R > 2,615 - - - 2,615
Increase in fair value of GRRAZERNEL
conversion options embedded  HBREZ
in convertible notes LEEEZEM - - 114,048 - 114,048

increase in profit for the year F PR FIE - 4,566 114,048 38,078 156,692
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3. SUMMARY OF THE EFFECTS OF THE CHANGES IN
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(il On income statement line items

For the year ended 31 March 2005

E‘t

3. g

(i)

7

F&

HUWHKRIEE

HREHTZERE (4)

REZ_EEZHE=ZAZ+—R

k4
HKAS 1 HK-INT 2 Total effects
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
(Note 2) {Note 2)
EESHENE1R THEREZEH o2
T # T %A S v
(M 222) (FF222)
Increase in share of BiEBE QT
losses of associates -Spi=Bill (4,247) 937) (5,184)
Decrease in income tax A8 & 38
expense 4,247 - 4,247
Decrease in profit for FEBRMR D
- (937) (937)
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3. SUMMARY OF THE EFFECTS QF THE CHANGES IN EHBESTLEESE ()
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
For the year ended 31 March 2006 BE-EE %z HZ+8L%
B
HKAS 1 HKAS 38 HKAS 39 HKFRS 3 Total effects
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
(Note 2} (Note 2) (Note 2) (Note 2)
BERITE FEGHE FEEHE FRYBHES Bye
BlE1 BlE 385 ElER HEEWNE
FHA TERAL THA THL TRA
(3221 (F5422) (T 322 (H322)
Decrease in administrative HHEZRS
expenses - 4,566 ~ 29,780 34,346
Decrease in rezlization of ERYWE-M
negative goodwill arising on BERBEN
acquisition of additional BEELEZ
Interest in an assoclate BEHERD - - - {23) {@3)
Decrease in amortization of WERELRE
goadwil arising on 28 é%éﬁﬁw‘
acquisition of associates = - - 8,321 8,321
Decrease in share of results of BB A ]
assaciates £EHD {2,615) - - - (2,615)
Decrease in Income tax expense  FTEH A 2,615 - - - 2,615
Increase in fair value of conversion T RERBREHBEY
options embedded in LIEEED
convertible notes - ~ 114,048 - 114,048
- 4566 114,048 38,078 156,692
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3. SUMMARY OF THE EFFECTS OF THE CHANGES IN 3. SHHESDEERE (4)
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
The cumulative effects of the new HKFRSs as at respective FEAEVERSEMNEEEER Y25
balance sheet dates are summarized below:; FEBALmT:
As at 31 March 2005 A EEEHE =+ —H
As at Adjustments
31 March As at on As at
2005 Retrospective 31 March 1 April 1 April
{originally adjustments 2005 2005 2005
stated) HKAS 1 HK-INT 2 (restatad) {Note) (restated)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKE000 HK$'000
RIBRIE BYEE A-ZS5E WZZZTE R-ZEIE
ZBz+-B EEeiE EB% ZE=1-H iy mE~H
(NExEH) EIESE 8 (B3) -BHNEB (E7)
(B35

tEL TEA TR A THA THL

Property, plant and equipment nE BELRRE 70,557 - - 70557 - 70,557
Interests in associates BELARS 632,201 - {937) 631,264 27,590 658,854
Investments in securities (non-current) BHLE (AT 123534 - - 123,534 (123,534) -
Available-for-sale investments ELERE - - - 123,534 123,534

144435 (144,435) -

Investments in securities {current) BERE (78) 144,435 - -
Investments held for trading BEEERAE - - - - 144,435 144,435
Trade and other payables BHRERENGE (1,011 ,814) - - (1011814) 28,504 (983,220
Other net assets EHEERE 2,298,015 - - 2298015 - 2288015
Total effects on assets and fiabiliies HEERBE BYE 2,256,928 - [937) 2,255,991 56,184 232,175
Share capital BE 2236 - - 2,236 - 2,236
Capital reserves ArER (22,137) - - {22,137) 22,137 -
Other resenves AbEE 1,685,323 - - 1885323 1947 1807270
Retained profits RERERH 141,889 - (37 140952 22,100 163,052
Minority interests PHRBER - 449617 - 449617 - 449617
Total effacts on equity HpREg 2 BYE 1,807,311 49617 @37) 2,265,991 56,184 2,312,175
Minority interests PEREES 449,617 {449617) - - - -
Note: The adjustment of approximately HK$27,365,000 included in B FHFARBERATZERZO
interests in associates represents the adoption of new HKFRSs 27,385,000 Ty BEALAREZ
by an associate of the Group. The other adjustments represent —HBEENBRATEEVERS
the adoption of HKAS 39 and HKFRS 3 by the Group. For ER-ENREATEHEMRNTES
details, please refer to Note 2. HEREIORE BBV BRESER

EIF-HBEE2RME2-
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SUMMARY OF THE EFFECTS OF THE CHANGES IN 3. B REEHEERE ()
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
The financial effects of the application of the new HKFRSs to the RN B SV REENEAEER =
Group’s equity as at 1 April 2004 are summarized below: TENEMA—BCREES VB
‘ EEE T
As originally
stated HKAS 1 As restated
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
EEEE
MEREEER ZERNEE 5] sl
S F & T &L
Share capital g 1,866 - 1,866
Capital reserve NG (21,581) - (21,581)
Other reserves EfnEE 1,734,016 - 1,734,016
Retained profits RE & F 158,880 - 158,880
Equity holders of the Company QA SREZFE A 1,873,181 - 1,873,181
Minority interests LEREES - 405,157 405,157
Total effects on total equity HREER B E 1,873,181 405,157 2,278,338
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4.

NEW STANDARDS AMENDMENTS AND INTERPRETATIONS
NOT YET APPLIED

The Group has not early applied the following new standards,
amendments and interpretations that have been issued but are
not yet effective. The Group is in the process of making an
assessment of the potential impact of these standards,
amendments and interpretations. Other than the adoption of
HKAS 39 and HKFRS 4 (Amendments) “Financial guarantee
contracts”, the directors of the Company so far concluded that
the application of these new standards, amendments or
interpretations will have no material impact on the financial position
of the Group. HKAS 39 and HKFRS 4 (Amendments) “Financial
guarantee contracts” requires financial guarantee contracts which
are within the scope of HKAS 39 to be measured at fair value
upon initial recognition, the Group is still not in the position to
reasonably estimate the impact that may arise from the adoption
of HKAS 39 and HKFRS 4 (Amendments).

HKAS 1 (Amendment) Capital disclosures

HKAS 19 (Amendment) Actuarial gains and losses,
group plans and disclosures ?
Net investment in a foreign
operation ?
Cash flow hedge accounting of
forecast intragroup transactions 2
The fair value option ?

HKAS 21 (Amendment)
HKAS 33 {Amendment)

HKAS 33 (Amendment)

HKAS 39 & HKFRS 4 Financial guarantee contracts ?
(Amendments)
HKFRS 6 Exploration for and evaluation of
mineral resources 2
HKFRS 7 Financial instruments: Disclosures '
HK(FRIC) - INT 4 Determining whether an arrangement

contains a lease ?

Rights 1o interests arising from
decommissioning, restoration and
environmental rehabilitation funds 2

Liabilities arising from participating in
a specific market - waste electrical
and electronic equipment ?

Applying the restatement approach
under HKAS 29
Financial Reporting in
Hyperinflationary Economies *

Scope of HKFRS 2 5

HK(FRIC) - INT 5

HK(FRIC) - INT 8

HK(FRIC) - INT 7

HK(IFRIC) - INT 8

HK(FRIC) - INT ¢ Reassessment of embedded

derivatives ¢
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NEW STANDARDS AMENDMENTS AND INTERPRETATIONS
NOT YET APPLIED (Continued)

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January

2007.
2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
, 2008.
3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 December
2005.
4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 March 2006.
s Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 May 20086,
s Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 June 2006.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The financial information has been prepared under the historical
cost basis except for the investment properties and certain financial
instruments which are measured at revalued amounts or fair values,
as explained in the accounting policies set out below.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICFA. In addition, the
consolidated financial statements include applicable disclosures
required by the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the
Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”) and by the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.
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5.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries.

The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during the
year are included in the consolidated income statement from the
effective date of acquisition or up to the effective date of disposal,
as appropriate.

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies into
line with those used by other members of the Group.

All intra-group transactions, balances, income and expenses are
eliminated on consolidation.

Minority interests in the net assets of consolidated subsidiaries
are presented separately from the Group’s equity therein. Minarity
interests in the net assets consist of the amount of those interests
at the date of the original business combination and the minority’s
share of changes in equity since the date of the combination.
Losses applicable to the minority in excess of the minority’s interest
in the subsidiary’s equity are allocated against the interests of the
Group except to the extent that the minority has a binding
obligation and is able to make an additional investment to cover
the losses.

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on acquisition prior to 1 April 2005 represents
the excess of the cost of acquisition over the Group's interest in
the fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities of a subsidiary
or an associate at the date of acquisition,

Goodwill arising on acauisitions prior to 1 April 2001 was held in
reserves, and has been transferred to the retained earnings on
1 April 2005,

For previously capitalised goodwill arising on acquisitions after
1 April 2001 but before 1 January 2005, the Group has
discontinued amortisation from 1 April 2005 onwards, and such
gooawill is tested for impairment annually, and whenever there is
indication that the cash-generated units (*CGU”) to which the
goodwill relates may be impaired.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Goodwill (Continued)

Goodwill arising on acquisition after 1 January 2005 is recognized
as an asset and initially measured at cost, being the excess of
the cost of the business combination over the Group's interest in
the net fair value of the identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent
ligbilities recognized.

Capitalized goodwill arising on acquisition of a subsidiary is
presented separately in the balance sheet as an asset. Capitalized
goodwill arising in an acquisition of an associate is included in the
cost of the investment of the relevant associate.

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill arising from
acquisition of a subsidiary is allocated to each of the Group’s
CGU expected to benefit from the synergies of the combination.
CGU to which goodwill has been allocated are tested for
impairment annually, or more frequently when there is an indication
that the unit may be impaired. If the recoverable amount of the
CGU is less than the carrying amount of the unit, the impairment
loss is allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill
allocated to the unit and then to the other assets of the unit pro-
rata-on the basis of the carrying amount of each asset in the unit.
An impairment loss recognized for goodwill is not reversed in
subsequent periods.

Goodwill arising from acquisition of an associate is included within
the carrying amount of the investment and is assessed for
impairment as part of the investment.

Excess of an acquirer’s interest in the net fair value of an
acquiree’s identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities
over cost (“discount on acguisitions”)

A discount on acquisition arising on an acquisition of a subsidiary
or an associate for which an agreement date is on or after
1 January 2005 represents the excess of the net fair value of an
acquiree’s identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities
over the cost of the business combination. Discount on acquisition
is recognized immediately in profit of loss. A discount on acquisition
arising on an acquisition of an associate (which is accounted for
using the equity method) is included as income in the determination
of the investor’s share of results of the associate in the period in
which the investment is acquired.

As explained in Note 2 above, all negative goodwill as at 1 April
2005 has been derecognized with a corresponding adjustment
to the Group's retained earnings.
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5.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Trademark licenses

Prior to 31 March 2005, intangible assets were amortized over
their estimated useful lives, For the period beginning on 1 April
2005, intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are not amortized
but are tested for impairment annually by comparing their carrying
amounts with their recoverable amounts, irrespective of whether
there is any indication that they may be impaired. If the recoverable
amount of an asset is estimated to be less than its carrying
amount, the carrying amount of the asset is reduced to its
recoverable amount. An impairment loss is recognised as an
expense immediately.

When an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset is increased to the revised estimate of its
recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying amount
does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been
determined had no impairment ioss been recognised for the asset
in prior years.

Trademark licenses with finite-life are stated at cost less
amortization and any identified impairment loss. Amortization is
calculated to write off the cost of the trademark licenses over
their estimated useful lives, using the straight line method.

Patent

The patent is measured initially at cost and amcrtized on a straight
line basis over its estimated useful life.

Club debentures

Club debentures are stated at cost less any subsequent
accumulated impairment losses.

Non-current assets held for sale

Non-current assets and disposal groups are classified as held for
sale if thelr carrying amount will be recovered principally through
a sale transaction rather than through continuing use. This
condition is regarded as met only when the sale is highly probable
and the asset (or disposal group) is available for immediate sale
in its present condition.

Non-current assets (and disposal groups) classified as held for
sale are measured at the lower of the assets’ (disposal groups’)
previous carrying amount and fair value less costs to sell.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair valug of consideration received
or receivable.

Sales of investments in securities are recognized on a trade-date
basis when contracts are executed.

Sales of goods are recognized when goods are delivered and title
has passed.

Sales of other asset are recognized upon the execution of a
binding sale agreement.

Internet service income and royalty income are recognized when
services are provided.

Rental income, including rentals invoiced in advance from
propetties let under operating leases, is recognized on a straight
line basis over the period of the respective leases.

interest income from a financial asset is accrued on a time basis,
by reference to the principal outstanding and at the effective
interest rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly discounts
the estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of
the financial asset to that asset’s net carrying amount.

Investments in associates

The results and assets and liabilities of associates are incorporated
in these financial statements using the equity method of
accounting. Under the equity method, investments in associates
are carried in the consolidated balance sheet at cost as adjusted
for post-acquisition changes in the Group's share of the profit or
ioss and of changes in equity of the associate, less any identified
impairment loss. When the Group’s share of losses of an associate
equals or exceeds its interest in that associate (which includes
any long-term interests that, in substance, form part of the Group’s
net investment in the associate), the Group discontinues
recognising its share of further losses. An additional share of
losses is provided for and a liability is recognized only to the
extent that the Group has incurred legal or constructive obligations
or made payments on behalf of that associate.

Where a group entity transacts with an associate of the Group,
profits and losses are eliminated to the extent of the Group’s
interest in the relevant associate.
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5.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Impairment (other than goodwill, intangible assets with indefinite
useful lives and intangible assets that are not yet ready for use)

At each balance sheet date, the Group reviews the carrying
amounts of its assets to determine whether there is any indication
that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any
recoverable amount of the asset is estimated to be less than its
carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset or CGU is
reduced to its recoverable amount. Impairment losses are
recognized as expenses immediately.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset is increased to the revised estimate of its
recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying amount
does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been
determined had no impairment loss been recognized for the asset
in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognized as
income immediately.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost or valuation less
accumulated depreciation and amortization and accumulated
impairment lossses.

Advantage has been taken of the transitional relief provided by
paragraph 80A of HKAS 16 “"Property, plant and equipment”
from the requirement to make regular revaluations of the Group's
land and buildings which had been carried at revalued amounts
prior to 30 September 1995, Accordingly, no further revaluation
of land and buildings will be carried out.

Depreciation and amortization are provided to write off the cost
or valuation of items of property, plant and equipment over their
estimated useful lives, and after taking into account of their
estimated residual value, using the straight-line method.

Asset held under finance leases are depreciated over their
expected useful lives on the same basis as owned assets or
where shorter, the term of relevant lease.

The gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an asset
is determined as the difference between the sales proceeds and
the carrying amount of the asset and is recognized in the income
staterment.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
investment properties

On initial recognition, investment properties are measured at cost,
including any directly attributable expenditure. Subsequent to initiat
recognition, investment properties are measured using the fair
value mode!. Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair
value of investment property are included in profit or loss for the
period in which they arise.

Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the
Jease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership
to the lessee. All other leases are classified as operating leases.

The Group as lessor

Rental income from operating leases is recognized in the income
statement on a straight line basis over the term of the relevant
lease. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an
operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the leased
asset and recognized as an expense on a straight line basis over
the lease term.

The Group as lessee

Assets held under finance leases are recognized as assets of the
Group at their fair value at the inception of the lease or, if lower,
at the present value of the minimum lease payments. The
corresponding liability to the lessor is included in the balance
sheet as a finance lease obligation. Lease payments are
apportioned between finance charges and reduction of the lease
obligation so as to achieve a constant rate of interest on the
remaining balance of the liability. Finance charges are charged
directly to profit or loss.

Rentals payable under operating leases are charged to profit or
loss on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease.
Benefits received and receivable as an incentive 1o enter into an
operating lease are recognized as a reduction of rental expense
over the lease term on a straight-line basis.

Other asset
Other asset which represant interests on iand held under operating

lease and for sale is stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value.
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5.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realizable
value. Cost is calculated using the weighted average cost method.

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group
entity, transactions in currencies other than the functional currency
of the entity (foreign currencies) are recorded in its functional
currency (i.e. the currency of the primary economic environment
in which the entity operates) at the rates of exchanges prevailing
on the dates of the transactions. At each balance sheet date,
monetary items denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated
at the rates prevailing on the balance sheet date. Non-monetary
ftems carried at fair value that are denominated in foreign currencies
are retranslated at the rates prevailing on the date when the fair
value was determined. Non-monetary items that are measured in
terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items,
and on the translation of monetary items, are recognized in profit
or loss in the period in which they arise, except for exchange
differences arising on a monetary item that forms part of the
Group's net investment in a foreign operation, in which case,
such exchange differences are recognized in equity in the
consolidated financials statements. Exchange differences arising
on the retranslation of non-monetary items carried at fair value
are included in profit or loss for the period except for differences
arising on the retranslation of non-monetary items in respect of
which gains and losses are recognized directly in equity, in which
cases, the exchange differences are also recognized directly in
equity.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s foreign
cperations are translated into the presentation currency of the
Company (i.e. Hong Kong Dollars) at the rate of exchange
prevailing at the balance sheet date, and their income and
expenses are translated at the average exchange rates for the
year, unless exchange rates fluctuate significantly during the period,
in which case, the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of
transactions are used. Exchange differences arising, if any, are
recognized as a separate component of equity (the currency
translation reserve). Such exchange differences are recognized in
profit or loss in the period in which the foreign operation is disposed
of.,
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Foreign currencies (Continued)

Goodwill and fair value adjustments on identifiable assets and
liabilities acquired arising on an acquisition of a foreign operation
on or after 1 January 2005 are treated as assets and liabilities of
that foreign operation and translated at the rate of exchange
prevailing at the balance sheet date. Exchange differences arising
are recognized in the currency translation reserve.

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions

In respect of share options granted to employees after 1 April
2005, the fair value of senvices received determined by reference
to the fair value of share options granted at the grant date is
expensed on a straight-line basis over the vesting period, with a
corresponding increase in equity (share option reserve),

At the time when the share options are exercised, the amount
previously recognized in share option reserve will be transferred
to share premium. When the share options are forfeited or are still
not exercised at the expiry date, the amount previously recognized
in share option reserve will continue to be held in share option
reserve.

For share options granted to employees on or before 11 November
2002 or granted after 11 November 2002 but vested before 1
Aprit 2005, the Group did not recognize the financial effect of
share-based payments until the share options were exercised.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognized on the
balance sheet when a group entity becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of the instruments. Financial assets and
financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value. Transaction
costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of
financial assets and financial liabilities (other than financial assets
and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss) are
added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or
financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction
costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or
financial fiabilities at fair value through profit or loss are recognized
immediately in profit or loss.
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5.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets

The Group’s financial assets are classified into one of the three
categories, including financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss, loans and receivables and available-for-sale financial assets.
All regular way purchases or sales of financial assets are recognized
and derecognized on a trade date basis. Regular way purchases
or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require
delivery of assets within the time frame established by regulation
or convention in the marketplace. The accounting policies adopted
in respect of each category of financial assets are set out below.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or joss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss include financial
assets held for trading and those designated at fair value through
profit or loss on initial recognition. At each balance sheet date
subsequent 10 initial recognition, financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss are measured at fair value, with changes in
fair value recognized directly in profit or loss in the year in which
they arise.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables (including trade and other receivables,
short-term loan receivables, short-term loan receivables from
related companies, amount due from associates, margin loan
receivables and bank deposits) are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an
active market. At each balance sheet date subsequent to initial
recognition, loans and receivables are carried at amortized cost
using the effective interest method, less any identified impairment
losses. An impairment loss is recognized in profit or loss when
there is objective evidence that the asset is impaired, and is
measured as the difference between the asset's carrying amount
and the present value of the estimated future cash flows
discounted at the original effective interest rate. Impairment losses
are reversed in subseqguent periods when an increase in the
asset’s recoverable amount can be related objectively to an event
occurring after the impairment was recognized, subject 1o a
restriction that the carrying amount of the asset at the date the
impairment is reversed does not exceed what the amortized cost
would have been had the impairment not been recognized.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Ava[)ab/e#or—sa/e financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivatives that are either
designated or not classified as any of the other categories (set
out above). At each balance sheet date subsequent to initial
recognition, available-for-sale financial assets are measured at fair
value. Changes in falr value are recognized in equity, untii the
financial asset is disposed of or is determined to be impaired, at
which time, the cumulative gain or loss previously recognized in
eguity is removed from equity and recognized in profit or loss.
Any impairment losses on available-for-sale financial assets are
recognized in profit or loss. impairment losses on available-for-
sale equity investments will not reverse in profit or loss in
subsequent periods. For available-for-sale debt investments,
impairment losses are subsequently reversed if an increase in the
fair value of the investment can be objectively related to an event
occurring after the recognition of the impairment loss.

For available-for-sale equity investments that do not have a quoted
market price in an active market and whose fair value cannot be
reliably measured and derivatives that are linked to and must be
settled by delivery of such unguoted equity instruments, they are
measured at cost less any identified impairment losses at each
balance sheet date subsequent to initial recognition. An impairment
loss is recognized in profit or loss when there is objective evidence
that the asset is impaired. The amount of the impairment loss is
measured as the difference between the carrying amount of the
asset and the present value of the estimated future cash flows
discounted at the current market rate of return for a similar financial
asset. Such impairment losses will not reverse in subsequent
periods.

Financial liabilities and equity

Financia! liabilities and equity instruments issued by a group entity
are classified according to the substance of the contractual
arrangements entered into and the definitions of a financial liability
and an equity instrument.

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual
interest in the assets of the group after deducting all of its liabilities.
The Group’s financial liabilities are generally classified into financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss and other financial
liabilities. The accounting policies adopted in respect of financial
liabilities and equity instruments are set out below.
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5.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, include financial
liabilities held for trading. At each balance sheet date subsequent
to initial recognition, financial liabilities at fair value through profit
or loss are measured at fair value, with changes in fair value
recognized directly in profit or loss in the period in which they
arise.

Other financial liabilities

Other financial liabilities including trade and other payables, margin
loan payables, bills payable, amount due to an associate, amount
due to a minority shareholder, borrowings, obligations under
finance leases and bank overdrafts are subseqguently measured
at amortised cost, using the effective interest rate method.

Equity instruments

Equity instruments Issued by the Company are recorded at the
proceeds received, net of direct issue costs,

Derivative financial instruments

Derivatives of the Group that do not gqualify for hedge accounting
are deemed as financial assets held for trading or financial liabilities
held for trading. Changes in fair values of such derivatives are
recognized directly in profit or loss.

Embedded derivatives

Derivatives embedded in non-derivative host contracts are
separated from the relevant hosts and deemed as held-for-trading
when the economic characteristic and risks of the embedded
derivatives are not closely related to those of the host contracts,
and the combined contracts are not measured at fair value through
profit or 1oss. In all other circumstances, derivatives embedded
are not separated and are accounted for together with the host
contracts in accordance with appropriate standards. Where the
Group needs 1o separate an embedded derivative but is unable
to measure the embedded derivative, the entire combined
contracts are treated as held-for-trading.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)
Derecognition

Financial assets are derecognized when the rights to receive
cash flows from the assets expire or, the financial assets are
transferred and the Group has transferred substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership of the financial assets. On
derecognition of a financial asset, the difference between the
asset’s carrying amount and the sum of the consideration received
and the cumulative gain or loss that had been recognized directly
in equity is recognized in profit or loss.

For financial lighilities, they are removed from the Group's balance
sheet (i.e. when the obligation specified in the relevant contract is
discharged, cancelled or expires). The difference between the
carrying amount of the financial fiability derecognized and the
consideration paid is recognized in profit or loss.

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently
payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year.
Taxable profit differs from net profit as reported in the income
statement because it excludes items of income or expense that
are taxable or deductible in other years and it further excludes
items that are never taxable or deductible. The Group’s liability for
current tax is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted
or substantively enacted by the balance sheet date.

Deferred tax is the tax expected to be payable or recoverable on
differences between the carrying amount of assets and liabilities
in the financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used
in the computation of taxable profit, and is accounted for using
the balance sheet liability method. Deferred tax liabilities are
generally recognized for all taxable temporary differences, and
deferred tax assets are recognized to the extent that it is probable
that taxable profits will be available against which deductible
temporary differencses can be utilised. Such assets and liabilities
are not recognized if the temporary difference arises from goodwill
or from the initial recognition (Cther than in & business combination)
of other assets and liabliities in a transaction that affects neither
the taxable profit nor the accounting profit.
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5.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognized for taxable temporary
differences arising on investments in subsidiaries and associates,
except where the Group is able to control the reversal of the
temporary difference and it is probable that the temporary
difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each
balance sheet date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all
or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are expected to
apply in the period when the liability is settled or the asset is
realised. Deferred tax is charged or credited in the income
statement, except when it relates to items charged or credited
directly to equity, in which case the deferred tax is also dealt with
in equity.

Retirement benefits costs

Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit plans are
charged as expenses as they fall due.

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

The key assumptions concerning the future, and other key sources
of estimation uncertainty at the balance sheet date, that have a
signfficant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are
discussed below.

Allowances for bad and doubtful debts

The policy for allowance for bad and doubtful debts of the Group
is based on the evaluation of collectibility and aging analysis of
accounts and on management’s estimate. In determining whether
impairment is required, the Group takes into consideration the
aging status and likelihood of collection. Specific allowance is
only made for receivables that are unlikely to be collected and is
recognized on the difference between the estimated future cash
flow expected to receive discounted using the original effective
interest rate and the carrying value.
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6.

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY (Continued)
Income taxes

As at 31 March 2006, a deferred tax asset of HK$332,000 in
relation to unused tax losses has been recognized in the Group'’s
balance sheet. No deferred tax asset has been recognized for
the remaining unused tax losses of 372,942,000 as at 31 March
20086. The realisability of the deferred tax asset mainly depends
on whether sufficient future profits or taxable temporary differences
will be available in the future. In cases where the actual future
profits generated are less or more than expected, a material
reversal or further recognition of deferred tax assets may arise,
which would be recognized in the income statement for the period
in which such a reversal or further recognition takes place.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES

The Group’s major financial instruments include equity and debt
investments, borrowings, trade and other receivables, short-term
loan receivables, margin loans receivables, bank deposits, trade
and other payables. Details of these financial instruments are
disclosed in respective notes. The risks associated with these
financial instruments and the policies on how to mitigate these
risks are set out below. The management manages and monitors
these exposures to ensure appropriate measures are implemented
on a timely and effective manner.

{i Market Risk
Currency risk

Certain trade receivables, trade payables, short-term loan
receivables and borrowings of the Group are denominated
in foreign currencies. The Group currently does not have
a foreign currency hedging policy. However, the
management monitors foreign exchange exposure closely
and consider the usage of hedging instrurnents when the
need arises.
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7. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (Continued)

U

Market Risk (Continued)
Interest rate risk

The Group’s fair value interest rate risk relates primarily to
its investments in fixed-rate convertible notes where it is
also exposed to cash flow interest rate risk through the
variable-rate bank borrowings. (see Notes 27 and 37 for
details of debt securities and loans respectively).

The Group currently does not have a policy 10 hedge
against the interest rate risk as the management believes
that changes in the interest rate will not have a significant
impact on the Group's financial position. However, the
management monitors closely the interest rate exposure
and will consider using interest rate swap when the need
arises.

Other price risk

The Group is exposed 1o equity security price risk through
its investments in both listed and unlisted equity
investments. For investments in listed equity investment,
the management manages this exposure by maintaining
a portfolio of investments with different risk profiles.
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7.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (Continued)

(i)

iy

Credit risk
Credit risk

The Group’s maximum exposure 1o credit risk in the event
of the counterparties failure to perform their obligations as
at 31 March 2006 in relation to each class of recognized
financial assets is the carrying amount of those assets as
stated in the consolidated balance sheet. There is
concentration of credit risk with convertible notes, loans
from or to related parties and certain major customers in
Europe. In order to minimize the credit risk, the
management of the Group has delegated a team
responsible for determination of credit limits, credit
approvals and other menitoring procedures to ensure that
follow-up action is taken to recover overdue debts. In
addition, the Group reviews the recoverable amount of
each individual trade debt, loan receivable, margin loan
receivables and debt securities at each balance shest
date to ensure that adequate impairment losses are made
for irrecoverable amounts. In this regard, the directors of
the Company consider that the Group’s credit risk is
significantly reduced.

The credit risk on liquid funds is limited because the counter
parties are banks, financial institution with good reputation.

Liquidity risk

Prudent liguidity risk management implies maintaining
sufficient cash and the availability of funding through an
adequate amount of committed credit facilities. The Group
maintains the flexibility in funding by arranging banking
facilities and other external financing. Besides, the Group
has continued to tighten cost controls over operating costs
to improve the cash flows, profitability and operations of
the Group. The directors believe that the Group will have
sufficient working capital for its future operational requests.
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8.

REVENUE

Revenue represents the net amaounts received and receivable for
goods sold, securities traded by the Group, and sales of other
asset to outside customers for the year. An analysis of the Group's
revenue for the year, for both continuing and discontinued
operations, is as follows:

WA

BADAEEERETIHEEPZE
G EIEEFPEREZESNE TIHNE
EPZEMBEEZEWREWARER
B-AEEBZFFRRA(BERFER
FEREE) SWET:

2006 2005
HK$’000 HK$'000
ZEEXRE ZEERE
FH A F®A
Continuing operations BHEER

Sales of goods HEH® 51,452 124,172
Securities trading BHEE 146,386 93,884
Sale of other assets (Note 30) HEEMEE (Mi#30) 118,800 39,600
316,638 257,656

Discontinued operations HIFEETS
Sales of goods HEER 5,385,144 5,418,803
5,701,782 5,676,459

SEGMENT INFORMATION

In accordance with the Group’s internal financial reporting, the
Group has determined that business segments are its primary
reporting format and geographical segments are its secondary
reporting format.

Business segments

The Group is organized into four business segments, namely
trading of computer related products, trading of consumer
electronic products, securities trading and property development
and trading.

The operations of trading of computer related products under the
trade name of “Memorex®" and trading of consumer electronic
products were discontinued on 28 April 2006 (see Note 16). The
Group will continue the operation of trading of other non-
“Memorex®” computer related products.
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SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

Business segments (Continued) EBEHE (4)
Segment information about these businesses is presented as EHzZEEB I HEERNZMNNT

below:

Continuing operations

Discontinued operations

BEER FEERH
Trading of
computer
Trading of related  Trading of
computer Property products  consumer
related Trading of  development under electronic
products securities  and trading Total  “Memorex®” products Consolidated
HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
EHEH
B85
EREE hx 83 ([Memore®]  EBEY
ERES  BHHE YBREE BB ERER G4
+HL FH# A F#i THi T&A T#A THA
For.the year ended 31 March 2006  #EZEEZ~x%2 8
Zt-BrEE
REVENUE WA
External sales HEHE 51,452 146,386 118,800 316,638 4,210,551 1,174,533 5,701,782
SEGMENT RESULT PEEE (28,635) 175,698 11,886 158,949 91,334 22028 272,311
Interest income Rl A 44,398
Unallocated corporate expenses FOBLEET {33,333)
Finanice costs BEEA (75,894)
Share of results of assodiates BREBEAREE (21,494)
Net gain on disposal of subsidiaries  HEHBLATRES
and assoclates REIZMEEE o
Impairment loss on trademark foenses BEHTEZ HEER {164,667)
Impairmert loss on avaleble-forsale  FTEBEREZAESR
investments (49,845
Impairment loss on club debentures  EEEEZBEEE {778)
Allowance for loan receivable ElhEHREE (11,542)
Allowance for other receivable A ERRE RS (2,412
Loss before income tax BEERIER 42,339)
Income tax expense itcrsl (53,669)
Loss for the year FEEHE (96,004)
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9. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 9. TEEH ()
Business segments (Continued) ERoH ()
Trading of
computer Trading of
Property related consumer
Trading of  development products under electronic
securities and trading  “Memorex®" products  Consolidated
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
L EL
ERER
& ([Memorex®) HEEF
BHEE REREE ) EREZ &5a
FEL THA FRA FHA FHA
Assets and fiabilities FAREH
at 31 March 2006 HZREXEZAz+ -8
ASSETS R
Segment assets PEEE 727,008 - 1,583,194 235 2,310,435
Interests in associates SELRER 647,693
Unallocated corporate assets FAREEEE 1,235,052
Consolidated total assets RABEE 4,193,180
LIABILITIES B8R
Segment liabiities NEAE - 421 919,884 - 920,305
Borrowings B 858,020
Unallocated corporate liabilties AORLERE 196,632
Consolidated total fiabflities RERAE 1,873,857




SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

Business segments (Continued) EBOE ()
Discontinued
Continuing operations operations
HEEK FEHEER
Trading of
computer
Trading of related
computer products
related under
products Corporate Total “Memorex®” Consolidated
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
ZHER
EmES
EHEE (T Memorex®]
ERES 43 @it ) ol
FHA FEA FHA FHA T H#A
Other information LA
For the year ended 31 March 2006 ~ #HE-BREXEZA
Et-BkfE
Capital expenditure EAREFE 162 23 185 15,285 15,470
Depreciation and amortization FEREH 2,000 613 2613 11,998 14,611
Impairment loss on trademark licenses 12 HF A & 2 WEEIE 164,667 - 164,667 - 164,667
Adgdition of goodwill arising on WE-RMKBoREN
acquisition of a subsidiary EECBE - 623 623 - 623
Addition of goodwili arising on e —-Emend
acquisition of an associate BIHEEZEE - 2276 2,276 - 2,276
Net provision for doubtful debts REEETE 685 2,412 3,097 13,575 16,672
Allowance for slow moving inventories BT EEE - - - 75,732 75,732
Gain on disposals of interests in HEHMBRBERFZ
subsidiaries and associates g - g21 - - 921




Notes to the Financial Statements

BT T R MY 5

Forthe yearended 31 March2006 # 2 — R E X% Z A=+ —B L H &

9. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 9. DEEH (8)
Business segments (Continued) EBoRE(
Continuing operations Discontinued operations
BEEE FREEH
Trading of
Trading of computer Trading of
compuer Properly related congumer
refated Tradngof  development products under electronic
products securties  and trading Totd  “Memore® poducts  Consofidated
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK'000 HKS'000 HK8'000 HK$'000
AR (As restated)
ERES
ELRE Mm% {{Memorm®])  HEE
EREH EHER ERREE B BB ERES o
F#A %A FEHA T#R THL +HA FHL
(= &70)
For the year ended 31 March 2005 RE-2%5%z 4
Zt-BLEg
REVENUE 'O
Externat sales SERHE 124,172 93,884 39,600 257,656 3,853,541 1,565,262 5,676,459
SEGMENT RESULT PREA 13,212 77,263 2,105 92,580 243,348 24,847 360,773
Interest income FawA 22,651
Unalocated corporate expenses FoBRbEET (63,933)
Realization of negative goodwil KE-BHELE
arising on acquisition of an BIMEREE
additional interest in an associate LEBRER 2,057
Finance costs HEER (18,198)
Share of results of associates BEBENEER 64,908)
Impairment loss on goodwil aising  RE-HEERREL
on acquisition of an associate ZERBEER (177,446)
Amorization of goodwi arising BRBRERE
on acquisition of associates EX7BERH (28,089)
Loss on disposal of subsidiaries HEMBLA RS
and assoclates REZER {15,747)
Profit before income tax BT AEN 17,159
Income tax expense FrEHR Y (117,397)
Loss for the year EERESE {100,238)




9. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) DEER ()
Business segments (Continued) 258 (%)
Trading of Trading of
Property computer consumer
Trading of  development related electronic
securites  and trading products products  Consolidated
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000
/S Bk HBET
BHEE BEREF ERES EmE5 H5&
FHRA FHi FHL F&L THA
Assets and fiabilities FEREMR
at 31 March 2006 HoREISZA =2+ 18
ASSETS BE
Segment assets DNEEE 144,621 108,000 2,284,675 3,792 2,541,088
Interests in associates B QB 632,201
Unallocated corporate assets FNBECEEE 483,264
Consolidated total assets RABEE 3,656,563
LIABILITIES BE
Segment liabllities SHEEE 103 1,512 872,534 - 874,149
Borrowings =EN 243,351
Unallocated corporate liabilities AOECERE 283,062
FAgEE 1,400,562

Consolidated total fiabilities
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9. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

Business segments (Continued)

Discontinued
Continuing operations operations
BIEER EREREB
Trading of
computer
Trading of related
computer products
related under
products Corporate Total  “Memorex®” Consolidated
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
[ Memorex]
eyl RIEEEEHE
ERES YA Ehl ERES =E
FEA FEL FRA FHA FHA
Other information Fie A
For the year ended 37 March 2005 RE-ERZ2 52 A
+—BFE
Goodwill arising on acquisition RZZZERE-F—Bi
of an additional interest in WE—-MREom
a subsidiary after 1 January 2005 EERMEEZHE - - - 24,430 24,430
Capital expenditure EXARX 168 471 839 13,580 14,228
Depreciation and amortization FEREE 51,813 1,561 53,374 17,477 70,851
Impairment loss on goodwill arising WRE-MHMENTEEY
on acquisition of an associate EERESE - 177,446 177,446 - 177,446
Net provision for doubtful debts RERBEE 566 5,726 6,292 15977 22,269
Allowance for slow moving inventories B #EEEE - - - 25,588 25,588
Loss on deemed disposal of associates R {EREM YD BERE - 19,251 19,251 - 1,251
Geographical segments g 5 48

The Group's trading of computer related products is mainly located
in North America and Europe. The trading of consumer electronic
products is mainly located in North America, the trading of
securities is mainly located in Hong Kong and the property
development and trading is mainly in the People’s Republic of

China (the "PRC").

AEBEHERERESEERILEER
BNET - BREFERESHETERL
RET EFEEIBREEET Y
EERRBEBEMZENFTEARAME
(TR B ErT-




SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)
Business segments (Continued)
The following table provides an analysis of the Group's sales

revenue by geographical market, irrespective of the origin of the
goods/services:

SERH (4
IS ()

REEZHERARETISI RN
nT(TrEER/ RBERR)

Sales revenue by
geographical market

i T EE WA
2006 2005
HK$'000 HK$'000
—EEBXRE ZTEETRE
I3 T # A
America e 4,906,186 4,834,806
Europe B 429,401 581,085
Others Hi 366,185 260,568
5,701,782 5,676,459

Revenue from the Group's discontinued operations was derived
prin(ﬁipally from North America (2006: HK$4,848,142,000, 2005:
HK$4,834,806,000) and Europe (2006: HK$429,401,000, 2005:
HK$539,279,000).

AEEEFEEBZWRATERELE
(CBEXRE 4,848,142,0008 T —F
B T F:4,834,806,000 ) K& B
(ZFZ/N5:429,401,0008 T = F
T FF:5639,279,0008 7T) °
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9. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 9. SRER (4)
Geographical segments i 4R
The following is an analysis of the carrying amount of segment DEEECREESRYE - BEREE
assets, and additions to property, plant and equipment, analyzed BRERGZEEEMBEMEERIIRSN
by the geographical area in which the assets are located: wm:
Carrying amount Additions to property,
of segment assets plant and equipment
SEEEZREE ME BBERRBEIER
2006 2005 2006 2005
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
—EERE —ZETEEF —BEEBERE —EFTREF
F# T FHRA F#H A %A
Hong Kong S 2,456,692 1,349,581 144 501
North America b= 1,150,454 1,118,220 13,199 11,311
Europe &M 164,560 257,408 1,776 2,111
Taiwan a8 48,051 49,178 325 294
Others B 366,802 462,365 26 12
4,186,559 3,236,752 15,470 14,229
As at 31 March 2005, intangible assets of HK$233,475,000, RErEE BAEREEHBETERE
goodwill of HK$167,908,000 and deferred tax assets of A S BR_BETRF=ZA=T
HK$18,418,000 were excluded from the analysis of the carrying —H 2334750008 T BREE
amount of segment assets and as at 31 March 2008, goodwill of 167,908,000/ 7T 2 B2 & 18,418,000
HK$6,621,000 is excluded form the analysis of the carrying BLIZBRERBEERWNARESESE
amount of segment assets. EREESITSR RR_BZFEAREZE

=+—8°6,621,000 T ZBERIIA
RESBEERHEESTR




10.

11.

OTHER INCOME

Cther income included the following items:

10. EHEfrug A

EMRABETIER:

Continuing operations

Discontinued operations

Consolidated

BERE FEEER &
2006 2005 2006 2005 2006 2005
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
—ZERF ZETHF ZEIRE -TERF ZBELAE —ITERF
THA FHL FEL TR FEA FEA
Interest on bank deposits BAERHME 3,224 910 823 517 4,047 1,427
Interest on loan receivables BRERFE 40,234 21,130 - - 40,234 21,130
interest on loan from associates EYEBENFBHF A 117 o4 - - 117 94
Net exchange gain ERMsgE - 324 - - - 324
Internet service income ERARBRA 366 3,008 - - 366 3,006
Royalty income EV T PN - - 788 2,787 788 2,787
Unrealized fair value gain of investments R EBERECAZRCTEE
held for trading/Net unrealized W3/ BiEL
holding gain on other investment REZRERUEEE 43,313 17,223 - - 43,313 17,223
Rental income EER N 20,594 20,415 6,110 7,257 26,704 27,672
Net gain on trading of derivatives EENEHBIA
financial instruments ZREER - 15,100 - - - 15,100
Waiver of debt by a third party EZTRERY - 14,415 - - - 14,415
Management fes income EEBUA 3,497 3,573 - - 3,497 3,573
OTHER EXPENSES 11, HEMExX
Continuing operations  Discontinued operations Consolidated
BEEY HRBEES g8
2006 2005 2006 2006 2006 2005
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
ZEEXRE ZTTHE ZBEERE "EBTIF Z2TRE “ITIR
FHAL TR THA TEA FHA FHRA
Loss on disposal of Investment securities LEREERER - 26,712 - - - 29,712
Impairment loss on AELEZREHBERE
avaitable-for-sale-investments 49,845 - - - 49,845 -
Impairment foss on club debentures eMESAESE 778 - - - 778 -
50623 29712 - - 50623 29712

For the year ended 31 March 2008, the directors of the Company
reviewed the carrying value of unlisted equity securities in the
PRC. After considering the subsequent purchase consideration
offered by certain third parties, an impairment loss of approximately
HK$49,845,000 has been identified and recognized in the
consolidated income statement.

HE_ZERE=ZA=+—-RBI=EE
AAFIEEEHNEFEIELTREES
ZEBE- B RETEZAEER
HHEBEERER CEEL49,845000
BB EBRIESANBRTE

N
27
Ao ©
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12. FINANCE COSTS 12, BRER
Continuing operations  Discontinued operations Consolidated
BEER FREEY 55
2006 2005 2006 2006 2006 2005
HK$'000 HKS000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$000 HK®'000
“ZERE —“EERF ZBREXE ZTTIE ZB2ERE —ZEFHE
FHEA FEL TEA F+EL - TBA
fnterest on borrowings wholly BRAFATHER
repayable within five years: ZEENE:
- Bank loans and overdrafts ~BAERRER 4,993 2,778 12,403 2,044 17,396 5,722
~Other loans -EfER 58,055 11875 - - 58,055 11,875
- Finance Jeases ~BERD - - 25 99 25 99
Interest on bank borrowings not BEAREFREZHEERY
wholly repayable within five years RITERTE 418 502 - - 418 502
63,466 15,155 12,428 3,043 75,884 18,198
13.  IMPAIRMENT LOSS ON GOODWILL ARISING ON 13. WE-HEBEBAREEZEHEREES
ACQUISITION OF AN ASSOCIATE B
For the year ended 31 March 2005, the directors of the Company RBRE-ZEREZAZ+—BLIEE
reviewed the carrying value of goodwill arising on acquisition of EARFREECLBPRITERR
an associate, China Strategic Holdings Limited (“CSHL.”), which REBEEE BEHNNAFFERE B
is incorporated in Hong Kong and its shares are listed on the BEDRPREEERAB ([HRE]
Stock Exchange, in previous year, with reference to the financial REBIMRNLIERERORE XA L
performance and the business operations of CSHL. After M MELEEEZ2EEE-BZREN
considering the current market condition and operating results of WR R PR ZEEEE B
CSHL, an impairment loss of HK$177,446,000 has been identified 177,446,000 TR EGERBCEREL

and recognized in the consolidated income statement. WraRBERAER-




14.

15.

NET GAIN (LOSS) ON DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES AND 14.

ASSOCIATES

B)ER

Continuing operations

Discontinued operations

HEMBAARBE AT ZWE (8

Consolidated

BEXE FIFEEY f28
2006 2005 2006 2005 2006 2005
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TRERE ZTERE “EERF “ERIE ZEEARE _TEIE
FHA THA F#A THEA TEL S
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HEMBLARZUE 7,175 3,504 - - 7,175 3,504
Net loss on deemed disposal of FRAED %Hu» EWAEIL '
interest in associates ZEREE (14,048) (19,251) - - (14,048) (19,251)
Gain on disposal of associates HEBE LR ZWE 7,794 - - - 7,794 -
921 (15,747) - - 921 (15,747)
INCOME TAX EXPENSE 15. Fi@BHIH
Continuing operations  Discontinued operations Consolidated
HEER EREEH g8
2006 2005 2006 2005 2006 2006
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
IZEARE TR ZEEBRSE ZITETLF ZEERE TEInE
FHA tHA FHL S AL f&A
Current tax: RERE:
Hong Kong Profits Tax ERAER 2,112 79 ~ - 2,112 79
Overseas B 2,003 4,226 70,473 95,931 72,476 100,157
4115 4,305 70,473 95,931 74,588 100,236
Deferred tax (Note 40) EERIE (1 3240) 218 @3 (1135 17,184 (20919) 17,161
4,331 4,282 49,338 113,115 53,669 117,397
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15.

INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued)

15.

The income tax expense for the year can be reconciled to the

FR@Bi i (4h)
TEFERHERERERABRAR

loss before income tax per the consolidated income statements SEHRAEEEERENT:
as follows:
2006 2005
HK$’000 HK$'000
ZEERE —EERE
&AL FH A
Loss before income tax: BRATSIRAIE IR
Continuing operations BEER (144,092) (248,508)
Discontinued operations EFEER 101,757 265,667
(42,335) 17,159
Tax at applicable tax rate of 41% REERRU%TE ZTRIE (17,357) 7,035
Tax effect of share of results EIEME LT RE
of associates IRMBEE 8,813 26,612
Tax effect of income not taxable TEBHEA
for tax purposes ZHEEE (17,774) (11,596)
Tax effect of expenses not deductible T
for tax purposes HBES 32,250 93,530
Tax sffect of tax losses RERHIEER
not recognized ZHBEE 29,371 16,434
Utilization of tax losses FER LRI RER
not previously recognized fRIBE1E (51) (7,308)
Utilization of deferred tax assets FEAENABREL
not previously recognized MIEAE (811) (319)
Reversal of deferred tax assets LR CHEARERE
previously recognized BERE - 27,273
Effect of different tax rates REMEZEBERELYE
of subsidiaries operating in ZHBRRZ
other jurisdictions TEREZZE 19,064 (31,551)
Others Hi 164 2,713)
Income tax expense for the year REZREBHETH 53,669 117,397

Hong Kong Profits Tex was calculated at 17.5% of the estimated
assessable profit for the years ended 31 March 2008 and 2005.

For the years ended 31 March 2006 and 2005, a major subsidiary
operating in the United States of America ("USA”) provided for
the USA Corporation tax at 41% on the assessable profit in the
USA. As the major profit of the Group was contributed by this
subsidiary, the tax reconciliation is prepared using 41%.

Income tax arising in other jurisdictions was calculated at the

rates prevailing in the relevant jurisdictions.

FEMBHABE_TTERER_ET
RAFEZAZT - HLEFEEHERBE
FHZ17 6% KRG E -

REE-_FERER_FTRF=R=
T—EBELEE —BRENEBSAER
(B BE2TEMBRRERK
FURREXERRAFENBARE LR
R-BERAEEZIERNREZNE
NE REREREN%ETHRRE

EEMBZEERMELZFAEHERSA
BB ZEBRBIRITHETE-



16.

DISPOSAL GROUP AND DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS

U)

On 19 January 20086, the Group, through its non-wholly
owned subsidiary, Memorex International Inc. (the “MII™),
entered into agreements (the “Disposal Agreement”) with
imation Corp. (“Imation”}, a company listed on the New
York Stock Exchange, to dispose of Mll's entire interest in
Hanny Magnetics Europe Limited, Memorex Canada Ltd.,
Memorex Products Europe Limited, Memorex Products
S.A.S., Memorex Products GmbH, Memorex Products
(Taiwan) Inc. and Memorex Products, Inc. (the “Disposed
Companies”) and to dispose of Mil’s trademark license
and other assets relating to the trading of computer related
product business under the trade name “Memorex” which
include the business of design, development, marketing,
distribution and sale of hardware, media and accessories
used for the storage of electronic data conducted by Mii
and the Disposed Companies (the “Disposed Business”).

The aggregate consideration of the Disposal comprises:
(1) an initial consideration of US$330,000,000 (equivalent
to approximately HK$2,562,450,000), (2) plus the amount,
if any, by which the amount of the complstion date net
current asset amount (as defined in the Company’s circular
dated 10 April 2006) exceeds US$87,000,000 (equivalent
to approximately HK$675,555,000) or minus the amount,
if any, by which the amount of the completion date net
current asset amount falls short of US$87,000,000
{equivalent to approximately HK$675,555,000); and (3)
plus the earnout amount which is to be determined by
reference to the earnings before interest, tax, depreciation
and amortization of the electronic data storage business
of the Disposed Companies to be disposed of by the Mil
and calculated on an agreed basis set out in the Disposal
Agreement for each of the twelve-month periods ending
on 31 March 2007, 31 March 2008 and 31 March 2008.
The earnout amount shall have a cumulative minimum of
US$5,000,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$38,825,000} and a cumulative maximum of
US$45,000,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$349,425,000). In the event that Imation transfers
control of the business (as defined in the circular dated 10
April 2006) at any time, prior to 1 April 2009, Imation will
pay Mil an amount equal to whatever would be required
to bring the aggregate amount of earnout payments to
US$45,000,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$349,425,000).

16.

HERBERFFERY

U]

R_BEEXRE-A+H TE
HEBREEZTENE T
Memorex International Inc.
(I Ml )& imation Corp.
(TMmation N (—REIRNEDHBEHZ
SE LTz aE) fTapE (THE
EWE ) R EMIRHanny
Magnetics Europe Limited -
Memorex Canada Lid. -
Memorex Products Europe
Limited -~ Memorex Products
S.A.8. - Memorex Products
GmbH + Memorex Products
(Taiwan) Inc. X Memorex
Products, Inc. ([ HE QR 2 &
gD THEMIZEEGF A&
& E it & 8 A [ Memorex] &
FREERNERER  EBZ
EE(BEMIERERRIETZ
EFTHERTFMEEG FEE
Bz ME mEEERE 9
ERHEZER([REER) -

PERSGZERBAE (NWIT
£ {8 &330,000,000F & (HF
TR 432 562,450,000 7T) (2)5
NEXEERDEESFE (T
ARESMATTEXRENE+EZ
) #8%87,000,000% 7T (#
ERN#1676,555,0008 7T) 28
B2 OB () SR A=A R
EIR 8 E E A 4 787,000,000
E T (FBBE R #675,555,0000%
T)ZEEZRE(A) RO
SHENEE BESEISR
BFEMIHEZHELS ZEF
HERTFEBEE ST +F=
AZ+—R - ZBENE=ZA=
+—BREEAFZH=+—
Bt +-—@BAEEM AT
B BHE WERBHEIAMNE
T mEBREMNYVEREME S
BEEEHE -EHNSELER
S{E 588 55,000,000F 7T (8%
A #138,825,000E ) MEESR
S Ei/8 A£45,000,000E T (F8%
P 49349, 425,0005% 7T ) ° M
imation R-ZESTALEMMA—B
AT REREEER T E
(EERBAYA-_ZTT X NERNH
+RB 2Bk  8llmation & F
MIER—EBEEREEIINTK
4858 1E 45,000,000 7T (BER
41349,425 0008 T) 2 FrE S
BIRE-
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16. DISPOSAL GROUP AND DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS
(Continued)

(i)

Pursuant to the Disposal Agreement, the Group was also
reguired to transfer and assign the trading of consumer
electronic product business (the “Discontinued Business”)
to Imation before the completion of the Disposal Agreement
and accordingly, the trading of consumer electronic
product business was classified as discontinued
operations.

Given the current estimated net consideration of
approximately HK$2,454,000,000 for the Disposed
Business as set out in the Company's announcement
dated 26 January 20086, the net procesds of disposal are
expected 1o exceed the aggregate amount of the carrying
value of trademark licenses of M, the net carrying amount
of the relevant assets and liabilities of the Disposed
Business and accordingly, no impairment loss has been
recognized.

On 10 March 2005, the Group also entered into agreement
to dispose of approximately 15.3% interest in CSHL for a
consideration of approximately HK$26,000,000, the
completion which is subject to the completion of a group
reorganization by CSHL (“CSHL Reorganization”), details
of the CSHL Disposal and the CSHL Reorganization are
set out in note 24. After completion of the disposat of
CSHL, the Group will retained approximately 14% equity
Interest in CSHL.

The assets and liabiiities attributable to the Disposed
Business as well as the approximately 15.3% share of
assets are liabilities of CSHL (after the completion of the
CSHL Reorganization), which are expected to be sold
within twelve months, have been classified as a disposal
group held for sale and was presented separately in the
balance sheet (see below). No significant assets attributable
to the Discontinued Business will be abandoned upon its
operations were discontinued.

Regarding the CSHL Disposal, the net proceed of disposal
of approximately HK$26,000,000 is expected to exceed
the share of assets and liabilities of CSHL (after the
completion of CSHL Reorganization), no impairment loss
has also been recognized.

The disposal of Disposed Business and CSHL Disposal
was completed subsequent to the balance sheet date.

16.

HESERIIFSHEER (1)

RELEHH FEETARTHLE
BEAEImatonEER L BEEE RS
ETERRY (CRLEER]) HEE
HEETERMERC O ERERESR
o

ERALBBEE-EERE—B=+
REZAMERSEEERZEEETR
BB 3H472,454,000,000% 7T - Bl H &= FR
SHRBESERESBEMIEIZ A&
LEEE EHEEZERERERDS
ERCvEBRESHE RYERANE

RZFFAFZATRE FKEETY
—HEBE KLERPERGI53%E
A EX /26,000,000 T XK (AX
TRERSREEB([FREL]) 28
B) FPREEFEZHBERPRESR
BWROHIE24 - EXMEHEFRR XE
B RE N R RO 14%RE-

HEEXBBEEERBEURBERE
BERBENISI% (REXFAREA
®) (ZEEERBBRTZEARG
B)EROBRE - EBEHEZHES
B UYREERER (RT3 AHAIE
LEF-EERBEILE BEEEDR
LEBEBREZEREE-

BRPRHEEE HEMESRBFER
#7126,000,000F T TEAAG B A E (B P R
CEERBEBE (RERPRELE) W
WERZRREFSB-

HEHEXBETRELESTRENEH
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16.

DISPOSAL GROUP AND DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS 16, HEEERESELER (8)

(Continued)

The major classes of assets and liabilities of the Disposed Business
and CSHL as at 31 March 2008, which have been presented
separately in the balance sheet, are as follows:

RIEERFZR=ZT—H EREE
RERTIFEINZHEEBRIE L

TEERBEERBENT:

2006
HK$°000
TEEXRE
F#& A
Property, plant and eguipment Y S KRG 29,720
Goodwil mE ' 167,908
Intangible assets BEE 68,002
Interests in an associate R—EELa zER 30,822
Deferred tax assets BERIEEE 51,684
Inventories FE 616,142
Trade and other receivables B 5 M E MW EIE 645,946
Tax recoverable AR E IR 9,019
Bank balances and cash RITHEEFEREAS 26,016
Total assets classified as held for sale DEBBELEZREE 1,645,259
Trade and other payables B S REMEMNRE 669,778
Other liabilities HihBE 1,738
Bantk borrowings RITHEIK 170,698
Deferred tax liabilities RERIBERE 12,114
Total liabilities associated with DERARHE
assets classified as held for sale EERMZBEE 854,328
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16.

DISPOSAL GROUP AND DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS

(Continued)

The results attributable to the Disposed Business and Discontinued

16. HERERFHFHEER ()

AEE REXBRIBEXRVBEREZ

Business for the year were as follows: REWT:
2006 2005
HK$'000 HK$'000
—EEARE “ZETREF
T # F A
Revenue U A 5,385,144 5,418,803
Cost of sales fHE AR (4,167,175) (4,231,301)
Other income HAb A 8,441 11,499
Distribution and selling expenses THEHEEEERS (955,573) {757,830)
Administrative expenses TBFEX (156,652) (172,461)
Finance costs FRBR (12,428) {3,043)
Profit before incorme tax B PRIG T AT & 7 101,757 265,667
income tax expense PR X & {49,338) {(113,115)
Profit for the year EFE R 52,419 152,552
The cash flows of the discontinued operations were as follows: ERBEERZESRENOT:
2006 2005
HK$’000 HK$'000
ZEEXFE —ERERE
FHA F+HA
Net cash (used in) from operating activities REEG (BRI EEZ
B B5 (261,773) 281,908
Net cash used in investing activities BEYKBAEZASEE (15,160) (13,302)
Net cash from {used in) financing activities BEEXB (BRI EEZ
REFE 170,236 (152,682)




17.

LOSS FOR THE YEAR

17. HREEEE

Continuing operations

Discontinued operations

Consolidated

BAEK FHEER &8
2006 2005 2006 2005 2006 2005
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'GO0
ZEZRRE “TTRFE ZBEAREF ZTTHF ZTERE “TTIF
T@A FHRA FH#A FHA FEL FAHA
Loss for the year has been arrived AEEER
at after charging (crediting): 2akGA):
Staff costs fincluding directors’ EINA(BIEESRE):
emoluments):
Salaries and other benefits FRREMER 19,303 34,265 145970 136585 165363 170,850
Retirement benefits scheme RINBFEEIEN
contriputions 856 1,341 2,832 1,837 3,688 3,178
20,249 35,606 148,802 138,422 169,051 174,028
Depreciation and amortisation: HEREH:
Amortisation of intangible assets BREEREZEH
and goodwill included in (BEETHRAEN)
administrative expenses) - 45272 806 5,794 806 51,066
Depreciation and amortization of mE BERBEL
property, plant and equipment TEREH 2,613 8,102 11,191 11,683 13,804 19,785
2,613 53,374 11,997 17,477 14,610 70,851
Allowance for bad and doubiful debts RERER 3,007 11,374 13,575 10,895 16,672 22,269
Allowance for loan receivables BUETER 11,542 8,338 - - 11,542 8,338
Allowange {reversal of allowance) ERABERER
for margin loan receivables (CEBEE) 4,922 {2,387) - - 4,922 (2,387)
Write-down of slow moving and BELREEELEE
obsolete inventories - 1,060 75,732 24,528 75,732 25,588
Auditors’ remuneration RERs 8,964 2,308 4,862 6,092 13,826 8,490
Net gain on investments held for trading/ #EEBRAZWEZFEH/
Net gain on other investments EHREZUREE (60,980)  (62,138) - - (60,980) (62,136
Loss on disposal of property, HEWE BERRERE
plant and equipment 2,616 405 120 893 2,736 1,098
Cost of inventory recognized as expense  BRARZ ZHERA 43,491 50,072 3977855 4085948 4021346 4118020
Share of income tax of associates [k Hﬁ# ERERME %5’
(included in share of results of (BETEERER
associates) REA) 2,618 4,247 - - 2,615 4,247
Exchange oss (gain) HEEE () 5580  (10470) 7,735 1232 13315 (9.239)
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18.  DIRECTORS' AND EMPLOYEE'S REMUNERATION 18. EEBEREEM:
(@ Directors’ remuneration (@) BEEME
The emoluments paid or payable to each of the 12 (2005 ESNETTI2REE (22
12) directors were as follows: TF12F)EEZHEWT:
2006 2005
HK$°000 HK$'000
—EERE —EERHE
I & A %A
Chan Kwok Keung, Charles ek
Fees e - -
Other emoluments: HEidhe:
Salaries and other benefits HeRHMWIER - -

Retirement benefits scheme contributions 38 7R 48 FI 5T Bl 55 - -

Yap, Allan Yap, Allan
Fees wne - -
Other emoluments: HEE
Salaries and other benefits HehEMER 2,400 2,400
Retirement benefits scheme contributions iR K8 F| 51 B4 3% 12 12
2,412 2,412
Lui Siu Tsuen, Richard = KR
Fees wse - -
Other emoluments: EH A B &
Salaries and other bensfits HFeREMEF 1,600 1,378
Retirement benefits scheme contributions 3R 7K 38 |5+ 8] 3% 94 82
1,694 1,470
Chan Kwok Hung BRENS
Fees wE - -
Other emoluments; Hi g
Salaries and other benefits HeREMER - -

Retirement benefits scheme contributions BRI F|EH B = - -




18. DIRECTORS' AND EMPLOYEE'S REMUNERATION 18. EEREEME (8)

(Continued)
@) Directors’ remuneration (Continued) (a) BEEME (8
2006 2005
HK$'000 HK$'000
—EEXF —EEREF
FHEA T T
Fok Kin-ning, Canning EgE
Fees & - -
Other emoluments: Eml g
Salaries and other benefits HeREMETR ‘ - -
Retirement benefits scheme contributions R K& 5 81 3% - -
Ip Tak Chuen, Edmond EEs
Fees e - -
Other emoluments: HEaps:
Salarles and other benefits HEeREMET - -
Retirement benefits scheme contributions 3R K18 F1J5T B 3k - -
Cheung Hon Kit REG
Fees HME - -
Other emoluments: Hi &
Salaries and other benefits HEREMER - -
Retirement benefits scheme contributions 3R RIE FET B3 - -
Kwok Ka Lap, Alva ET
Fees e 48 24
Other emoluments: HEHie:
Salaries and other benefits He MEMER - -

Retirement benefits scheme contributions 3B R 48 Rl 5T Bl £ 3% - -

48 24
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18.  DIRECTORS' AND EMPLOYEE'S REMUNERATION 18. ESREBEME ()
(Continued)
@  Directors’ remuneration (Continued) @ EBMSE (5
2006 2005
HK$'000 HK$'000
—EBEBRE —EETRE
T #HA FHAL
Wong King Lam, Joseph BERD
Fees e 50 25
Other emoluments: E B &
Salaries and other benefits HehHMER - -
Retirement benefits scheme contributions  BRBFIE S EH & - -
50 25
Yuen Tin Fan, Francis RRA
Fees we - -
Other emoluments: E B
Salaries and other benefits HeREMER - -
Retirement benefits scheme contributions R R & F| 5+ 21 = - -
Sin Chi Fai oy
Fees we 12 N/A
Other emoluments: Hamie:
Salaries and other bensfits HFehEMWER - N/A
Retirement benefits scheme contributions R K@ R 5T B £ 3% - N/A
12 N/A

Shih, Edith

Fees

Other emoluments:
Salaries and other benefits
Retirement benefits scheme contributions

MEER TR

ik

HbBE:
FrakEMER
RARIERET BIH X




18.

DIRECTORS' AND EMPLOYEE'S REMUNERATION 18. EBERESHS (4
(Continued)
) Directors’ remuneration (Continued) (a) EEWE ()
2006 2005
HK$’000 HK$'000
—BEEXRE ZEZERE
F B A FHE T
Diractors’ fees BENS 110 49
Other emoluments: HEfh g
Salaries and other benefits HFeRkEAMER 4,000 3,778
Retirement benefits scheme contributions B RIBF|ET B = 106 104
4216 3,931
(b):  Employees’ remuneration o) EBEEMS

The emoluments of the five highest paid individuals of the
Group included one director for each of the two years
ended 31 March 2006 and 2005, whose emoluments are
included in (a) above. The aggregate emoluments of the

remaining individuals are as follows:

HE-ZZETZRER_ZETHF=
BE+—-BUEMAFESE K
EEARE—REEARZIANS
SEHFATZBHSEZMHR X
(@ EsaH AL BeRE
N

2006 2005

HK$'000 HK$'000

TEERE —EERHE

F & FEHA

Salaries and other benefits He REMER 10,392 9,916
Performance related incentive payments SEEXRBEBEZ & 5,697 3,808
Retirement benefit scheme RREHETE 312 252
16,401 14,066

HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000
HK$2,500,001 to HK$3,000,000
HK$7,000,001 to HK$7,500,000

HK$8,500,001 to HK$39,000,000

2,000,001 7T
%2 2,500,000 7T
2,500,001 7T
23,000,000/ 7T
7,000,0017& 7T
£7,500,000% 7T
8,500,00178 7T
£9,000,0007% 7T

Number of employees

ERAS
2006 2005
S i ~FTTF
1 2
2 1




Notes to the Financial Statements

19.

B R M T
For the yearended 31 March 2006 . £ ~ 22 <5 = A=+ — 8 L £ &
DISTRIBUTIONS 19. waiid
2006 2005
HK$'000 HK$'000
ZEEREF —ETRE
T A T # 4
Final, paid — HK8 cents per share R BN -—_2TFHE
for 2005, with a scrip option FHREAN ('L
(2004; HK6 cents BRE) (ZETmE:
per share) FHeEN) 13,418 11,193
Interim, paid — HK4 cents per share AR 2 - ERR4EN
with a scrip option (MBE LR E) 9,045 -
22,463

The final dividend of HK6 cents (2005; HKB cents) per share in
cash with a scrip option has been proposed by the directors and
is subject to approval of the shareholders at the forthcoming

general meeting.

Share dividends were offered in respect of the 2005 and 20086.

11,193

EZRIURSRERBES (AEE
MR E) BEREEN (ZTTHF 68
i) MEAGFRERBRRRE LR

HAEE-

ER-FFAFR_FENERHERD

These cash and share dividends were as follows: BE-ZEReABROREWET:
2006 2005
HK$'000 HK$'000
—EERE ZEERF
F %A -5

Dividend i 2

- cash -8 9,850 10,987
— share alternative — B miEE 12,613 208
22,463 11,193




20.

EARNINGS (LOSS) PER SHARE 20.

For the years ended 31 March 2006 and 2005, the calculation of
the basic earnings (loss) per share is based on the profit (loss) for
the year attributable to equity holders of the Company of profit
(loss) of HK$8,915,000 and HK$161,862,000, respectively, and
on the weighted average number of shares in issue during the
years ended 31 March 2006 and 2005 of 226,164,460 shares
and 198,244,118 shares respectively.

For continuing and discontinued operations
The calculation of the basic and diluted earnings (loss) per share

attributable to the ordinary equity holders of the Company is
based on the following data:

BREN (BHR)

BE_ZEREF_FTERAE=/R=+
—BLEE FRERNER (BE) ik
RARRIBRESEEAREEZTARM (S
B) 5 B B 8915 000% T &k
161,862,000/8 T 2 F (Bi1R) k&=
CTEERER-_ETREZAZ=+—H
IEEBBTROZNETEHE S A A
226,164,4600% 52 198,244 11885 &

MEEEEBEFFEREME

AREEARBEFEARGERES
REERN (BR) DRATEENE:

Earnings: B
2006 2005
HK$'000 HK$'000
TEERE —ETRE
I % A T # T
Profit (loss) for the year attributable to EORIRERE A
equity holders of the Company EEEEEF (FEE) 8,915 (161,862)
Number of shares: B EE:
Weighted average number of SEEREREFNZ
ordinary shares for the purposes of TR mEFEEE
basic earnings per share (in thousands) (BAF3E) 226,164 198,244
Effect of dilutive potential ordinary shares: TJge¥T ERARE A B E 2!
Options (in thousands) BBARAE (LT 2,806 N/A
Weighted average number of TEEREERN
ordinary shares for the purposes of TEBEMEFEHEE
diluted earnings per share (in thousands}  (WAT&H) 228,970 N/A

During the year ended 31 March 2005, no diluted loss per share
in respect of both the continuing and discontinued operations is
presented as the exercise of the Company’s share options would
result in a decrease in loss per share.

BE_ETRF=-R=T—HLEFE"
BENSERBEERERB2EM
Fh#ERE FETEARRBRE
e EREBERE L
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20. EARNINGS (LOSS) PER SHARE (Continued)

From continuing operations

The calculation of the basic and diluted loss per share from
continuing operations attributable to the ordinary equity holders
of the Company is based on the following data:

20.

BREMN (BR) (51
KREBEEB
SEARAEBRBERA ABIGRE

HEXBERERARBEEBNENMU
TEHEE:

Loss figures are calculated as follows: BEZFHTEOT:
2006 2005
HK$’000 HK$'000
—EERE —ETLF
FHE T T A
Profit (jloss) for the year attributable to RRBEEFHE A
equity holders of the Company EiEFE R (B1R) 8,915 (161,862)
Less: Profit for the year from BRBIEBEER
discontinued operations ZEFEEEF (27,985) (68,955)
Earnings for the purposes of HEREBEERZ
basic earnings per share from BREXEF
continuing operations (19,070) (230,817)

The denominators used are the same as those detailed above

both basic earnings per share.

From discontinued operations

Basic earnings per share for the discontinued operations is 12
cents per share (2005: 35 cents per share) and diluted earnings
per share for the discontinued operations is 12 cents per share,
based on the profit for the year from the discontinued operations
of HK$27,985,000 (2005: HK$68,955,000) and the denominators
detailed above for basic and diluted earnings per share.

Az SR EXMAFERESR
BEABFAAFEBERR-

REFEFERR

EREEBEEBZ2EER T
27,985,000 T (Z B & H &£ -
68,055,000 ) R F XErii st H B R
EARBERFOTUHE EREE
BrEREXABNBER12BEL(ZF
THRE -FIR3IGEWL) REBREEBZ
BREHEZT A28 .



20.

EARNINGS (LOSS) PER SHARE (Continued)

From discontinued operations (Continued)

The following table summarizes the impact on both basic and
diluted earnings per share as a result of:

20, BREXN (BR) (&)

REIFFEER (4)

TEREBLEREARBEANZFE.

JhE

Impact on basic earnings

impact on diluted earnings

per share per share
ERERBIZEE ERBERAZY
2006 2005 2006 2005
HK$ HK$ HK$ HKS$
ZEEXRE —EERF —EBERE —ZETRF
Earnings (loss) per share Bl R (EE)
- basic —Bx
Figures before adjustments B A 2 &=E (0.65) 0.81) 0.64) NA T@EMH
Adjustments arising from FEHEZ
changes in accounting BEMELY
policies (Note 3) S (9 23) 0.69 0.01) 068 NA T@Ef
Figures after adjustments ~ FBEE Y &F 0.04 (0.82) 004 NA TEH
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21. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 21. WE -HEDRE
Furniture,
fixtures
Landand  Plant and and Motor
buildings  machinery Moulds  equipment vehicles Total
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
B8
THRET ERREH BE #£BERZE AE By
AL FBA f#i 3 A R A
THE GROUP by =2
COST OR VALUATION REERGE
At 1 Aprit 2004 R_EEMFERA/—B 46,022 43,569 2,971 98,142 6,082 186,766
Currency realignment WERE 1,103 - - (4,882) 37 (3.742)
Additions g - - - 13,528 701 14,229
Disposals and write off HERHHE - - - (16,791) (2,415) (19,208)
Disposal of a subsidiary HE—BHELE - - - (3,811 - (3,811)
At 31 March 2005 R-_EERFZA=+-H 47,125 43,569 2,971 86,186 4,385 184,236
Currency realignment HERE (662) - - (372) {32) (1,086)
Additions b:: 3] - - - 15,213 257 15,470
Reclassified as held for sale BHARELE - - - _8r.240 (1,416) (88,656)
Disposals and write off I R - (3343 - 0.871) (5220 (36.831)
Disposal of a subsidiary PE—TK B LA - - - {150) - (180)
At 31 March 2006 RZEEREZAZ+-8 46,483 10,131 2,971 10,766 2,672 73,008
Analysis of cost or valuation: AR ER
At 31 March 2005 RIBEIEZA=Z+-8
At cost RRAE 18,918 43,569 2971 86,186 4385 156,029
At valuation wafk 28,207 - - - - 28,207
47,125 43,569 2,971 86,186 4,385 184,236
At 31 March 2006 R-ZBERE=F=1+—-8
At cost ERAE 18,256 10,131 2,971 10,766 2,672 44,796
At valuation RiEE 28,207 - - - - 28,207

46,463 10,131 2,971 10,766 2,672 73,003




PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued) 21, WE-BAB/RRE (5
Furniture,
fixtures
Landand  Plant and and Motor
buildings  machinery Moulds  equipment vehicles Total
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
HE-
THREF BEREH BE RERRE AE BH
FEAL THAL S THEL FEA TR
DEPRECIATION, AMORTIZATION FE BHRAEE
AND IMPAIRMENT
At 1 April 2004 R-BENENF—F 8,580 39,337 2962 62,732 3,652 117,263
Currency realignment SMERE 31 - - (4,262 24 (4,207)
Provided for the year FEEEE 1,014 1,106 8 16,886 771 18,785
Eliminated on disposals and write off HEREEEER - - - (14,970) (1,864) (16,834)
Eliminated on disposal of a subsidiary DE-BHBRSERR - - - (2,328) - (2,328)
At 31 March 2005 WZZERE-R=1-H 9,625 40,443 2970 58,058 2583 113679
Currency realignment HEER 20) - - (257) (18) (295)
Provided for the year EEFRE 1016 430 1 11,881 476 13,804
Reclassified as heid for sale EFRBHELE - - - (57,825) (1,111 (58.936)
Eliminated on disposals and write off HE R B - {30,742) - {2.754) 234 (33,730)
Eliminated on disposal of a subsiciary HE-BHBARNGHE - - - (86) - 86)
At 31 March 2006 RIEEREZAZ+—H 10,621 10,131 2,971 9,017 1,696 34,436
NET BOOK VALUES REFE
At 31 March 2006 RZFERFZAZ+—-H 35,842 ~ - 1,749 976 38,567
At 31 March 2005 RZEERAE-R=+—H 37,500 3,126 1 28,128 1,802 70,557

The above items of property, plant and equipment are depreciated

FizE BERBESBREDRER

EATERNE:

on straight-line basis at the following rates per annum.

Freehold land Nil KA R &

Leasehold land and buildings Over the period of FRE T WHEHFEHSN
the leases or 2% - 5% kgF 2%— 5%

Plant and machinery 10% - 20% 1 28 T M 10%ZE20%

Moulds 25% - 33% A 25% % 33%

Furniture, fixtures and equipment ~ 10% — 33% HFR - EBEREH 10%E33%

Motor vehicles 20% - 25% "E 20%ZE25%
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21.

22.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued) 21, PE-BEBERRE ()
The Group’s land and buildings comprise: REBz THREEFEE:
2006 2005
HK$’000 HK$000
ZEERE —ERHE
FTEA I AT
Qutside Hong Kong: BN
Under medium-term leases in REEEAmNE Y
other regions of the PRC REROME 23,194 24,122
Freenold in Taiwan RBEZKAREDE 12,648 13,378
35,842 37,500
The valuation of land and buildings held under medium-term R—ANEE R AR AP 8
leases in other regions of the PRC in 1994 was made by Messrs. BOBBZ2IMREFTHEEDE—EB
American Appraisal Hong Kong Limited, an independent firm of UBHRABMTEEFEERRAFRS
Chartered Surveyors, on an open market value basis. HHEEEET
EERZIHMEREFENAEREEN
Had the revalued land and buildings been carried at cost less E R ER-FERER_ETRF
accumulated depreciation, thelr carrying amount would have been ZEZ+-—BZEEEEIHA
stated at HK$19,747,000 and HK$20,452,000 at 31 March 2006 19,747,000 7 7T %.20,452,000& 7T »
and 2005, respectively.
ME BBEREECERDFELENR
Included in the net book value of property, plant and equipment EROBEZEE N-BEEREZA
are assets held under finance leases amounting to HK$510,000 =+—BZ 8% A510,000E T
at 31 March 2005.
INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 22. BREME
HK$'000
FHA
FAIR VALUE DEEE
Acquired on acquisition of a subsidiary REE-BRBATNESR
and at 31 March 2006 R-ZBERFZA=Z+—8 133,000

The fair value of the Group’s investment properties at 31 March
2006 have been arrived at on the basis of valuation carried out
by B. | Appraisals Limited, a firm of independent valuers. The
valuation, which conforms to the Hong Kong Institute of Surveyors
Valuation Standard on Properties, of the Group's investment
properties was arrived at by reference to market evidence of
transaction prices for similar properties.

The investment properties are held under long leases and are
situated in Hong Kong.

ERBREVER BT REFZ/A=T
—BZAFRENERRELEENTR
MEBEEFRABETIHERERS
L-AREBZRENEBEDZZRE
MEXZHERZDEERBERL HFEE
EREMBG 2 MEGEER -

BRAMERURBBOBELUNE
}%D




23.  INTANGIBLE ASSETS 23. EREEE

Trademark
licences Patent Total
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
(note a) (note b)
LR EFE #E
I #& A T &L L
(Kt iz a) QR
COSsT MARE
At 1 April 2004 RIBETNMENA—H 281,318 8,065 289,383
Avrising on acquisition of additional Y BE— M B D F]
interest in a subsidiary EONEEmES - - -
At 31 March 2005 RZETRF
=B=+—8 281,318 8,065 289,383
Eliminated against accumulated WHEREREEVH
amortization upon the application MEEHERE
of HKFRS 3 mEEE 2 BEt (54,631) - (54,631)
At 1 April 2005 M_ZEZRENMA—H
- as restated — & E 5 226,887 8,065 234,752
Reclassified as held for sale i RFELE (62,020) (8,065) (70,085)
At 31 March 2006 RIEERE
=Z=B=+—8 164,667 - 164,667
AMORTIZATION AND IMPAIRMENT  E#REE
At 1 April 2004 RZEFMFMNA—A 31,065 470 31,535
Provided for the year F E B 23,566 807 24,373
At 31 March 2005 R_ZBEARAFE=A
=+—H 54,631 1,277 55,808
Eliminated against cost upon the MR EREAYB
application of HKFRS 3 HEEEMGE
MEL2 B (54,631) - (54,631)
At 1 April 2005 RIEEREWME—H
— as restated — &7 - 1,277 1,277
Provided for the year FREBRE - 806 806
impairment loss on trademark licences EAZ I LR EE B (164,667) - (164,667)
Reclassified as held for sale EMABIELE - (2,083) (2,083)
At 31 March 2006 R-ZEERFE=A
=+-—A (164,667) - (164,667)
CARRYING VALUES BREE
At 31 March 2006 R_EERE=F
=—+—H - - -
At 31 March 2005 R-EZERF=H

=t—-8 226,687 6,788 233,475
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23.  INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued)

Notes:

a,

The amount represented the acquisition of the “Memorex®”
trademark licenses from Memorex Telex N. V. in 1989 and the
“Dysan” and “Precision” trademark licenses from an independent
third party.

The carrying amount of the “Memorex®” trademark was
reclassified to the Disposed Assets as set out in Note 16.

Upon the adoption of HKAS 38 from 1 April 2005 onwards, the
Group reassessed the useful lives of the trademark licenses and
concluded that the trademark licenses with a total carrying amount
of approximately HK$226,687,000 have indefinite useful lives
and are not subject to amortization but are tested for impairment
annually.

The carrying amounts of trademark licenses of “Memorex®” brand
are classified as held for sale as at 31 March 2008, which are
then stated at lower of carrying amount and fair value less cost
to sale. (see Note 16 for details).

The trademark licenses of “Dysan” and “Precision” brand relied
on the support from the trademark licenses of “Memorex®” brand's
administrative structure, market network and reputation. Following
the conditional disposal of the trademark licenses of “Memorex®"
brand, the trademark licenses of “Dsyan” and “Precision” is
expected to be impaired by the directors of the Company as
there is a drop-out period of one year after such disposal
according to the sale and purchase agreement. Accordingly,
impairment loss of HK$164,667,000 is recognized in the
consclidated income statement for the year ended 31 March
2008.

The amount represented the acquisition of a labeimaker patent
in 2004. The patent is amortized over ten years on a straight fine
basis.

23.

BREE (5D

Mg

ZeBEDDER-ALAALER
Memorex Telex N.V.U &
Memorex®| BIEHTIERNR_ET
WE®BBYEZFHWEDysan] &
[Precision] BEHFAIZZ WEE-

M5 16FT & [ Memorex®] B 1Z &Y
EEECKENALEERE-

Ea—ZTAFOA-—BERKSE
A ERERE FREEAEE
HEBZAEEFH RARAER
B #) /226687000 T Z AR T
EREEREBES RAMBEATH
B EEESTHNRFEESER-

[Memorex®] @i 2 BT ] iL 2 BR
AER-FERFHELSERSED
E UMBRERHERETZREERR
FEECBREEIER(RHES)-

[Dysan) & [Precision) St H& 2 512
HF AT E R 7B [Memorex®] SR hE 2 B8
O EHERE TSEBREE
ZEHF 1 HE [Memorex®] RIE 2
HESHENE BREEGSE R
BAZBLERBEER B AT &
JEEH AL EEHEH
[Dysan] % [ Precision] M & 2 18
O EBSEZARENBER
B o B I - A (B B 98 164,667,000 &
TIREBE_ZEEREF=Z/=Z+—
ALEEZRABERTER-

REEAR_TENFHBEMEIE
BRZEBE-ZBANETRERE
ETFRHHE-




GOODWILL 24, ©HE
Goodwill Goodwilt
arising on arising on
acquisition acquisition
before after
1 January 1 January
2005 2005 Total
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
“BEREF —EEAF
—A-—BA —RA—R#
WEEEE WEEE
ZEE Z2EE BE
FHEL T & A FH A
CosT FRAE
At 1 April 2004 R-FTEMFMNA—AR 287,424 - 287,424
Arising on acquisition of additional WE-EHEAE
interest in a subsidiary BONERS T AR A - 24,430 24,430
At 31 March 2005 RZZEERF
ZR=+—R~ 287,424 24,430 311,854
Eliminated against accumulated WHNERERBYK
amortization upon the application BREEAESRE
of HKFRS 3 AL RET#E {143,946) - (143,946)
At 1 April 2005 R-ZZEERAFWA—H
-~ as restated - &5 143,478 24,430 167,908
Additions ¥EIE ~ 6,621 6,621
Reclassified as heid for sale B AFELS (143,478) (24,430) (167,908)
At 31 March 2006 R-IBERE
ZRA=+—8” - 6,621 6,621
AMORTIZATION B
At 1 April 2004 R-BEEMNFHA—A 117,253 - 117,253
Provided for the year KEERE 26,693 - 26,693
At 31 March 2005 WZETRE
ZA=+—8 143,946 - 143,946
Efiminated against cost upon the WHNEREAVE
application of HKFRS 3 HEEBNFEIRE
mMEECER (143,946) - (143,948)
At 1 April 2005 R-ZETRFIMA—H
- as restated and 31 March 2006 —ENRZTERE
ZAR=+-—H - - -
CARRYING VALUES BRMEE
At 31 March 2006 RIBEXREF
=ZA=+—H - 6,621 6,621
At 31 March 2005 RZEERE
ZA=+—H 143,478 24,430 167,908
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24,  GOODWILL (Continued) 24, BE(48)
Notes: fi 22
a. As at 1 April 2005, goodwill amounted to HK$167,908,000 (after a. R-ZZEERAFNAE—B BHEES
adljusted for the eliminations of accumulated amortization upon 167,908,000 L (RIER TR
application of HKFRS 3) represented the goodwill arisen from REEESREMMBE RITBHEAT
the acquisition of the businesses of Memtek Products Division of Bz HBEBER) EER-ANZEY
Tandy Corporation and Memorex Computer Supplies in 1993 B Tandy Corporation Z MemtekZE &
and the acquisition of an additional 14.9% interest in Mil in #8 F Memorex Computer Supplies ¥
2003, and for the year ended 31 March 2005, the amount of BERZBEZ=ZFEWBEMIZ14.9%
HK$24,430,000 represents the goodwill arisen from the BONERMEE2ER-HE-ZE
acquisition of a further of 1.6% interest in MIl after 1 January AEZA=Z=+T-BUIEE AH
2005. Goodwill are reclassified to Disposed Assets as set out in 24,430,000 T2 @ BEAR R
Note 16. EHAFE-R—BRUWEMIEM1.6%
BEMELEZEB - MIEF165MHE
FRBEFELESRE-
b. REE-BEZEXREZ/R=Z+—H1t
b. For the year ended 31 March 20086, the addition of goodwill of 4§ Ug BE Createsuccess Limited
approximately HK$523,000 and HK$5,998,000 attributed to the ([Createsuccess) ) R Rapid Growth
acquisition of the entire interest in Createsuccess Limited Profits Limited ( [Rapid Growth] ) &
(“Createsuccess”) and Rapid Growth Profits Limited (“Rapid HEZEF2BHEEEIAMED
Growth”), respectively (see Note 42 for details). 623,000/ 7T & 5,998,000% T - (&%
BHES RHE42)
During the year, impairment testing was performed in relation to FR 23 E B A UYFE Createsuccess &
the goodwill arising from acquisition of Createsuccess and Rapid Rapid GrowthFiE 4 2 B ST RE
Growth. Management and directors determine that there is no R EEEREEETLABENE
impairment of the above mentioned goodwill. poRER
25.  INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES 25, EE QTSR
2006 2005
HK$'000 HK$'000
ZEERE —EERE
F %A FH A
Cost of investment in associates which are; B T 7I|BE & D T1RE 2 A&
_ listed in Hong Kong frote a) —EEB LT (W) 508,994 508,994
~ listed overseas — g LT 200,025 195,736
— unlisted —JEE™ 6,579 8,579
Share of post-acquisition losses, Bt EEEE:
net of dividends received AU R (106,884) (129,977)
Goodwill on acquisitions of s N EELE
an associate (note b) 2 BB (Wb 38,979 51,094
Negative goodwill on acquisition of BREBELTNEEZ
an associate (note ¢) SEE (K(0) - (225)
Reclassified as held for sale (note ERNBEELE (Wi (30,822) -
616,871 632,201
Fair value of fisted shares iz AFREE 474,211 209,240
Amount dug from an associate (note d) EUWE A D T EE
(M 2£(d) 2,623 2,197
Loan to an associate (note ) BEP-—HEBEQFER
(Mg 22 (e) 1,331 1,331




25.

INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued)

Notes:

a.

25. EELFRER (4)

R

Amount represents the Group’s 29.36% equity interest in CSHL a. ZrBEEAEER-_EERFEZA
at 31 March 2006 and 31 March 2005, Et+—HERZET zﬁﬁ ZA=+
—HMBHREZ29.36%ME-
Included in the investment in associates is goodwill of b. R E 25 ?xﬁ PERUEBRE L
HK$38,979,000 and HKS351,094,000 as 31 March 2006 and AR _EERNFRIZEEHFZ

2005 arising on acquisition of assoclate, respectively. The

movement of goodwill is set out below:

ﬁE-&-“EiEEFﬁ@"%‘*J

38,979,000 7T %2 51,094,000/ Tt °

BEZEHFEIANRTX:
HK$'000
& A

COsT RAE
At 1 April 2004 and 2005 R-EEMER-_ETFFHNA—H 280,892
Elimination against accumulated amortization upon WHERNEREENBRSEREINRE

the application of HKFRS 3 (see Note 2} MESZ BFTHHE (Lwi2) {229,798)
At 1 April 2005 RZBEZTHAFMNA—A

— as restated — 8 =5 51,094
Additions b1 2,276
At 31 March 2006 R-EBXE=ZR=+-—H 53,370
AMORTIZATION AND IMPAIRMENT ﬁﬁ@ﬁ&:ﬁi
At 1 April 2004 W_BZENFEMA—H 24,263
Provided for the year REFEE 28,089
Impairment loss recognized for the year REEBRAZRESS 177,446
At 31 March 2005 R-EEREZ/R=T—8 229,798
Elimination against cost upon the application of WERNEREEYBHRSEUENRE

HKFRS 3 (see Note 2) MELZEBH (A2 (229,798)
At 1 April 2005 R-FEEREMA—R

- as restated — &5 -
Release upon deemed disposal of an associate BELHE—HEBREQFEAEL 14,391
At 31 March 2006 R-ZBEXRF=ZA=+-—8 14,391
CARRYING VALUE REE
At 31 March 2006 RIBEEREZR=+—8 38,979
At 31 March 2005 R-BERE=A=+-8 51,004

Until 31 March 2005, goodwill had been amortized for a period

of ten years.

E:ﬁ;— =

ZRF=A=Zt—8 B8
Z%i&]%ﬁﬁrki
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25. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued) 25. BENTER (5D
Notes: (Continued) B (&)
c. Negative goodwill arising on acquisition of an associate: c. WE-MEELRELEZAEE:
HK$'000
I
GROSS AMOUNT A
At 1 April 2004 R_BEFENFEFMA—H -
Additions EHE (233)
At 31 March 2005 R-EBEEFFZA=+—8H (233)
Elimination against accumulated realization upon WEREREEVMEREEREIRE
the application of HKFRS 3 (see Note 2) MEEZ BEr#H (w2 233
At 31 March 2006 R-BEXF=ZRB=+—8 -
REALIZATICON IR
At 1 April 2004 RZEEWFEMA—A -
Released during the year FAEE 8)
At 31 March 2005 R-_EERE=Z/A=+—H 8)
Elimination against gross amount upon WENEREEY RS EREIHRE
the application of HKFRS 3 (see Note 2) MEEZ B (AW 8
At 31 March 2006 R-ZEZXRF=ZA=+—H -
CARRYING AMOUNT BRE{E
At 31 March 2006 R-BBAEZH=+-—-H -
At 31 March 2005

R-BEZREZ/=+—8 (225)

Until 31 March 2005, negative goodwill had been released to
income on a straight-line basis over ten years. From 1 Aprit 2005
onwards, all negative goodwill with carrying amount of
HK$225,000 previously included in interests in associates was
derecognized at 1 April 2006 upon the application of HKFRS 3
(see Note 2).

At 31 March 2008, the amount is unsecured, interest-free and is
repayable on demand. The fair value of the amounts due from
an associate at respective balance sheet date was approximate
to the corresponding carrying amount.

At 31 March 2005, the amount due from an associate was
unsecured, interast free and have no fixed terms of repayment.
Repayment of the balances will not be demanded within one
year of the balance sheet date and, accordingly, the amounts
are classified as non-current.

The fair value of the Group's amount due from associates as at
the balance sheet dates approximate to the carrying amount of
the receivables.

EEZZERFEZRA=ZT—H BF
BUERZRI0FHEREANRA A
ZETRFEOA-HE Rt ARE
NEEEBREEED 2250008 T2
PREEEB - HMRERERNBR
SEUEF (RWED TR_FTE
IEMA-SEBHERER-

RN_EEXRFZRA=+—-0 %=
REAN 2ERYEETENSE-
BU—-—BHELAIRELLAFEERE
NEAEREEBREEMEE

RIBRRFZRA=+-B El—
BREARREASRA 28 RY
BETERD-ZSLEBRTERNE
EOBFZ-FAEE B %F
RESIEIE MBI AR -

FEEREHARKEELSIRE
RAFEEEBRREZREEME
=




25.  INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

e.

Loan to an associate is unsecured, has no fixed terms of
repayment and bears interest at prevailing market rates.

The fair value of the Group's loan to associate as at the balance
sheet dates approximate to the carrying amounts of the
receivables.

Details of the Group’s principal associates at 31 March 2006 are
as follows:

25.

e. BY-HBELRERREER &
[E E;AHE&?*%S ‘J’m Ej%l—rnﬂ—g
B

REHE TEBRETHELIER
ZAFREEEUREZEEES
o

f. AEBTFRBEQSR e
ZRA=+— EZ%%%’?‘HIETI

Proportion of

Form of Place of equity interest
business incorporation/ attributable to
Name of associate structure operation the Group Principal activities
2005 2006
% %
AL TEEEER
BELNRER CEEBER HIEm A L5 FEEK
ZEENE ZEBERE
O/ %
CSHL Corporate Hong Kong 29.36 20.36  Investment holding
PR ¥ EE REER
PSC Corporation Ltd Corporate Singapore 21.71 24.26 Supply of household
(“PSCL") =k 3 h0E consumer products
EREEEROF
(TEe) HERFEEER

CSHL is a company listed in Hong Kong and its financial year
end date is 31 December. The Group’s share of interest in CSHL
at 31 March 2005 and at 31 March 2006, respectively, is
calculated based on the nst assets of CSHL at 31 December
2004 and 2005 respectively, after adjusting for any material
transactions up to 31 March 2005 and 31 March 20086, and the
result from the date on which CSHL became an associate of the
Group to respective balance sheet dates.

During the year ended 31 March 2005, the Group's equity interest
in CSHL was diluted from 31.20% to 29.36% as a result of
exercise of share options of CSHL.

At 31 March 2005 and 31 March 2008, the Group held 29.36%
equity interest in CSHL.

PSCL is a company listed in the Republic of Singapore and its
financial year end date is 31 December. The Group's share of
interest in PSCL at 31 March 2005 and at 31 March 2006,
respectively is calculated based on the net assets of PSCL at 31
March 2005 and at 31 March 2008, respectively extracted from
the published financial information of PSCL and the resuit from
the date on which PSCL became an associate of the Group to
respective balance sheet dates.

HEDREELDZLE AVNREFRELE
BATZA=+t—-B-REEBETERZ
EERAFEZAZT-BR-BTRE=ZRZ
tT—BZHEE DERBETPRR-FTAFE
TERERFT A= -BZEEREE
BEE_LTTHAE=ZA=+—-BRIEER
@Eﬁi#——ﬂﬂ:i&‘l%ﬁ?&%ﬁﬁ?ﬂ%
)RR R BT EEEELE EEE
EHZHERFE

REBEE-_ZZRE=Z/A=+T—BILEE &
EEMNPRZIERITERE Z BREM S
31.20%E#EZE20.36% °

F_fgﬂi ﬁ 'f‘ E&— ‘%/\i_
AzZ+—8 F&EBFEPFE2036%ER-

ZTED—MRFIEANE T ZAR K
FRFERE

%aﬁ+_ﬁz+~aom$
EhHERR-_EZRAFZA=Z+—HBRZE
EREZAZT-BZ2ED DIBRBETER
—ETRE=A=+— E&:@Eﬁi_ﬁ
Z+—BZEERE(H EmERE:HJ%é
Zﬁﬂ%éﬂ)&ﬁﬁiﬁﬁzﬁmﬁlﬁéﬁﬁ" B
EEEERZEEE
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25.

INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES {Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

f.

Details of the Group's principal associates at 31 March 2006 are
as follows: (Continued)

The above tables list the associates of the Group which, in the
opinion of the directors, principally affected the results of the
Group for the year or formed a substantial portion of the net
assets of the Group at the end of the year. To give details of
other associates would, in the opinion of the directors, result in
particulars of excessive length.

On 10 March 2005, the Group and PYI Corporation Ltd. (formerly
known as Paul VY. ITC Construction Holdings Limited) (“PYI),
another substantial shareholder of CSHL, entered into a share
sale agreement with an independent third party for the disposal
of an aggregate 270,000,000 shares of CSHL {representing a
15.3% interest in CSHL or 135,000,000 shares each held by the
Group and PYI) for a total consideration of approximately
HK$52,000,000 (the “CSHL Disposal”). The completion of the
CSHL Disposal is subject to the completion of a group
reorganization by CSHL ("“CSHL Reorganization”).

On 19 May 2008, the CSHL Reorganization was duly completed,
which resulted in (i) CSHL continues to be a public listed company
with its subsidiaries concentrating on its business of manufacturing
and trading of battery products, investments in securities and
property and investment in unlisted investments; (i) all other
subsidiaries of CSHL which are engaged in property development,
holding business and vessels for sand mining, and all other
associate companies of CSHL which are engaged in
manufacturing and marketing of tires, business of providing
package tour, travel and related services and hotel operation
have been grouped under Group Dragon Investments Limited (a
wholly owned subsidiary of CSHL) ("GDI") and continue to be
run by the existing management of CSHL,; and {jii) the distribution
in specie of shares in GDI to the then shareholders of CSHL, on
the basis of one GDI share for every shdre in CSHL after
consolidation under the capital reorganization.

On 26 May 2006, Somerley Limited, financial advisor to the
Group, made an offer, on behalf of the Group, to acquire all the
remaining interest in GDI other than those already owned by the
Group (the “GDI Acquisition”). The GDI Acgquisition was approved
by the shareholders of the Company on 17 Qctober 2005 and
was completed in June 2006. The Group’s interest in CSHL was
reduced to 14.04% and presented as non-current asset held for
sale (see note 16), whiist the Group held 98.92% interest in GDI.

Details of the CSHL. Disposal and the GDI Acguisition are set out
in a Company’s circular dated 26 May 2006 and in the Company’s
announcement dated 16 June 2008.

25.

Be R R RS (4

Mz ()

f.

AEHIEHELTR _EERE
ZAZ+-BZEEFHNOT ()

FRIBEAEBBELR HER
RAEXTRYELEEERN2BER
BRAERFEEAEFEEREND
ZRE-ERRA FREMBER
FEgRBBEAR TR

RZBERE=ZA+E FTEERP
ErE—EFERERELKEER
DA (FIEREEHREZERFRD
B (TRENE-BYBZFHE
£ & #£270,000,000/  E K {7 (48
ERPEISINRE HFEEAR
5 B35 & 135,000,0008% ) 573288
SRS 2R E52,000,000%8 7T
([FEHEER]) - RXTREE
FHESTREEREBEE ([F1]
Bl FE{EHE-

RZBERFRATAA PREAR
FRAER ERANPREERLR
LR EMNBOSERHSFED
EGREREE ELMERRYE
RE(IPRBEVEBERRGEE
BES FOMEZMEREHELS
B U REERRHEREE R
MEITE MR R AR Z 8
RBEREZMERMEE QTS
RPEEETRERBEREIREAS
BLAE(PRz2ZEAMBAE) ([&
B REERTRZABTRER
EEE (IMRBRETEENEER.
BERRREBRYO KT EE
HRERD EEREBEBRTER
R —-REERG-

Ro-BBRERAZ+ B FEHE
ZHHMERFEMNEROATRRR
SEENES WERTEECDRESE
ZHRIZREEGEEES ([H
BB HBENBN-_ETRET
A++-BHEERLFIMEN A-ZIE
TER-TBEERENARKR Bt
AEBRGPEZHEBEREREESE
14.04% BB 2V BHEHEERS
BE(Awmzle) TEBRREHEE
BE98.92%R% 1 -

PREEEEERERRESEERE
ERAEEAR_ZEZERERA-+
AEPBEZBEREBRELARNRIEE
NEXRB+TRBEHBZOHR.
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INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued)

Nates: (Continued)

g.

The summarized financial information in respect of the Group’s

associates is set out below:

FEEBELATNTBEERHKENT:

2006 2005
HK$°000 HK$'000
S SR EE
F# A F#& A
Total assets BERE 3,307,275 3,452,648
Total liabilities BEERE (1,132,934) {1,308,483)
Nat assets BEFE 2,174,341 2,144,165
Group’s share of net assets of associates ZTEBELBLE DNFEEEE 616,871 632,201
2006 2005
HK$’'000 HK$'000
—EEXE —EERF
FHRA F &
Revenue PN 870,320 898,270
Loss for the year REEZERE (56,160) (184,410)
Group’s share of loss of associates FEETAEGBENFER
for the year (21,494) (64,909)
The Group has discontinued recognition of its share of losses of h. FEBRCREBRRARESR :FE /N
certain associates. The amounts of unrecognized share of those BlZ BB UT %Féf&:' *22 EHE QT
associates, extracted from the relevant audited financial ZREBEEME NEEE ﬁ? B
statements of associates, both for the year and cumulatively, are PRAREEEECUERRRES
as follows: wm
2006 2005
HK$'000 HK$'000
TEERE —ETHE
F#& A FHEA
Accumulated unrecognized of share losses  FE{G B & A B 25T
of associates RIEREE (19,441) (19,230)
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26. INVESTMENTS IN SECURITIES 26. BHRE
Investment securities as at 31 March 2005 are set out below. RIBEREZR=1T—-B2ZELREE
Upon the application of HKAS 39 on 1 April 2005, investrment in BIMT-H_EERFMA—EER
securities were reclassified to appropriate categories under EROHENENNE BEHREEN
HKAS 39 (See Note 2). GEEEACHENFERREETZ
HEER (AW -
Investment Other
securities investments Total
RERE Hi®E B
2005 2005 2005
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000
—EBRE —ETREF “EERF
F# T T HA F®A
Listed securities FES
Hong Kong B - 131,563 131,563
Overseas AN - 1,058 1,058
Unlisted securities JELTHEE
Overseas/PRC (hote a) SEAN, R (Hsza) 123,348 - 123,348
Unlisted debt security ELTEBES
Hong Kong (note b) E& (Wb - 12,000 12,000
123,348 144,621 267,969
Market value of listed securities EmEAHEZTE - 132,621 132,621
Carrying amount analyzed for HEREMMIELZ
reporting purposes as: EEESR:
Non-current e E 123,348 186 123,534
Current mE - 144,435 144,435
123,348 144 621 267,963
Notes: M
(@) As at 31 March 2005, the Group had the following investment (a) R-ETHEEZREZ+—H K&
securities held for long term strategic purposes: BETIHRBHNAEREERBEN:
. 40%* interest in Alfresco Gold Limited which is engaged . # A Alfresco Gold LimitedZ
in investment holding of 85% interest in two companies A0%EH ZLTEEER
incorporated in the PRC, whose principal activities are BREZER BEEMERS
designing and producing advertisements, and provision L2 RE85%Z R
of advertising agency services.
SRR BERERESR
AR
. 33%* interestin EE & BHEEFR A &) (formery known . EESHBEEYERLAT(H

as EEEBABEESMERRFR AT, which holds a

BERBLFEHEMNAESR
piece of land in the PRC. nE

k]
BRAR)33% A HLOEE
TEER-BLER
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27.

INVESTMENTS IN SECURITIES (Continued)

Notes. (Continued)

@

()

As at 31 March 2005, the Group had the following investment
securities held for long term strategic purposes: (Continued)

. 30%* interest in Earnbest Holdings Limited which is
engaged in investment holding of 40% interest in a
company incorporated in the PRC, whose principal
activities are resorts and hotels building and traveling
business.

The Group agreed with the investing companies to give
up voting power of election of directors, management
daily operation and financial decisions in these
investments. Any change tc the terms of agreement
need to be consent by both parties. As the Group did
not have significant influence on these investments,
accordingly, these investments were classified as
investment securities.

The amount of the unlisted debt security as at 31 March 2005
represented the convertible bond issued by Nippon Asia
Investment Holdings Limited (“Nippon Asia Bond”, formerty known
as China City Natural Gas Holdings Limited), a company fisted in
Hong Kong. Nippon Asia Bond is interest bearing at 1% per
annum and is due for redemption on 1 November 2005. The
Group is entitled at any time before the maturity to convert the
Nippon Asia Bond into shares of Nippon Asia Investment Holdings
Limited at a conversion price of HK$0.025 per share (subject to
the relevant adjustments upon conversion). The Nippon Asia
Bond was fully redeemed in current year.

AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS

26, FBHERE(4)

M2

()

(#f)

RZFERE=R=+—F F%H
?—*rﬁTElJ SEESIERORBEN:
{#)

i # & Earnbest Holdings
LimitedZ 30% & T B %
BRRAAR BEE AR
PERT 2 RE40%E -
EFEXRAERALAR

: FRAFDHRAERABERN
%FGEZ%&EZ&)EQE%
E&ﬁﬂ%&%Z&m
Tfé Tﬁ%uﬁﬂ%ﬁiZEﬂ”g Z|
BETRE -HAERE-BAR
AEEEZEREVEER
HEN MEFRETIING
EHEE-

R-BEBERF=ZAZ+—BZ¥*E
TEBELFDEEBELTARAER
TARBERAERAF ([BAEK
BFCABETERTREEEER
DR BAIZARBES-BADK
EARERIEHE R_ZFERF
T-FE-BRHEBEO-AEEAEE
EHSE AR ERESR00258 T
HEE(FTRRRREHEEAE) -
BEATRKBESRAMARTERE
EREBRAFZBM-BAZAR
FERAFEANETHER-

27. AHEHEZRE

Available-for-sale investments as at 31 March 2006 analyzed as RZBERF=ZA=T—8" 7 HnE
non-current assets, comprise: ZEREERGERBEEZNN B
2006
HK$'000
—EEAREF
FHA
Listed investments: LEWiRE:
- Equity securities listed in Hong Kong (rhote a) ~REELTZRERE (Bia) 19,681
Unlisted securities: ELTES:
- equity securities (note b) — PR EE (W akh) 73,500
- debt securities (note ¢) —{EFES (Wizo 514,364
607,545
Analyzed for reporting purpose as: HERANTIEL ST
Current assets MEAE 73,500
Non-current assets ERBEE 534,045

607,545
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27.

AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS (Continued)

Notes:

(@

All listed investments are stated at fair value which is determined
based on the quoted market bid prices available on the Stock
Exchange.

The unlisted equity securities represent investments in unlisted
entities established in the PRC {the “PRC Investments”). They
are measured at cost less impairment at each balance sheet
date because the directors of the Company are of the opinion
that their fair values cannot be measured reliably because the
range of reasonable fair value estimates is so significant. During
the year ended 31 March 2006, certain third parties have made
an offer to acquire the PRC Investments from the Group. After
considering the purchase consideration offered by the third party,
an impairment loss of approximately HK$49,845,000 has been
identified and recognized in the consolidated income statement.
The disposal of the PRC Investments was completed subsequent
to the balance sheet date.

During the year ended 31 March 2008, the Group has subscribed
three convertible notes with an aggregate amount of
HK$650,000,000 from (i) Cheung Tai Hong Holdings Limited, a
zero coupon convertible note with maturity on 10 August 2010
at the redemption amount of 110% of the principal amount, (ii)
See Corporation Limited (previously known as Ruili Holdings
Limited), a zero coupon convertible note with maturity on 9
August 2010 at the redemption amount of 110% of the principal
amount; and (i) Wo Kee Hong (Holdings) Limited, a convertible
note at interest of 7.25% per annum payable semi-annually with
maturity on 5 September 2008. All these companies are public
limited companies with their shares listed on the Stock Exchange.
The Group had classified all the debt element of the convertible
notes as available-for-sale investments and the conversion option
element of the convertible notes as conversion option embedded
in the convertible notes. The fair value of the convertible notes
are determined by the directors of the Company with reference
to the valuation performed by RHL Appraisal Ltd. (‘RHL"}, a firm
of independent valuers.

As at 31 March 2008, the fair value for the debt element and
conversion option element were approximately HK$514,364,000
and HK$231,509,000, respectively. RHL applied net present value
and Black-Scholes model for the valuation of the debt element
and conversion option element respectively. Accordingly, an
decrease in fair value of approximately HK$18,175,000 for the
debt element and an increase in fair value of approximately
HK$ 114,048,000 for conversion option element were recognized
in equity and profit and loss, respectively. The decrease in fair
value of the debt element is mainly due to increase in prevailing
market interest rate.

27.

TREEZRE (4)
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28.

LOAN RECEIVABLES 28. HEWER
2006 2005
HK$ ’OOO HK$'000
T‘ L T# T
Fixed-rate loan receivables WERER - 5,533
Floating-rate loan receivables 4& FEER 20,162 106,318
Net assets EEEE 20,162 111,851

Included in the carrying amount of loans receivables as at 31
March 2006 and 31 March 2005 is accumulated impairment loss
of HK$45,581,000 and HK$39,033,000, respectively.

During the year, impairment loss of HK$11,542,000 has been
recognized as the loan receivable’s carrying amount is lower than
the present value of estimated future cash flow discounted at the
loan receivables original effective interest rate of the loan
receivables.

The. exposure of the Group’s fixed-rate loan receivables to fair
value interest rate risks and their contractual maturity dates are
as follows:

R-ZBEREZA=Z+—RBRR_ZEZE
AEZAZ+-BZRUERERE
R EBFREEED R 5H45,581,0008 T
%.39,033,000/& 7T °

RER BE11.542,0008 T2 BEE
BOLERR £RARKERERZEE
BEENERINERVG 2 ERFI RN
BrERBESRFE-

FEERERE SERFARZ N ERR
EREASNIBEMEDT:

2006 2005
HK$'000 HK$'000
—EERF “HFERF
F#H F# A
Fixed-rate loan receivables FETE BB
— within one year —ER - 5,533

The ranges of effective interest rates (which are equal to contractual
interest rates) on the Group’s loan receivables are as follows:

FEERWER ERAE (BERA
MME)EENT:

2006 2005
TEEX —EZTHE

Effective interest rate: EEREFI=:
Fixed-rate loan receivables BHERER 5.75% 3.6% to 10%
Floating-rate loan receivables FEUZEBER 5.25% to 11% 5% to 7.3%
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28.  LOAN RECEIVABLES (Continued) 28. BWER (&)
The Group's loan receivables that are denominated in currencies REBUEREEEENEESUINE
other than the functional currency of the relevant Group are set BHEZEREREIWMT:
out below:;
Uss$ NTD
$000 $'000
ES Haw
+ 7 +
As at 31 March 2006 N_EERF=ZAZ=+— - -
As at 31 March 2005 RIETRAFEF=A=+— 712 78,000
The fair value of the Group’s loan receivables as at the balance REBHREEABUERZ A FEES
sheet dates approximates to the carrying amount of the EWHREBEZERERS -
receivables.
29.  DEPOSITS FOR ACQUISITION OF LONG-TERM 29. WERHAREZES

INVESTMENTS

During the year ended 31 March 2005, the Group entered into
conditional agreement (the "Port Agreement”) with an independent
third party (the "Vendor Party”) 10 acquire equity interests in an
unlisted investment established in the PRC for a total consideration
of HK$35,000,000. This unlisted investment is mainly engaged in
port business in the PRC.

As the conditions in the Port Agreement have not yet been fulfiled,
the transaction has not yet been completed.

During the year ended 31 March 2006, the Group paid an
aggregate of approximately HK$155,175,000 as tender deposits
to three independent third parties for acquisition of certain interests
in water supply business, sand mining business, the exploitation
right for river sand business and property development business
in the PRC (the “Potential Investments”). These payments would
be refundable from the counter parties if the terms and conditions
had not been concluded within one year after the payments
made by the Group. Up to the report date, the terms and
conditions of the acquisition of the Potential Investments have
not yet been concluded with the counter parties.

The fair value of the Group's deposits for acquisition of long-term
investments was approximate to the corresponding carrying
amount.

RBE-BTRIEZA=T—RAL*%F
EAsREE-BUE=ZFUEFT
vEEHRE ((EORE]) ATEH
Wi — NP ERZZE ETRERE
2R Az M8 B 535,000,000 7T 0
FEETREBEEIZNTEANFED
X%

MRBOBREZ G HREER BE
X ZALARTEAK -

REE-_ZFERFZA=Z+—-BLF
F AEEXITEEL165,175,000% T
FZEBUE=ZF ERARKESRE
HORER RUER AVHREXBER
NERREBETRSEZRERS
(MFee 2 EER ) WEREEESL
g~ FRBBGERR G L REE
X, BIETHHE T HREZERE-EE
HEAH FTHEADRLRKBAE
ZEAZBBER R G-

FEBRERACKBEREZLATEE
HEEREEEES-




30.

OTHER ASSET

The amount represents cast incurred in connection with a land
development project in the PRC. The project is a land development
of ¥k 4 i7 B Z ¥ B located at Doumen District, Zhuhai City, the
PRC, and is to be jcintly developed with an independent third
party. The Group is entitled to the exclusive development right to
the project and also the right to obtain the land for the development
{the “Other Asset”). The Group is also entitled to sell the Other
Asset to investors for a consideration to be agreed between
themselves.

For the year ended 31 March 2004, the consideration of
HK$150,000,000 for obtaining the exclusive development right
was paid by the Group whilst RMB5,750,000 (eguivalent to
approximately HK$5,425,000) was already paid by the Group for
site formation and the Group has disposed of part of the Other
Asset to independent third parties at a consideration of
approximately HK$16,000,000 and a net gain on disposal of
other asset of approximately HK$5,660,000 was recognized in
the consolidated income statement for the year ended 31 March
2004,

As the directors of the Company are of the opinion that the Other
Asset is held for sale, the cost incurred for the Other Asset is
included in current assets accordingly.

During the year ended 31 March 2005, the Group disposed of
part of the Other Asset to an independent third party for
consideration of HK$39,600,000 and a net gain on disposal of
Other Asset of approximately HK$2,515,000 was recognized in
the consolidated income statement for year ended 31 March
2005.

During the year ended 31 March 2008, the Group entered into
several sale and purchase agreements with independent third
parties for the disposal of all the remaining parts of the other
Asset for an aggregate consideration of approximately
HK$118,800,000 and a net gain on disposal of other asset of
approximately HK$10,800,000 was recognized in the consolidated
income statement for the year ended 31 March 2006.

30.

HMWEE

ZEEARTETEN - ELHHEE
BAEBARE-ZERBUNPRIKE
mAPIRIR S R EEXEN — (@i E—
BYEF=FHABARENTHERERE -
FEERBLEENEBHEREMNLS
BESZ L nAREE ([EEEEl)-
FEBERESEMEERET HED
EBREEREES-

BE-ETOE-AZ+-HIUEER
7% 82 [F 3 {18 150,000,000 7T« LAER
EEERERN EPAEEEXZTAR
¥ 5,750,0007C (A8 E#495,425,000/%
) EAEEREZAMAEED &
EXMEMEETBLEZH EED
16,000,000 ML E LM EENF
W #15,660,0008 T EREBE_ETE
ME=ZA=+—8BLFEMNGRAKER
TR

HRARAREERREAMEEIFHEL
ERE AUHEMEESRNRETEE
BEERDAEN-

RNEBE - STZRE-A=+—RLEE
R AEBHERPHLEEF-BY
F=F R{EB39,600,000ET HEE
A EHE 2B URE 42,515,000 T
CREZE-ZTRE-F=Z+T—8HIF
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B rEEEBUYE-AIVETESE
BHR AN EHMREEREEZAAR
IS 4B E474118,800,0008 7T
HEHEHMBMEEBRSZ FUWHED
10,800,000 TERBE-_ZEF=
BZ+—BULFEZHRANRAERNE
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31.  INVENTORIES 31. #FE

2006 2005

HK$’000 HK$'000

TEEXRE IEERE

T & T # A

Raw materials FE# % 3,125 6,781
Work in progress EE G 1,801 1,962
Finished goods B & 3,627 578,335
8,553 587,078

Classified as held for sale (Note 16) ERBEHNERE (Hixle) 616,142 -
624,695 587,078

As at 31 March 2005, included above are finished goods of THFERER_EEREZAZ+—
HK$97,486,000 which are carried at net realizable value. B2 &k 5h97,486,0008 7T B IR E 1]

BRFESE-
As at 31 March 2008, included above are raw materials of MRITEXRFZA=+—H0 8K EX
HK$178,000 and work in progress of HK$1,000 which are carried 8 A 76,0008 T R ES R 1,00008
at net realizable value. T T AR IR EESE-
32. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 32. B RHAMEWRIE

2006 2005

HK$'000 HK$'000

TBEEBERE ZERREF

T % A FHA

Trade receivables EREZFE 729,083 653,637
Less: accumulated allowances B BERE (73,313) (61,854)
656,670 591,783

Other receivables H{hrEu s 49,006 170,121
Reclassified as held for sale Bl AT RIELRS (645,946) -

59,730 761,904




32.

33

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Continued) 32 EBEZRHMEBWRIE (4)
The Group allows an average credit period of one to two months FEEMEESEFTHRERE—ZME
to its trade customers. The following is an aged analysis of trade ATE2EZER-NEHEER BIRES
receivable net of impairment losses at the respective balance RERBEBRZEESTOT:
sheet date:
2006 2005
HK$’000 HK$'000
—EEBRE —ETREF
A FEL
Not yet due B AR 573,862 548,407
Overdue within one month WmELR—®A 66,333 25,996
Overdue between cne and two months BH—-EREA 2,266 4,561
Overdue more than two months w AR A E A 14,209 12,819
656,670 591,783
The fair value of the Group’s trade receivables at respective balance AEENSEERRRESGREBEZLF
sheet date was approximate to the corresponding carrying BERIEEREDERS
amount.
INVESTMENTS HELD FOR TRADING/CONVERSION 33. BEEERE THARAEBZATER
OPTION EMBEDDED IN CONVERTIBLE NOTES B
Investments held for trading as at 31 March 2006 include: RIBEXEZAZ+—8 #HEEE
ZHERE:
2006
HK$'000
TEEXRE
T H T
Listed securities: TR
~ Equity securities listed in Hong Kong —REELTZREES 397,989
- Equity securities listed elsewhere —RREMEF LT 2 RAES 24,008

421,997
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33.

34.

35.

INVESTMENTS HELD FOR TRADING/CONVERSION
OPTION EMBEDDED IN CONVERTIBLE NOTES (Continued)

The fair values of investments held for trading are determined
based on the quoted market tid price available on the relevant
exchanges.

33.

HEREZRE (30

RERBEZATEENRBEERESRR
SRR TEREEE-

2006
HK$000
—EBERE
THEA
Unlisted conversion options embedded FELTARRERZ AT HIRE
in convertible notes 231,509

Conversion options embedded in convertible notes represented
the conversion option element of the three convertible notes
subscribed by the Group for the year ended 31 March 2006. The
fair values of the unlisted convertible notes are determined by the
directors of the Company with reference to the valuation performed
by RHL (see Note 27).

MARGIN LOAN RECEIVABLES/PAYABLES AND BILLS
PAYABLES

The fair values of the Group's margin loan receivables, margin
loan payables and bills payable at respective balance sheet date
approximate to the corresponding carrying amounts.

Margin loan receivables and payables are generated from brokers’
business, aged less than one month and bears interest ranging
from prime rate plus 3.5% per annum to prime rate plus 5% per
annum (2005: prime rate plus 3.5% per annum to prime rate plus
5% per annum).

PLEDGED BANK DEPOSIT

The amount represents deposit pledged to bank to secure short-
term banking facilities granted to the Group and are therefore
classified as current assets.

The deposit carries variable interest ranges from 3.5% t0 4.6%.
The pledged bank deposit will be released upon the settlement
of relevant bank borrowings. The fair values of bank deposit at
respective balance sheet dates approximate to the corresponding
carrying amounts.

34.

35.

ZEEETERRBE_EEREZA
Z+—-HUIEFERRBZZMHARAE
BRARERBEZ B -ELTA LR
ERCZAEEBENSEAAFRESZSLBEY
EEMTXRMITETZEERE (M
27) o

RURREN BEREREGRE

FEERUFRER BNFRERR
BNEBZATEEREREEREER
%D

BUFRERMERFEERDEEE
ERELE BB LR -BAMKNEBEZF
ENFHBEEFENIS%REME0%LZ
M(ZZEZERE FEASERNEN
35%ENMNB.0% 2 ) -

BEPETER

DeRBECERTRIIZER UEA
BRYTAEEZEHRTEEZER &

FZETRENTFISEZLETELZF
R B BEERRTERENEEER
RITEERTURR -REEERZR
TERZAFEESERERERES-




36.

37.

TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 3. EZREMEMNRIE
Included within trade and other payables is a trade creditor balance R_BEERNER-_FEERAF=A=+—
of HK$71,535,000 and HK$564,154,000 at 31 March 2006 and HzESRAMBNREAEESER
2005, respectively. & % o5 Bl B 71,535,000 T &
564,154,000%% 7t »
During the year, trade creditor balance of HK$405,439,000 was RANEE 405,439,000 T2 BERER
reclassified as liabilities directly associated with assets held for EMREWENRERTHHEEEECE
sale. EAEEaE
The following is an aged analysis of trade creditors at respective REHES ENESREZEREST
balance sheet date: il
2006 2005
HK$’'000 HK$'000
—EERE —EEHE
T T T & A
Not vet due FEEA 380,210 417,919
Overdue within one month #mELR—EA 75,260 74,518
Overdue between one and two months BE—=/MEA 11,467 27,951
Overdue more than two months w AR RE A 10,037 43,766
476,974 564,154
The fair value of the Group’s trade and other payables at respective AR EHERE S R AMEMNRE
balance sheet date approximates to the corresponding carrying ZALEEEBEEDEESE-
amount.
BORROWINGS 37. &
2006 2005
HK$'000 HK$'000
ZEEXRE “EERE
TR A
Borrowings comprise: BRBLE:
Bank loans RITER 125,275 82,010
Other loans HEER 562,047 161,341
687,322 243,351
Analyzed as: S
Secured BiEH 314,373 38,531
Unsecured i 372,949 204,820
687,322 243,351
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For the year ended 31 March 2006 # 2 — £ E xSz A 2+ —8 £ F &
BORROWINGS (Continued) 37. fER (80
The above amounts bear interest at prevailing market FHRBRBEERTTMSANERGTER S
rates and are repayable as follows: BEERUTEHEE:
2006 2005
HK$'000 HK$'000
—EERE ZETHE
+ 3 A FHA
Within one year or on demand —F R EREF 591,629 85,881
Between one and two years —ERERN 5,073 149,751
Between two and five years MERAFNR 23,732 1,407
Over five years [ Cakad 66,888 6,312
687,322 243,351
Amounts due within one year and FIARBBEET
shown under current liabilities R—ERBIE 2 B (591,629) (85,881)
—FIRE| B2 RIE 95,693 157,470

Amounts due after one year

The exposure of the Group’s fixed-rate borrowings and the

FEBEREIZEEETAREEHE

contractual maturity dates are as follows: HEmMT:
2006 2005
HK$°000 HK$'000
ZEERE —ZEERE
%A T+ 3 A
Fixed-rate borrowings due —FERINBZERBER
200,000 -

within one year

The ranges of effective interest rates (which are equal to contractual
interest rates) on the Group’s borrowings are as follows:

TREERZEBRANE BEEREHF

)HENT:

2006 2005
ZEEAE —EERE

Effective interest rate: ERA &
Fixed-rate borrowings EEER 18% N/A TRiE B
Variable-rate borrowings BBAER 5.03% to 10% 2.3%107.3%




37.

38.

BORROWINGS (Continued)

The Group’s borrowings that are denominated in currencies other
than the functional currencies of the relevant group entities are
set out below:

37 fEFR(8)

AEBNEHEBERNEGEUIIE
BT BZEREINDOT

us$ NTD

$000 $000

ET e

F i A

As at 31 March 2006 RZEERNEZA=+—H - 32,540
As at 31 March 2005 RZEERE=A=+—8 258 34,148

Bank overdrafts are repayable on demand. The bank loans carry
interest at prevailing market rate ranging from 5.25% to 8.0%
and are secured by the Group’s bank deposits and investment in
securities.

The fair value of the Group’s borrowings at respective balance
sheet date approximates to the corresponding carrying amount.

OBLIGATIONS UNDER FINANCE LEASES

The Group has leased certain of its fixtures and equipment under
finance leases. The average lease term is two years. The average
effective borrowing rate was 68.92% for the years ended at 31
March 2005. Interest rates are fixed at the contract date. All
leases are on a fixed repayment basis and no arrangements have
been entered into for contingent rental payments.

The Group's obligations under finance leases are secured by the
lessors’ charge over the leased assets.

Financial lease obligations that are denominated in currencies
other than the functional currencies of the relevant group entities
are set out below:

RITEXDRERKEE-RTERD
MEREROMBH R N FL25%F
8.0% 2 B WIARE B 2 SRITHFRLE
FIREEER-

REEEER AKREERZAVEE
BEMHEREERS-

38. BMERWARE

FRECBREREHNEEEETRE
RRE THEABRRFE-BHE_ETH
FZAZ+T-HLEFE FHEREER
FERDFN7R26.92% ° FIERTINEHBEH
RE-FMBEEOORBETERREN
R EHSAREFBERTRZH-

AEEBZBERNAEDAGEAAZH
MEEFRER

AEENEHESEERESHEUNE
B EZREHEOAEENMT:

Us$

$000

ES

F A

As at 31 March 2005 R-ZBTERF=-R=1T—H 59

The fair value of the above Group’s finance lease abligations
approximates 1o their carrying amount.

AEEHBERNEAEZ AFEESR
HEEMERES-
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39.  AMOUNT DUE TO A MINORITY SHAREHOLDER 39. EfN—BEIERERE
The amount was unsecured, interest free and repaid during the HABEABRER RLUARBE_FE
year ended 31 March 2008, It was derecognized upon disposal RNEZA=Z+—HIELEEAEE %2
of the subsidiary (Note 43). HEEHENBARETTHRRE (M
43) e
40. DEFERRED TAX 40. FEIEH I
The followings are the major deferred tax liabilities (assets) RAEEZEHRFTEEERBARE
recognized and movements thereon during the vear: (BE)REZHNT:
Revaluation  Accelerated
of investment tax Tax
property depreciation losses Others” Total
BE MEHE
EEER wE BESS Hib~ #E
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T F#a F# A FHRA F# A
At 1 April 2004 R-ZEWNFENA—H - 744 (20,468) {15,620) (35,344)
Currency realignment ShHEHE - (85) a7 19) (121)
Charge (credit) 1o the consolidated ~ ERREFE SRR D
income statement for the year HE (GFA) (W315)
(Note 15) - 833 19,994 (3,666) 17,161
Realized on disposal of e —EHE
a subsidiary DERER - {459) 459 - -
At 31 March 2005 RZZETRE=-A=+—-H - 1,033 82 (19,305) (18,304)
Currency realignment SNERE - 21 - (41) 20)
Charge (credit) to the consolidated FRARGEEIRSEER
income statement for the year B (Bt A) (W3213)
(Note 15) - 789 - (21,708) 20,919)
Arising on acquisition of subsidiaries WEMBARREL 6,298 - (300) - 5,998
Reclassified as held for sale EFNEARELE - (1,697) - 41,267 39,570
At 31 March 2008 RZFERE=ZA=+—8 6,008 148 {332) 213 6,325
- The amount is mainly attributabie to the movements of temporary * FREFEEETEEERRER—HF
differences arising from the carrying amounts and tax bases of MBARZEEREBRZEEEE
major balance sheet items such as receivables, inventories and (MR -FERETE 5%) ZEE

accruals of a subsidiary in the USA. HEEHEsERER Y




40.

DEFERRED TAX (Continued)

For the purposes of balance shest presentation, certain deferred
tax assets and liabilities have been offset. The following is the
analysis of the deferred tax balances for financial reporting
purposes:

IEIERIR (#7)

REERBERZEIME ETEER

HAERBRBE THHE -UTR/EMK

HBABCEEHBEERIN:

2006 2005
HK$’'000 HK$'000
TEERE —ERRF
FH#A Tk A
Deferred tax assets BT IEEE - (18,418)
Deferred tax liabiiities RIERTEBE 6,325 114
6,325 (18,304)

The Group has unused tax losses of HK$374,839,000 and
HK$387,410,000 at 31 March 2006 and 2005 respectively
available for offset against future profits. A deferred tax asset has
been recognized in respect of HK$1,887,000 and HK$185,000
at 31 March 2006 and 2005 respectively of such losses. No
deferred tax has been recognized In respect of the remaining
HK$372,942,000 and HK$387,225,000 at 31 March 2006 and
2005 respectively due to the unpredictability of future profit
streams. The losses can be carried forward indefinitely.

RIEERER_TEZRAE=ZA=+—
A AEEAAREERREMNZ RS
B EEE S 5 5374,839,000/ T &
387,410,000 - R_EERER T
ZEREEZAZ+-RB - ZEBF D5
1,897,000/ 7T 185,000 T B R A
BEHRBEE- N _ZEZERIET
AFEZRZ+—B BRRGEFEAARR
wAMRR KB HREBESE
372,942,000 7t }.387,225,000/5 =%
FIERRLEH B - ZEBEERAL
i
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41.  SHARE CAPITAL 41. BE
Number
of shares Value
HK$'000
G E e BE
FH A
Authorized: EERE:
At 31 March 2005 and 31 March 2006 R-FZREZR=+—HER
{Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each) —EEREZHAZ+—HR
(EREEIOIATZEBR) 20,000,000,000 200,000
Issued and fully paid: BERTRBERA:
At 1 April 2004 (Ordinary shares of R-ZTEMENA—A
HK$0.01 each) (BREEIOIBIT 2L AR 186,553,202 1,866
Issue upon scrip dividend {note a) PABR AR B EAT (B i2a) 75,210 -
Issug of new shares (note b} BITHER D (HiEb) 37,000,000 370
At 31 March 2005 (Ordinary shares of RZEEREZR=Z+—H
HK30.01 each) (EREECOIETLZ EBR) 223,628,412 2,236
Issug upon scrip dividend (note ¢) PARR AR B 81T (M xc) 3,624,990 36
Exercise of share options {note @) 1T ARE (W ixd) 10,000,000 100
At 31 March 2006 (Ordinary shares of R-_EEREFZR=+-H
HK$0.01 each) (BREEOOIETZEER) 237,253,402 2,372
Notes: fiy 32
(@ On 21 October 2004, 75,210 shares in the Company of HK$0.01 (a) RZEEME+FZ+—B F28
each were issued as scrip dividend at HK$2.745 per share, The FERUBRBIEGR27458 T2 8
shares issued during the year rank pari passu with the existing BETTS5 10 BREE0O0TE T
shares in all respects. ZRH-RERNFHAZROHERBEZ
BORETFEEERSES-
b) On 23 November 2004, arrangements were made for a private (b) RZEEME+—-A=+=8 %7

placement to independent private investors of 37,000,000 shares
of HK$0.01 each in the Company held by ITC Corporation
Limited, a substantial shareholder of the Company, in cash at a
price of HK$3.22 per share representing a discount of
approximately 8% to the closing price of HK$3.50 per share as
quoted on the Stock Exchange on 22 November 2004.

Pursuant to a subscription agreement of the same date, ITC
Corporation Limited subscribed for 37,000,000 new shares of
HK$0.01 each in the Company at a price of HK$3.22 per share,
The proceeds were used to provide additional working capital
for the Company. These new shares were issued under the
general mandate granted to the directors at the annual general
meeting of the Company held on 31 August 2004 and ranked
pari passu with other shares in issue in all respects.

FABRERTH RBMYALALREEL
AEEREECEEEERAF(R
REETERFEI)IBBEZADF
37,000,000 S IREEO.01ETZ
BOUEDRRS - BEEBASRI22
BT BEROPR_ZEFNE+—~B
ToREMTHARIETESR
350 TLITELI8% °

BERERIIUZRERS Bt
EE@MER AN ERI22ETY
fB4% M A2 E R E37,000,0008 8
BEEIETZFRN -FMERE
DEEARFIZENCEES -BSE
FRONDEBALATIR _ZSENOE
NBEZ+—B8AZRREBEFAE
IETESE-REERT TES
FEEAEGMEBTRNDEERSE
ﬁo




41,

42.

SHARE CAPITAL (Continued)

(©

On 21 October 2005, 2,515,285 shares in the Company of
HK$0.01 each were issued as scrip dividend at HK$3.367 per
share.

On 3 March 2006, 1,109,705 shares in the Company of HK$0.01
each were issued as scrip dividend at HK$3.735 per share.

During the year ended 31 March 2008, 10,000,000 shares in the
Company of HK$0.01 were issued upon exercise of 10,000,000
share options at subscription price of HK$3.415 per share, the
shares issued during the year rank pari passu with the existing
shares in all respects.

ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES

On 8 March 2005, the Group acquired 100% of the issued capital
of Createsuccess for a consideration of approximately
HK$3,351,000.

On 28 March 2008, the Group acquired 100% of the issued
share capital of Rapid Growth for a consideration of approximately
HK$39,048,000.

The acquisitions have been accounted for by the acquisition
method of accounting. The amount of goodwill arising as a result
of the acquisitions was HK$6,621,000.

41.

42.

B (#)

()

AT BBEREFTF I+ —H AQF
FEBUABRREIEGIRG367TELZE
172,515,285 R FRE(EO0.01/%8
TG

RIZBERFZR=Z+—H FLF
FEBRRERSRI7ETZE
&5 1T1,109, 705 B EE0.01%
T2 B

BE-ETXEZARAZFT—BLE
B -ARAFIUERIMSE T ZRE
B #7{610,000,0008% BB AR £ 18 T 17
10,000,000 B R EEO.0O1E T Z
B ZEFRDBET2RNEME
FEYEBERNHEERASERE-

WEHWEB AR

R-ZEZTFAF=ZANAB XEBKE
Createsuccess® B BT A - R{EL
3,351,000/ T °

pr g

FERFZASHAR AREK

BERapid Growth® E 2 81Tl 4 K E
#939,048,0007# 7T °

SUEFAREANESEAR R
BBEEFEL 2B ELE A
6,621,000 7T °
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Net cash outflow arising on acguisition:

42.  ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 42. WEBHEBLS (4)
Carrying amount
and Fair value
REEEQAFYE
2006
HK$'000
—BEXRE
T # T
NET ASSETS ACQUIRED KBEEZSH
Investment properties wEME 133,000
Trade and other payables ESRHEMENRIE 711)
Trade and other receivables B RHEMBERTIE 3,436
Bank balances and cash BUEFERBES 10
Bank borrowings WITEK {93,000)
Tax payables FEfIHRIA (399)
Deferred tax liabilities BERBEE (5,998)
36,338
Minority interests DEBREEE (560)
35,778
Goodwill RS 6,621
Total consideration BILE 42,399
SATISFIED BY: ERRH:
Cash B 42,399

WESHEMEZCRERLFR:

Cash consideration paid ERERE {42,399)
Cash and cash equivalents acquired WEZ2RERREeEEER 10
(42,389)

The goodwill arising on the acquisition of Createsuccess and
Rapid Growth is attributable to the anticipated profitability.

The subsidiaries acquired during the year did not contribute
significantly to the turnover and the result of the Group. The cash
flow contributed or utilized by the subsidiaries acquired during

the year was not significant.

BT EESE S W Createsuccess &
Rapid Growth Limited * St BE S HE
HIRTBEANEFIRE N

REZUEZHBARLEHAEEE
XERRETRERER -CREBENRE
RERENFEBRBRANTEEREL
TER-




43.

DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES 43. HEHERR
2006 2005
HK$’000 HK$'000
—EEXE —ZEERE
F#E A I 3% A
Property, plant and equipment W HEREE 64 1,483
Interest in an associate —RBE AR cES - 5,244
Trade and other receivables B REMPERTE 1,289 53
Amounts due from group companies FEMMEE QR ZRIE 1 26,758
Bank balances and cash BITEFRES 181 o2
Trade and other payables ZHREMENKIE (3,672) (1,832)
Amounts due to group companies BNEE AT ZHIE (14) (27,187)
Amount due to an associate BiEBE N 2 RTE - {(148)
Tax payable BT HLIR (359) -~
Amount due to a minority shareholder BT —RBLEBREIRE (2,514) -
(5,024) 4,465
Minority interests DERHEES 280 -
Net assets disposed of EHEZEE (4,744) 4,465
Currency translation reserve realized EHREEHBREE 569 7,842
Other reserves realized A 2BHE - (7,810)
Attributable capital reserve BB RS - (556)
(4,175) 3,841
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HEMBLEZWE 7,175 3,504
3,000 7,445
SATISFED BY: FTRHFR:
Cash Be 3,000 7,445
Net cash inflow arising from HERBLREEY
disposal of subsidiaries: REMAFE:
Cash consideration HeRE 3,000 7,445
Bank balances and cash disposed of HEZRTEERRS (181) 92)
2,819 7,353

The subsidiaries disposed of during the year did not contribute
significantly to the turnover and the results of the Group. The
cash flow contributed or utilized by the subsidiaries disposed of

during the year was not significant.

ERFHLEZHBAREAERE L
EREBEUEEHNEREHM - FAML
EZHBREMANXERZEERE

TRER-
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MAJOR NON-CASH TRANSACTIONS

44.

During the year ended 31 March 2005, the major non-cash
transactions were as follows:

@

The Group restructured certain of its other payables of
HK$15,000,000 satisfied by the same amount of other
receivables under a deed of assignment entered into
between the Group and the relevant parties.

The repayment of a short-term loan receivable of
HK$2,057,000 was satisfied by the same amount of
investment in securities.

The Group had disposed of an investment in securities for
a consideration of HK$6,000,000 which was satisfied by
cash of HK$1,500,000 and by setting off through an
amount due from an associate of the Group for the
remaining balance of HK$4,500,000.

During the year ended 31 March 2006, the major non-cash
transactions were as follows:

@)

The acquisition of investment held for trading of
HK$31,360,000 was satisfied by short-term loan receivable
and cther receivable of HK$25,590,000 and HK$5,770,000
respectively.

Other receivables of HK$121,563,000 was transferred to
short-term loan receivable and short-term loan receivable
from a related company of HK$118,800,000 and
HK$2,763,000 due to the change of the terms of the
outstanding amounts.

44,

HRERB

£
RBE-FFREF=A=+-BLE
EAEEETZEENRERSMT

(a BEXEBEEGBALIIZICHE
BEY XEBEEHASTAED
FE S FRIE 15,000,000 7 2 &
REBENERSBE ZmhEWFRIE
AT

by EERWEHER2057,0008
TZFBRDNEFREZBRAS
Bxfte

©) ZAEBLAKES,000000%TH
EEEBRE FRMREDUES
1,500,000/ JT X {5 6 LA FE 4L AR
EE-HEEL I REREE
£:4,500,00078 T -

g 2

BE-PETASSA=+-BuLF
EEEETZERHRE X ST

U B35 B B 5 31,360,000
THANERGHER R EBE
W % I8 25,590,000 T &
5,770,000 T X 4+ -

—
8

b) BHREXAREESENET &
H b JE UL BRTE 121,563,000 7T
BEEXAELRE BEX
118,800,000/% 7T & R & — 4 B8
BN TR E B E 2,763,000
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45.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

The Group is involved in two patent infringement lawsuits in the
USA. The damages claim arising from the lawsuits range from
approximately US$285,000 (equivalent to HK$2,213,000) to
US$855,000 (equivalent to HK$6,639,000) for the vears ended
31 March 2006 and 2005. As the outcome of the lawsuits is not
certain, the Group has made a provision of US$302,000 (equivalent
to HK$ 2,345,000) and US$302,000 (equivalent to HK$2,345,000)
for these cases at 31 March 2006 and 2005 respectively to cover
the possible damages as estimated by the Directors of the
Company.

The Group has no other contingent liabilities as at 31 March
2008.

The following contingent liabilities arise from interests in associates:;

45.

RNARRE

AEERER S LB BEILERESR
R REBEZREERAEREERF =
ARzZ+—BULFE ARLAMEECE
B ENT T 42850000 T (EER
2,213,000/ L) £855,000& T (&
76,639,000/ L) c AR EFAB R K-
FEEERETRERITZERF=
AZ+—Bo Rz SHRniTiegE
302,000 7t (B % 512,345,000/ 7T )
1% 302,000% 7T (f8 &5 7 2,345,000%
) MENEERET I EER-

AEER -_FEEREZA=ZT-ELE
EEEMRAEE

UTHRBEBORABE AR 2

2006 2005
HK$'000 HK$'000
—EERRE ZETLEF
F & T % A
Share of contingent liabilities of B D B FEAE SR
associates arising from: MBEERE:
Guarantees given 1o banks in respect RTAEFBHART
of bank facllities utilized by: EEMmME TRITER:
investees FiRELE 2,348 4,551
third parties F=H 175 175
Other guarantees issued to: CEHAMBERT:
investees FIiRERE 9,037 9,037
11,560 13,763

The above amounts represented share of contingent liabilities
from interests in associates which was based on the published

FRMREEBERSEEREIAAER
B ZIRREDREZEFHLELAC

information of those associates as at 31 December 2005 and N_BERER _ZEZNF+ A=+

2004.

—BofzERGE-
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46, OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS 46. BEROERE
The Group as lessee TEEIEREEA
2006 2005
HK$°000 HK$'000
—EBEXE —ETRE
T# T F A
Minimum lease payments paid under ERRELERY
operating leases during the year: MERZHEES:
Land and buildings T REF 28,943 30,585
Property, plant and equipment WE B RERE 20,275 23,267
49,218 53,852
At the respective balance sheet dates, the Group had REFEER XEEHERETIRE
commitments for future minimum lease payments under non- PEBHOZAR ZERAKREES
cancellable operating leases which fall due as follows: ZEBA W
As at As at
31 March 2006 31 March 2005
RZBTREF RZZEZRH
=g=+-8 ZA=+-A
Property, Property,
Land and plant and Land and plant and
buildings equipment buildings equipment
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
fuk: -5 L ERE 1 TR D2 HEES
BF R BgF RiE
F & A FHEL FHA F#EA
Within one year —F A 7,549 556 23,008 23,121
In the second to fith year E_ZEEREF
inclusive (BEEME
BEERN) 24,235 1,599 75,368 19,521
Qver five years REE 30,294 - 46,519 -
62,078 2,155 144,885 42,642
Leases are negotiated for a range of one to ten years and rentals B2 BOTHe—FE+ETE W

are fixed over the terms of the leases. HeEHOBREE-




46.

OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS (Continued) 46. HEHENREE ()
The Group as lessor AEEBERBRA
2006 2005
HK$'000 HK$'000
—EEXRF —EERE
A T
Rental income earned under operating EXNBEEEEY
leases during the year: BERzRESHA:
Property T REF 6,456 7,426
Plant and equipment W B REE 20,248 20,246
26,704 27,672

At the raspective balance shest dates, the Group had contracted
with tenants for the following future minimum lease income which
full due as follows:

REGER AEECEBPEITLUT
ARSEEEMNK ZERRKERE
MRz HEMT:

As at As at
31 March 2006 31 March 2005
RZBERE R-ZEZIE
=ZA=+-8 =B=+-8
Plant and Plant and
Property equipment Property equipment
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR AL TR ER
e KRB BF JSE e
FHA FHRA THEA FHA
Within one year —F R 4,308 - - 26,738
inthe second to fithyear E_EFAF
inclusive (HEME
BREEN) 19,392 - - 39,504
Qver five years HEPA & 15,066 - - 14 426
38,766 - - 80,758

The Group has committed tenants with lease term for a range of
one to eight years.

AARERRFEE BEa—ENE
e
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47.

SHARE OPTION SCHEMES

The Company’s share option scheme was adopted on 21 August
2001 {the “2001 Share Option Scheme”) for the primary purpose
of providing incentives to the employess of the Group. Under the
2001 Share Option Scheme, the board of directors of the
Company may grant options to eligible employees including the
directors (but excluding independent non-executive directors) of
the Company and the directors of any of the subsidiaries of the
Company to subscrioe for shares in the Company.

Pursuant to a resolution passed at a special general meeting of
the Company on 17 March 2003, the Company has terminated
the 2001 Share Option Scheme and adopted a new share option
scheme (the “2003 Share Option Scheme”). Under the 2003
Share Option Scheme, the board of directors of the Company
may grant options to directors and employees of the Group and
any advisors, consultants, distributors, contractors, suppliers,
agents, customers, business partners, joint venture business
partners, promoters and service providers of any members of the
Group who the board of directors considers have contributed or
will contribute or can contribute to the Group. The purpose of the
2003 Share Option Scheme is to provide participants with the
opportunity to acquire proprietary interests in the Group and to
encourage participants to work towards enhancing the value of
the Group and its shares for the benefits of the Group and its
shareholders as a whole.

Subject to the condition that the total number of shares which
may be issued upon the exercise of all outstanding options granted
and to be exercised under the 2003 Share Qption Scheme and
any other schemes of the Company must not exceed 30% of the
shares of the Company in issue from time to time, the total
number of shares in respect of which options may be granted
under the 2003 Share Option Scheme, when aggregated with
any shares subject to any other schemes, is not permitted to
exceed 10% of the shares of the Company in issue on the date
of approval and adoption of the 2003 Share Option Scheme.

Under the 2003 Share Option Scheme, the options which may
be granted to any individual in any one year are not permitted to
exceed 1% of the shares of the Company in issue, without prior
approval from the Company’s shareholders. Options granted to
substantial shareholders or independent non-executive directors
in excess of 0.1% of the Company’s share capital or with a value
in excess of HK$5 million must be approved in advance by the
Company’s shareholders.

47.
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47.

SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (Continued)

The number of shares in respect of which options had been
granted and remained outstanding under the 2003 and 2001
Share Option Schemses was 9,000,000 and 21,800,000
representing 3.79% and 9.75% of the shares of the Company in
issue at 31 March 2006 and 2005, respectively.

Options granted must be taken up within 28 days from the date
of grant, upon payment of HK$1 per grant. Options may be
exercised at any time from the date on which the option is
accepted to the tenth anniversary of the date of grant. The exercise
price is determined by the directors of the Company, and will not
be less than the higher of the closing price of the Company
shares on the date of grant or the average closing price of the
shares for the five business days immediately preceding the date
of grant or the ncminal value of the share of the Company.

The following tables disclose details of the Company’s share
options held by employees (including directors) of the Company
and movements in such holdings during the year:

2003 Share Option Scheme

During the year ended 31 March 2005, the movements of the
share options are as follows:
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TET-FEREE

BE-TERA=A=+-BLTE
BB Z R B EENT

Number of
share options
Exercise price outstanding at
Date of grant Exercisable period per share 31.3.2005
HK$
R-BERE
ZA=+—8
B RATHE Z
wEaH 1T BRITEE BREYA
B
Directors
o=
23.2.2004 23.2.2004 to 22.2.2006
—EENE-_R-+=H —EENF_R-TZREE
TEERE-_FZ+-H 3.415 6,400,000
Employees
{==]
23.2.2004 23.2.2004 to 22.2.2006
TEEWNFE-_A=+=H TEENF_A-+=HE
—EERF-_AZ+H 3.415 6,400,000
12,800,000

No options were granted to or exercised by the directors or
employees of the Group, during the year ended 31 March 2005.

RE-FFEF=A=+-BLEE.
CECES T oA LT b
AREEEREE NHATERRE
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47.  SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (Continued) 47. BRETE (48
2003 Share Option Scheme (Continued) —ET-FERENE (5
During the year ended 31 March 2006, the movements of the BE_ZTXREFZRA=+—EBLHFE
share options are as follows: EREZEBFERT:
Number of share options
BREHE
Outstanding Exercised Transfer Lapsed  Outstanding
at during during during at
Date of grant  Exercisable period Exercise period 1.4.2005 the year the year the year 31.3.2008
HK$ (Note)
R-ZTLF RZBERE
A—8 =ZA=+-8
REBH T8 TRE HARITE ERTE ERER EREH R AT
# R (7 3)
Directors
Ez
23.2.2004 23.2.2004 10 22.2,2006
—ETOE “FEEE-_A=+ZEHE
ZAZ+=8 Z—TEXE_-BZ+-H 3415 6,400,000 {4,800,000)  (1,600,000) - -
Employees
E8
23. 2 2004 23 2 2004 o 22 2 2006
_ﬂ Z+=H AE%\@_H _+_ E 3415 6400000  (5200,000) 1,600,000  (2,800,000) -
12,800,000  (10,000,000) - {2,800,000) -
Note: F 4z
A director retired on 1 September 2005 and accordingly the option —ZEEER-_BEZRENE—BERAE K
entitled by that director was transferred to the category under “Employees”. HESHEE ﬁ LERBCREGEBZE
88
2001 Share Option Scheme —EE-FERESE
During the year ended 31 March 2005, the movements of the BE_ZTREZR=+-RBLEE"
share options are as foilows: BREZEHEEDNT:
Number of
share options
Exercise price outstanding at
Date of grant Exercisable period per share 31.3.2005
HK$
R-BEREF
Eﬁit—E
M ARITEZ
BHAE 1T EHA ERTHEE BREHE
B
Directors
Bz
31.8.2001 31.8.2001 1o 30.8.2006
ZEE-NRA=E+—H —EE-ENAZ+—RHE
“EERENAZTEH 2.9888 9,000,000
No options were granted to or exercised by the directors or BE_ZEEREF=ZAZT+-ALEEH

employees during the year ended 31 March 2005. BEEXESESRITFEERE




47.

SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (Continued)

2001 Share Option Scheme (Continued)

During the year ended 31 March 2008, the movements of the
share options are as follows:

47. BREETE (&)

TR -FRBRETE (8

HEZZTREZ/A=1T—RLEEE"

RBREZHISFERT:

Number of share options

BRERE
QOutstanding Outstanding
at at
Date of grant Exercisable period Exercise period 1.4.2005 Transfer 31.3.2006
HKS$ (Note)
R-ZEBEF RZBBEXRF
mA—8 =A=+—E
BEHBH 1TEER TEE e RAITE wE i RATE
A A (B 3x)
Directors
EE
31.8.2001 31.8.2001 to 30.8.2006
_EE—F ZEE-FARA=Z+—EZE
NR=Z+—H —ERBRENAZ=ZTH 2.9888 9,000,000 (1,750,000} 7,250,000
Employees
==
31.8.2001 31.8.2001 to 30.8.2006
—TE—F —EE-FNRAZ=T—HE
NE=+—8F —EESRNENA=TH 2.9888 ~ 1,750,000 1,750,000
9,000,000 - 9,000,000
Note: 32

A. director retired on 1 September 2005 and accordingly the option
entitled by that director was transferred to the category under "Employees”.

—EZEFER-_FTRFNA-BERE H
ZEREREEZERECREREE

8185
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48.

49.

RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEMES 48. EBIREFFE
The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund ("MPF”} scheme AEBABRRNGRECREEZWER
for qualifying employees of the Company and its subsidiaries in AZREMEEHTBREMEAES
Hong Kong. The assets of the MPF scheme are held separately ([BEe )t BB HEIZEED
from those of the Group, in funds under the control of trustees. BURAER UEFTAZNZEST
The Group contributes 5% of certain payroll costs to the scheme, HEE EAEERE T TEME Z5%/M
which contribution is matched by employees. ZHBHFZ O AEBCERERRE.
The Group also operates various retirement benefit schemes for REBRAEEHINEB LR (BELR
qualifying employees of its overseas subsidiaries, including RBE-EZERFNBEZHMEBLR) 286
subsidiaries in the United Kingdom, the USA and Singapore. The BEEEHITSREMBAEE-EBK
assets of the retirement benefit schemes are held separately from BHHEZEEDNBINEER LUE
those of the Group, in funds under control of trustees. The Group AZH I ESEARE - AE @RS
contributes 4% to 10% of the relevant payroll costs to the BIEMEZA%E10%EZ S8 #
schemes, which contribution is matched by employees. FOEHEEZHBTERR
The Group’s employees who are employed by subsidiaries in the ZERTPBZHBARZAEBEER
PRC are members of the state-managed retirement benefit FEBEAA#TZEREREETEK
scheme operated by the PRC government. These subsidiaries B-ZEMBRAREBIEETENL
are required to contribute a certain percentage of their payroll to EAZERERNTE ZHK BRFIE
the retirement benefit scheme to fund the benefits. The only HES - AEEHZIEREFNGTB Z &
obligation of the Group with respect to the retirement benefit EEAELBEZHR
scheme is to make the specified contributions.
PLEDGE OF ASSETS 49. EEBH
At the respective balance sheet dates, the following assets were RELER XEBRELFETIE
pledged by the Group to secure banking and other financing EEABTREMREEE 2 EA:
facilities:
2006 2005
HK$°000 HK$'000
ZEBEEBRE ZEERHE
A T # A
Trade receivables B R EWRTE - 105,494
Listed securities of associates BELRZ EWES 270,558 88,467
Inventories TE - -
Land and buildings T RESF 12,648 13,378
Investment properties WEME 133,000 -
Investments in securities BHEE - 12,816
Available-for-sale investments AENEZRE 505,294 -
Investments held for trading BEXHEBEZRE 231,069 -
Bank deposits RITTER 19,966 20,014
1,172,535 240,169
Classified as held for sale DHERHELE 257,368 -

1,429,903 240,169




50.

TRANSACTIONS AND BALANCES WITH RELATED PARTIES 50.

During the year, the Group had significant transactions with the

REBMEATETXERATEZER

AEERFERETIHEBEALTETZ

following related parties, together with balances with them at the EXRZHZHBEERR EBEEZE
respective balance sheet date, details of which are as follows: ATHFEZHEHET:
2006 2005
HK$’000 HK$'000
—EERE —EFRF
T %A T #& T
Substantial shareholder and its associates: FTERERHEBEAL:
Loan receivables of the Group RERKEEREERZ
" at end of the year (note g) FEYLE AR (M 2xa) 159,559 224,233
Loan payable of the Group REKBAEERY
at end of the year (note g/ FERER (Wiza) 352,046 149,333
Loans advanced by (repaid to) the Group FARAREEET (HET
during the year (note a) KEE) 2ER (Wika) (64,674) 56,868
Interest received and receivable AEBDWRER S
by the Group (hote ) S (Fzia) 25,105 12,066
Interest paid and payable RNEBBZRENZ
by the Group (note a) LA (M za) 27,446 10,490
Disposal of a subsidiary LE-BRNERE - 238
Loans advanced to the Group FRABRTTFTAREEY
during the year (note a) B (Wiza) 202,713 -
Parking fee income FEEUMA - 68
Rent paid and payable by the Group AEBHEEREMZES 2,451 1,298
Associates: e na):
Rental paid and payable by the Group reEEfTRENZES 871 1,353
Interest received and receivable AEBDWRERZFE
by the Group (note a) (M 3za) 117 94
Management fee income ERBIA 3,493 3,608
Sales of finished goods HERK D 142 -
Rent received and receivable by the Group AEFBBUWERYZES 216 232

Details of balances with associates at the respective balance

sheet date are set out in Note 24.

Notes:

a. The loans advanced to/by and the balances due by/to the Group
are unsecured, bear interest at prevailing market rates and
repayable in accordance with the respective loan agreements, if

any.

REEEBEBRE LR ZEHRFABER

FiaE24 »

R

{a) B/ AAEEBRY s ERRAEH
iUz A R EER RE
BHBMEARBEEEAZAER
Wi (ER) MM FEHEER-
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TRANSACTIONS AND BALANCES WITH RELATED PARTIES
(Continued)

50.

51.

In addition, certain banking and other facilities of the Group were
secured by personal guarantee from a director of the Company,
to the extent of HK$404,280,000 and HK$6,681,000 at 31 March
2006 and 2005, respectively.

Save as disclosed above, there were no other significant
transactions with related parties during the year or no significant
balances with them at the respective balance sheet date.

SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

(@

On 19 January 2008, MIl entered into the Disposal
Agreement with Imation. Details of this disposal are set
out in Note 18, the Company’s announcement dated 26
January 2006 and the Company’s circular dated 10 April
2006. This disposal was completed on 28 April 2006.

On 22 April 2006, the Company, Success Securities
Limited and See Corporation Limited (“SCL") entered into
an underwriting agreement in relation to the rights issue of
SCL. Pursuant to which, the Company agreed to subscribe
untaken rights shares up to its commitment of 329,037,330
rights shares at a subscription price of HK$0.014 per
rights share. On the same date, the Company executed
an undertaking to SCL that it would take up its entitlement
under the rights issue of SCL in full. On 30 June 2008,
the Company subscribed 1,991,487,330 rights shares of
SCL at HK$0.014 per rights shares.

Details of the transaction are set out in the Company’s
circular dated 17 May 2006.

On 27 April 2008, the Group entered into a subscription
agreement with Macau Prime Properties Holdings Limited
(formerly known as Cheung Tai Hong Holdings Limited)
(“MPP"), a public limited company with its shares listed
on the Stock Exchange, to subscribe for the 1% convertible
note of MPP with a principal amount of HK$270 million
for a total cash consideration of HK$270 million.

The subscription was completed on 15 June 2006. Details
of the subscription are set out in the Company’s
announcement dated 28 April 2006 and the Company’s
circular dated 26 May 2008.
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51.

SUBSEQUENT EVENTS (Continued)

{d

On 24 May 2006, the CSHL Disposal was completed
following the completion of the CSHL Reorganization.
Details of the CSHL Disposal and CSHL Recrganization
are set out in Note 24.

On the same date, Somerley Limited, financial advisor to
the Group, made a voluntary offer, on behalf of the Group,
to acquire all the remaining interest in GDI other than
those already ocwned by the Group (the “GDI Acquisition™).
The GDI Acquisition was approved by the shareholders of
the Company on 7 October 2005.

The transaction was completed on 16 June 2006. The
assets and liabilities of GDI as at 16 June 2006 are not
presented as the financial information of GDI as at 16
June 20086 is not availaple. Details of the CSHL Disposal
and the GDI Acquisition are set out in the Company’s
circular dated 26 May 2006 and in the Company’s
announcement dated 16 June 20086.

On 27 June 2008, the Group entered into five subscription
agreements with each of five subscribers (the “Suscription
Agreements”), four of them are fund subscribers who are
funds managed by global asset management firms, with
the remaining subscriber being ITC Corporation Limited
(“ITC"), a public limited company with its shares are listed
on the Stock Exchange. Pursuant to the Subscription
Agreements, the fund subscribers and ITC have in
aggregate conditionally agreed to subscribe by cash for
the US$150 million 1% convertible exchange notes with
principal amount of US$75 million each (the “Hanny Notes”)
{the “ITC Subscription”).

ITC, through its indirect wholly-owned subsidiaries, is the
substantial shareholder of the Group holding approximately
23.3% of the total issued share capital of the Company
as at the date of the Subscription Agreements, and
therefore ITC is a connected person of the Company
pursuant to the Listing Rules. Accordingly, the issue of
the Hanny Notes to ITC under the Subscription Agreement
with ITC constitutes a connected transaction of the
Company under the Listing Rules.
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51.

SUBSEQUENT EVENTS (Continued)

©)

(Continued)

Under the Subscription Agreement, the Group is required
as soon as practicable after the signing of the Subscription
Agreements 1o enter into a contract with China Enterprises
Limited (“CEL”), to subscribe the 1% convertible note of
CEL with principal amount of US$100 million with the
proceeds from the issue of the Hanny Notes (the “CEL
Subscription”).

CEL is a public limited company with its common shares
traded on the OTC (over-the-counter) Bulletin Board in
the United States and is an indirectly owned subsidiary of
the Group as at the date of this report.

Details of the ITC Subscription and CEL Subscription are
set out in the Company's announcement dated 8 July
2008.

On 28 June 20086, the Group entered into a subscription
agreement with Mei Ah Entertainment Group Limited (“Mei
Ah"), a company with its shares listed on the Stock
Exchange, to subscribe the 4% convertible note of Mei
Ah with a principal amount of HK$50 million for total cash
consideration of HK$50 million.

Details of the subscription are set out in the Company’s
announcement dated 29 June 2006 and the Company's
circular dated 21 July 2006,

On 10 July 2008, the Group entered into a subscription
agreement with Golden Harvest Entertainment (Holdings)
Limited (“GH"), a company with its shares listed on the
Stock Exchange, to subscribe the 4% convertible note of
GH with a principal amount of HK$50 million for total
cash consideration of HK$50 million.

Details of the subscription are set out in the Company’s
announcement dated 11 July 2006.
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52. BALANCE SHEET OF THE COMPANY 52. ARTNEEREXR
2006 2005
HK$’000 HK$'000
(Restated)
—BBAE —gEas
F 5 Fa
(BEH)
Non-current Assets SEREEE
Investment in subsidiaries WELRIERE 118,373 118,373
Amounts due from subsidiaries FELL B B X B3R TE - 1,864,365
Available-for-sale investments AIHEEZIRE 136,926 -
Club debentures EETES 1,070 1,704
256,369 1,084,442
Current Assats MENEE
Other receivables H b e 3k1E 264 265
Amounts due from subsidiaries = NI 2,204,919 -
Investments held for trading RIEEEZHRE 28,401 -
Investments in securities BEILE - 816
Bank balances and cash RITHTFRIRS 242 646
2,233,826 1,727
Current Liabifities mEBE
Other payables HuaETEE 27,590 32,193
Amounts due to a subsidiary FERT B A B FIE 127,130 -
Borrowings - due within one year B ——FREE 552,046 -
706,766 32,193
Net Current Assets (Liabilities) REBEE(RR) FE 1,527,080 (30,466)
Total assets less current liabilities BEERRDEE 1,783,429 1,953,976
Non-current Liabllities ERBAaE
Borrowing ~ due after one year B ——F& I - 149,333
- 149,333
1,783,429 1,804,643
Capital and Reserves EERGEEE
Share capital ARz 2,372 2,236
Reserves & 1,781,057 1,802,407
1,783,429 1,804,643
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53.  PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

Details of the Company's principal subsidiaries at 31 March 2006

are as follows:

53. ZEMEBLRZHEE

ALBEZEMNBRARR-REREZ
A=+—HZ#BRT:

Proportion of

share capital/ Equity
Place and date issued and fully registered interest
of incorporation/ paid share capital/ capital held held by
Name of subsidiary registration registered capital by the Company the Group  Principal activities
Directly  Indirectly
2RTR EATHE Fe-1E]
HRKL BEREKS RE/ERESR FREZ
MEAE B8 T ER A S BHEX Batt RS TEEX
B# B

Hanny Magnetics British Virgin Islands HK$40,000,000 100% - 100% Investment holding

{(B.V.l) Limited ("BV.LY) ordinary shares
22 May 1990 HK$8,000,000
preference shares

Hanny Magnetics EBELEE 40,000,000 7T 100% - 100% REER
(B.V.]) Limited (IRBERHEE]) TEk

—WNAEFERAR 8,000,000/ 7©
~+=H BRRR

Hanny Magnetics Hong Kong HK$1,100,000,200 - 100% 100% Investment holding
Limited 27 April 1971 ordinary share and trading and

HK$6,000,000 marketing of
5% non-voting computer media
deferred shares products and
{note a) related peripherals
) and accessories
BEYRFR QA % 1,100,000,200/% 7T - 100% 100% REZBRREER
—“Nnt—%F Tk HEEHEE
mAZ++E 6,000,000/ 7T EmkERALR
S%EIR T ERRkiH
B (W)

Hanny Magnetics People's Republic of  US$45,740,000 - 100% 100% Manufacturing of
{Zhuhai) Limited China (the "PRC"} magnetic media
(note b) 14 March 1988 products

BE (BE) #aA FEARANE 45,740,000% & - 100% 100% HEWAEBER
BRAE (Mib) (ferg])

—ANNE=ZA+TEH
Memorex Canada Ltd. Canada CAD2 -  B8.88% 45.2% Distribution of
9 January 1950 computer media
products and
audio and video
products
Memorex Canada Ltd. mEx 27 - 68.88% 452% PHEMREER
—hWAZEE—-ANE REEEM




53.

PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

53. ZEWBATZHFE (4)

Proportion of

share capital/ Equity
Place and date Issued and fully registered interest
of incorporation/  paid share capital/ capital held held by
Name of subsidiary registration registered capital by the Company the Group  Principal activities
Directly  Indirectly
EBTR ERREE F&E
S, BERE/  RE/EMER e
MBARERE BEMHERBES ERER Baok BARE R ITEEHB
HE Gif 3
Memorex Holdings Bermuda US$100,000 - 65% 85% Investment holding
Limited 3 November 2003
Memorex Holdings BRE 100,000% 7T - 65 % B5% REAER
Limited ZZE=F+—-R=H
Ml B.V.I US$1,000,000 -  68.68% 45.2% Investment holding
20 February 1997 and holding of
trademark licenses
Ml AERER#ES 1,000,000 7T - 68.68% 462% WEERER
—NWtEZAZ+H BEREHAE
Memorex Products United Kingdom GBP2 - 68.68% 452% Trading and
Europe Limited 6 October 1999 distribution of
computer media
products and
audio and video
products
Memorex Products B QEEE - B8.68% 452% EEBERSHEHEM
Europe Limited —ANNhE+TARE HEEAR
FEER
Memorex Products, inc. USA U3$79,001,000 -  B8.68% 45.2% Trading and
18 November 1993 distribution of
computer media
products and
audio and video
products
Memorex Products, Inc. 2 79,001,000% 7T - 6868% 45.2% BERNHEM
—hWA=Z%F BEERR
T—ATNE FEEM
Rich Life Holdings Singapore S$2 - 100% 100% Investment holding
Pte Ltd. 19 March 2002
Rich Life Holdings I N INE T - 100% 100% HREER

Pte Ltd,

“FE_F=ZATNIA
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53. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

53.

TEWMBLRZFE (80

Proportion of

share capital/ Equity
Place and date tssued and fully registered interest
of incorporation/ paid share capital/ capital held held by
Name of subsidiary registration registered capital by the Company the Group  Principal activities
Directly  Indirectly
EETR FREEE rERE
TR BERE/ RE/EREX EEL
MELRBE Br ARk B ER BHER Bt R Ea TEER
E#E GES
Ultimate Strategy B.V.I. US$1 - 100% 100% Investment holding
Limited 28 August 2003
Ultimate Strategy EBRELHES 12T - 100% 100% #BEER
Limited ZETZENAZTNE
Well Orient Limited Hong Kong HK$2 - 100% 100% Investment holding
21 August 2000
BRERLE BE 2B T - 100% 100% ®EEK
ZEZEEENRZ+-H
Zhuhal Hanny Property B.V., Us$1 - 100% 100% Inactive
Investment Limited 5 December 2002
HEREEER EBRUES 1E7T - 100% 100% EBEEEZ
REBRLA —EF-E+ZAHEE
Notes: Mgz
(@) The holders of the 5% non-voting deferred shares are not entitled a. SHEREEELRAZIERTAER

to receive notice of or to attend or vote at any general meetings
of the Company. The non-voting deferred shares practically carry
no rights to dividends or to participate in any distribution on
winding up.

o) The Company Is registered in the form of wholly-owned foreign
investment enterprise.

The above table lists out the subsidiaries of the Group which, in
the opinion of the directors, principally affected the results of the
Group for the year or formed a substantial portion of the net
assets of the Group at the end of the year. To give details of
other subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the directors, result in
particular of excessive length.

KERZARTABRAGZBER
HEASRRELRE-BREEER
EROEBR SN EETEENE
ERE R EERBBEEETAD IR

b. ZRTRIEERER B

ERINBZASERBLR DEER
AIRXEFEEFRZEETERE
SEFREEFEERHDZIOR B
ERR HEEMHMBLATEERNEE
BRITE




Financial Summary

e

A summary of the consolidated results and of the assets and liabilities of
the Group for each of the five years ended 31 March 2006 is set out

below:

@)

AGERBE-ZEERF-A=+-RLAEEE
BEFEGEFREREERBGBCHERENTX:

Results (@ EE
Year ended 31 March
BEZE=+-ALEE
2002 2003 2004 2005 2008
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
{note 182} (note 2) {note 2) {note 2)
—FE-F ZF%:= “EENE —FTRE ZEEARE
FRA FHRL FEL FHL FEAL
(2 1R2) (B 32) (M 222) (B 222)
TumoVer EEE 4,373,209 4,162,804 5,025,930 257,656 316,638
(Loss) profit before income tax B EEHE (BE) AH (99,789)  (574,444) 135,245 (248508)  (144,092)
Income tax expense G A 2,586 32,200 25,460 4082 4,331
(Loss) profit for the year from TFEEREFHE
continuing operations B2 (BE) A (102,455)  (806,644) 109,776 (252,790)  (148,423)
Profit for the year from FEEREFHE
discontinued operations E£B 2 ER - - - 152,552 52,419
(Loss) profit for the year AEE (BB ER (102,455)  (B0B,644) 100,776 (100,238) (96,004)
Attributable to: FEia:
Equity holders of the Company ARFZBRAERA (77,730)  (648,620) 13,300 (161,862) 8,915
Minority interests LERFER (24,725) 41,976 96,476 61,624 (104,919
{102,455} (606,644) 109,776 {100,238) (96,004)




Financial Summary

MHBEE
(o) Assets and liabilities by BEREE
At 31 March
R=ZE=T+-8
2002 2003 2004 2005 2006
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
fnote 1& 2) {note 2) {note 2) {note 2)
ZE2E-F —EZ%zF ZTTRE ZBRRE -EERE
FHRA TEL FEBL S T
(M 32142) (M 2) {W322) {Wzx2)
Total assets BEE 3,905,063 3,267,731 3,943,236 3,656,553 4,193,180
Total liabilities F= (1,443,284) (1,363,566) (1,664,898) (1,400,562) (1,973,857)

2,461,779 1904165 2278338 2,255,991 2,218,323

Equity attributable to equity holders of AR T 2R AHE AL

the Company B 2247168 1728567 1,873,181 1,806,374 1,868,889
Minority interests YREED 214,611 174,598 405,157 449,617 350,434

Notes:

2,461,779 1904165 2,278,338 2,255,991 2,219,323

F 3£

The summary of the results, assets and liabilities of the Group 1. RERBEHEYERNE12%R (BiEE
for the years ended 31 March 2002 have not been restated (rRH | %) AEEBE-_S% =
upon the adoption of Statement of Standard Accounting Practice EZRZ+—BAULFEEZEE RE
12 (Revised) “Income Taxes” as the directors of the Company RREZHEREED HRNELQFE
are of the opinion that the restatement would involve cost not in BERR BHREN MY RN E
proportion to the benefit of the Group. TEREGFFATETZFzR-

The amounts have been restated as a result of application of 2. RMBTEEHTLOERD 2H
new and revised Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued FIREETIERVBRERR BH

by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. RECDEEY
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